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Translation of a report originally issued in spanish based on our work performed in accordance with the 

audit regulations in force in spain. In the event of a discrepancy, the spanish-language version prevails.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS 

To the Board of Trustees of Fundación Bancaria Caixa d’Estalvis i Pensions de 

Barcelona, ”la Caixa”, 

Report on the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the financial statements of Fundación Bancaria Caixa d’Estalvis i Pensions de 

Barcelona, “la Caixa” (the Foundation), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 December 

2017, and the statement of profit or loss and notes to the financial statements for the year 

then ended. 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, 

the equity and financial position of the Foundation as at 31 December 2017, and its results for 

the year then ended in accordance with the regulatory financial reporting framework applicable 

to Foundation (identified in Note 2-a to the financial statements) and, in particular, with the 

accounting principles and rules contained therein. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the audit regulations in force in Spain. Our 

responsibilities under those regulations are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities 

for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. 

We are independent of the Foundation in accordance with the ethical requirements, including 

those pertaining to independence, that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in 

Spain pursuant to the audit regulations in force. In this regard, we have not provided any 

services other than those relating to the audit of financial statements and there have not been 

any situations or circumstances that, in accordance with the aforementioned audit regulations, 

might have affected the requisite independence in such a way as to compromise our 

independence. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 

basis for our opinion. 
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Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most 

significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were 

addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming 

our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 

Measurement of equity investments in Group companies and associates 

Description Procedures applied in the audit 

As indicated in Notes 1 and 6 to the 

accompanying financial statements, the 

Foundation holds a 100% ownership 

interest in the share capital of Criteria 

Caixa, S.A.U., which is not listed on 

regulated markets. This investment is 

measured at acquisition cost net, where 

appropriate, of any accumulated 

impairment losses. 

The aforementioned ownership interest in 

a Group company, amounting to EUR 

10,467,353 thousand at 31 December 

2017, represented approximately 91.12% 

of the Foundation’s total assets at that 

date.  

The measurement of this ownership 

interest was identified as a key matter in 

our audit due to, among other factors, the 

large amount that the cost of the 

investment represents in the context of 

the financial statements taken as a whole. 

Our audit procedures to address this 

matter included, among others: i) the 

analysis of the methodology used by the 

Foundation as a basis for assessing the 

impairment, if any, of the investment, and 

ii) the replication of the calculation in order 

to verify the accuracy of the measurement 

performed by the Foundation. 

We analysed and reviewed the financial 

information of Criteria Caixa, S.A.U., in 

order to obtain sufficient appropriate 

evidence of the value of the 

aforementioned ownership interest in the 

financial statements of the Foundation, 

and, furthermore, we obtained the audited 

financial statements of Criteria Caixa, 

S.A.U. and verified the consistency of the 

financial information used in the process to 

measure the investment with that 

contained in the aforementioned financial 

statements. 

Also, we evaluated whether the disclosures 

contained in the notes to the 

accompanying financial statements in 

connection with this matter are in 

conformity with those required by the 

applicable accounting regulations. 
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Recognition of aid and other expenses 

Description Procedures applied in the audit 

As indicated in Note 13.1 to the 

accompanying financial statements, in 

2017 the Foundation recognised expenses 

of EUR 254,040 thousand in relation to aid 

and other assistance provided to other 

social welfare entities in compliance with 

the social project cooperation agreements 

entered into with them, as well as other 

services provided to certain beneficiary 

groups.  

In this connection, Foundation 

management is required to use estimates 

when assessing the timing of accrual of 

such expenses based on the agreements 

or contracts entered into by the 

Foundation with the beneficiaries, and, at 

the end of the reporting period, 

management estimates the expenses 

accrued during the year as well as the 

provision for the amount payable at year-

end. 

Due to the significance of these expenses 

and provisions recognised in the statement 

of profit or loss, as well as the estimates 

used in their calculation, we considered 

this matter to be a key matter in our audit. 

Our audit procedures included, among 

others, the review of the design and 

implementation of the relevant controls 

that mitigate the risks associated with the 

recognition of aid and other expenses, as 

well as tests to verify that the 

aforementioned controls operate 

effectively. For a sample of agreements 

and contracts obtained on a selective 

basis, we performed substantive 

procedures aimed at confirming that the 

recognition method for aid and other 

expenses is consistent with the terms and 

conditions of the aforementioned 

agreements and contracts. Also, we 

checked the completeness, existence and 

accuracy of the balances recognised in the 

accounting records against the supporting 

documentation relating to the payments 

made during the year. For this purpose, 

we involved internal specialists in 

information technology systems and mass 

data processing. 

Lastly, we evaluated whether the 

disclosures contained in the notes to the 

accompanying financial statements in 

connection with this matter are in 

conformity with those required by the 

applicable accounting regulations. 
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Responsibilities of the Foundation's Executive Director and of the Audit 

Committee for the Financial Statements  

The Foundation's executive director is responsible for preparing the accompanying financial 

statements so that they present fairly the Foundation's equity, financial position and results in 

accordance with the regulatory financial reporting framework applicable to the Foundation in 

Spain, and for such internal control as the executive director determines is necessary to enable 

the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due 

to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, the Foundation's executive director is responsible for 

assessing the Foundation's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, 

matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the 

executive director either intends to liquidate the Foundation or to cease operations, or has no 

realistic alternative but to do so. 

The audit committee is responsible for overseeing the process involved in the preparation and 

presentation of the financial statements. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as 

a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 

auditor's report that includes our opinion. 

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 

conducted in accordance with the audit regulations in force in Spain will always detect a 

material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 

considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 

influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is included 

in Appendix I to this auditor's report. This description, which is on pages 6 and 7, forms part 

of our auditor's report. 
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

Additional Report to the Audit Committee 

The opinion expressed in this report is consistent with the content of our additional report to 

the Foundation's audit committee dated 23 May 2018.  

Engagement Period 

The Foundation's Board of Trustees Meeting held on 6 May 2016 appointed us as auditors for 

a period of one year from the year ended 31 December 2016. 

Previously, we were designated pursuant to a resolution of the Foundation's Board of Trustees 

for the period of one year and have been auditing the financial statements uninterruptedly 

since the year ended 31 December 1991, taking into account the content of Article 17.8 of 

Regulation (EU) No 537/2014 on specific requirements regarding statutory audit of public-

interest entities. 

DELOITTE, S.L. 
Registered in ROAC under no. S0692 

Francisco Ignacio Ambrós 

Registered in ROAC under no. 20526 

23 May 2018 
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Appendix I to our auditor's report 

Further to the information contained in our auditor's report, in this Appendix we include our 

responsibilities in relation to the audit of the financial statements. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

As part of an audit in accordance with the audit regulations in force in Spain, we exercise 

professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:  

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 

due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 

obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 

resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 

an opinion on the effectiveness of the Foundation's internal control. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Foundation's executive director. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of the use by the Foundation's executive director of the 

going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a 

material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt 

on the Foundation's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 

uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related 

disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 

opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 

auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Foundation to cease 

to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 

including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying 

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 
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We communicate with the Foundation's audit committee regarding, among other matters, the 

planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 

deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide the Foundation's audit committee with a statement that we have complied 

with relevant ethical requirements, including those regarding independence, and we have 

communicated with it to report on all matters that may reasonably be thought to jeopardise 

our independence, and where applicable, on the related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with the Foundation's audit committee, we determine those 

matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current 

period and are therefore the key audit matters.  

We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public 

disclosure about the matter. 
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CAIXA D’ESTALVIS I PENSIONS DE BARCELONA, ”la Caixa”, BANKING 
FOUNDATION 

BALANCE SHEETS AT 31 DECEMBER 2017 AND 2016  
(in thousands of euros)    

    

ASSETS 

Notes  

31/12/2017 31/12/2016 (*) to the financial 
statements 

A) NON-CURRENT ASSETS   11,304,082 11,279,624 

      

Intangible assets Note 5 8,523 6,798 

Computer software    8,523 6,798 

Property, plant and equipment Note 5 369,941 365,542 

Land and buildings   224,802 214,500 

Plant and other property and equipment   131,810 125,110 

Fixed assets in course of construction and advances   13,329 25,932 

Non-current investments in Group companies and associates  10,467,366 10,467,434 

Equity instruments  Note 6.1 10,467,353 10,467,353 

Debt securities   13 81 

Non-current financial assets Note 6.2 49,200 33,987 

Equity instruments    251 251 

Loans to entities   540 648 

Other financial assets   311 1,230 

Other accounts receivable from public administrations Note 6.2 48,098 31,858 

Deferred tax assets Note 11 409,052 405,863 

      

B) CURRENT ASSETS   183,480 147,279 

      

Users and other receivables from core business   139 989 

Trade and other receivables   6,991 5,337 

Receivable from Group companies and associates Note 12 2,038 1,662 

Sundry accounts receivable   956 531 

Personnel  99 97 

Other accounts receivable from public administrations Note 6.2 3,898 3,047 

Current investments in Group companies and associates  139,301 104,125 

Equity instruments   - 11 

Debt securities   - 94 

Other financial assets Note 6.1 139,301 104,020 

Current financial assets   580 586 

Equity instruments Note 6.2  413 410 

Loans to entities Note 6.2 108 108 

Other financial assets   59 68 

Cash and cash equivalents        Note 7 36,469 36,242 

Cash   36,469 36,242 

      

TOTAL ASSETS (A + B)   11,487,562 11,426,903 

 
The accompanying Notes 1 to 19 and Appendices 1 and 2 are an integral part of the balance sheet 
at 31 December 2017. 

(*) Presented for comparison purposes only.  
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CAIXA D’ESTALVIS I PENSIONS DE BARCELONA, ”la Caixa”, BANKING FOUNDATION  

BALANCE SHEETS AT 31 DECEMBER 2017 AND 2016  
(in thousands of euros) 

   

    

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES Notes  

31/12/2017 31/12/2016 (*) 

  
to the financial 

statements 

A) EQUITY   11,118,297 11,045,015 

    

Shareholders' equity Note 8 11,118,289 11,045,008 

Founding capital/Welfare Fund   5,868,000 5,868,000 

Founding capital/Welfare Fund   5,868,000 5,868,000 

Reserves   5,049,309 5,049,177 

Other reserves   5,049,309 5,049,177 

Surplus from previous years   127,831 62,040 

Remainder   127,831 62,040 

Surplus for the year   73,149 65,791 

Valuation adjustments   8 7 

    

B) NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES   122,756 141,878 

    

Non-current provisions Note 9 1,231 2,822 

Obligations for non-current employee benefits   941 1,719 

Other provisions   290 1,103 

Non-current payables Note 6.3 72,722 67,253 

Other financial liabilities   72,722 67,253 

Non-current payables to Group companies and associates Note 6.4 48,800 71,800 

Deferred tax liabilities Note 11 3 3 

    

C) CURRENT LIABILITIES   246,509 240,010 

    

Current provisions Note 9 865 1,128 

Current payables Note 6.3 16,542 1,028 

Other financial liabilities   16,542 1,028 

Current payables to Group companies and associates Note 6  23,143 23,833 

Payables to beneficiaries Note 10 124,970 131,444 

Trade and other payables   80,989 82,577 

Suppliers, Group companies and associates Note 12 12,561 9,712 

Accounts payable   65,261 70,246 

Remuneration payable   9 17 

Other payables to public administrations   3,158 2,602 

    

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY (A + B + C)   11,487,562 11,426,903 

 
The accompanying Notes 1 to 19 and Appendices 1 and 2 are an integral part of the balance sheet at 
31 December 2017. 

(*) Presented for comparison purposes only. 
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CAIXA D’ESTALVIS I PENSIONS DE BARCELONA, ”la Caixa”, BANKING FOUNDATION  

INCOME STATEMENT FOR THE YEARS ENDING 31 DECEMBER 2017 AND 2016  

(in thousands of euros) 

   

Notes  

2017 2016 (*) to the financial 
statements 

A) Continuing operations       

1. Core income   22,518 8,086 

User contributions   3,362 3,222 

Subsidies and aid taken to surplus for the year Note 4.i) 10,741 737 

Donations and legacies taken to surplus for the year Note 4.i) 2,010 2,409 

Repayments of aid and concessions Note 10 6,405 1,718 

3. Aid-related and other expenses  Note 13.1 (254,040) (228,722) 

Monetary aid  (254,040) (228,722) 

7. Other income from business activity  4,896 4,244 

8. Staff expenses Note 13.4 (34,499) (30,380) 

Wages, salaries and similar expenses  (24,884) (22,139) 

Social benefit contributions  (9,615) (8,241) 

9. Other expenses from business activity   (192,711) (185,998) 

External services  Note 13.2 (197,689) (191,744) 

Taxes other than income tax   (2,019) (1,025) 

Losses on, impairment of and changes in allowances for trade receivables   6,999 6,811 

Other expenses   (2) (40) 

10. Depreciation and amortisation Note 5 (15,394) (13,835) 

12. Surplus provisions Note 9 813 - 

13. Impairment and gains/(losses) on disposal of non-current assets  14 1,230 

Gains/(losses) on disposals and other    14 1,230 

A.1) SURPLUS FROM BUSINESS ACTIVITY (1+2+3+4+5+6+7+8+9+10+11+12+13)   (468,403) (445,375) 

14. Financial income  400,033 375,060 

From investments in equity instruments  400,000 375,000 

In Group companies and associates Note 6  400,000 375,000 

From marketable securities and other financial instruments   33 60 

From Group companies and associates Note 7 33 57 

From third parties   - 3 

15. Financial costs Note 13.3 (965) (1,190) 

From payables to Group companies and associates  (965) (1,190) 

18. Impairment losses and gains/(losses) on disposal of financial instruments  (7) 487 

Gains/(losses) on disposals and other Note 6.2 (7) 487 

A.2)   SURPLUS FROM FINANCIAL TRANSACTIONS (14+15+16+17+18)   399,061 374,357 

A.3) SURPLUS BEFORE TAX (A.1+A.2)   (69,342) (71,018) 

19. Income tax Note 11 142,491 136,809 

A.4) SURPLUS IN THE YEAR FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS (A.3 + 19)   73,149 65,791 

B) Discontinued operations      

A.5) Change in equity recognised in surplus for the year (A.4+20) Note 8 73,149 65,791 

C) Income and expense recognised directly in equity     

1. Available-for-sale financial assets  1 6 

3. Grants received Note 4.i) 10,741 535 

4. Donations and bequests received Note 4.i) 2,010 1,877 

C.1) Change in equity due to income and expense recognised directly in equity 
(1+2+3+4+5+6) 

  
  

2,418 12,752 

D) Reclassifications to surplus for the year     

3. Grants received Note 4.i) (10,741) (737) 

4. Donations and bequests received Note 4.i) (2,010) (1,877) 

D.1) Change in equity due to reclassifications to surplus for the year (1+2+3+4+5)   (12,751) (2,614) 

E) Change in equity due to income and expense taken directly to equity (C1+D1)   1 (196) 

F) Adjustments due to changes in accounting criteria   - - 

G) Adjustments due to errors   - - 

H) Changes in the founding capital or welfare fund   - - 

I) Other changes   - - 

J) TOTAL PROFIT/(LOSS), CHANGE IN EQUITY IN THE YEAR (A5+E+F+G+H+I)   73,150 65,595 

The accompanying Notes 1 to 19 and Appendices 1 and 2 are an integral part of the income statement 
for the year ended 31 December 2017. 

(*) Presented for comparison purposes only.  
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CAIXA D’ESTALVIS I PENSIONS DE BARCELONA, ”la Caixa”, BANKING  

FOUNDATION  

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 

(1) ACTIVITY OF ”la Caixa” BANKING FOUNDATION . 

Corporate information 

The Caixa d’Estalvis i Pensions de Barcelona, ”la Caixa”, Banking Foundation (hereinafter, 
the Foundation or the ”la Caixa” Banking Foundation) is a non-profit banking foundation, 
the assets of which are permanently tied to the fulfilment purposes of general interest that 
are detailed in its bylaws and as a result of the transformation of Caixa d’Estalvis i Pensions 
de Barcelona into a banking foundation. 

On 6 October 2017, the Foundation's trustees resolved to relocate its registered office from 
Avenida Diagonal 621 - 629 (Barcelona) to Plaza Weyler, 3 (Palma de Mallorca). The 
Foundation's tax identification number (NIF) is G58899998. 

On 16 June 2014, Caixa d’Estalvis i Pensions de Barcelona, ”la Caixa” was effectively 
transformed into a banking foundation, in accordance with the provisions of Law 26/2013, 
of 27 December, on savings banks and banking foundations, and registered in the Ministry 
of Justice Foundations Registry under number 1658. 

The General Assembly of Caixa d’Estalvis i Pensions de Barcelona, ”la Caixa”also agreed to: 
a) the spin-off, which took effect in October 2014, in favour of Criteria Caixa, S.A.U.  (wholly 
owned by the ”la Caixa” Banking Foundation), of the assets and liabilities not subject to the 
Welfare Fund (including the ownership interest in CaixaBank), whereby the ”la Caixa” 
Banking Foundation would hold its ownership interest in CaixaBank indirectly through 
Criteria, and b) the dissolution and liquidation of the former Caixa d’Estalvis i Pensions de 
Barcelona Foundation and the contribution of its assets to the ”la Caixa” Banking 
Foundation. The banking foundation is supervised by the Bank of Spain with regard to its 
indirect ownership interest through Criteria Caixa, S.A.U. in CaixaBank, S.A.  (CaixaBank) 
as set forth in the law on savings banks and banking foundations and the Protectorate of the 
Ministry of Economy, Industry and Competition. 

The foundation is governed by Law 26/2013, of 27 December, on savings banks and banking 
foundations, and, in a secondary manner, by Foundations Law 50/2002, of 26 December.  

The general purpose of the ”la Caixa” Banking Foundation is to promote and develop social, 
charitable, welfare, educational and/or cultural projects and initiatives. Its primary activity is 
therefore to manage and carry out welfare projects and appropriately manage its investments, 
including the ownership interest in CaixaBank. The economic stake held by the ”la Caixa” 
Banking Foundation in CaixaBank at 31 December 2017 stood at 40.00% (45.32% at 31 
December 2016). 

The ”la Caixa” Banking Foundation manages its stake in CaixaBank indirectly through its 
100% stake in Criteria Caixa, S.A.U. (Criteria), an entity which also manages banking and 
business interests in strategic sectors, including banking, energy, infrastructure, services and 
real estate. 
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Article 44 of Law 26/2013, of 27 December, on savings banks and banking foundations, 
establishes the obligation that banking foundations with an ownership interest equal to or 
greater than 30% in a credit institution or that gives them control over this entity under the 
terms established in Article 42 of the Code of Commerce, must submit each year to the Bank 
of Spain, for approval thereby, a financial plan that determines the manner in which they will 
meet any possible capital needs that may be incurred by the entity in which they have a 
shareholding and the basic criteria of their strategy for investing in financial institutions.  
 
On 26 September 2017, the ECB Governing Committee ruled that given that the terms and 
conditions established in EU Regulation 1024/2013, of the Council, have been met, Criteria 
no longer has control or exercises a significant dominant influence over CaixaBank, and 
consequently is no longer the parent of the financial conglomerate. The relevant conditions 
set by the ECB were as follows: 

− The voting and dividend rights of Criteria in CaixaBank must not exceed 40% of 
such rights. 

− The proprietary directors of Criteria at CaixaBank must not exceed 40% of all 
directors. 

− Criteria's proprietary directors may vote only for the directors proposed by Criteria 
and shall abstain in all other cases. 

− A lead director must be appointed with extensive powers, from among the 
independent directors of CaixaBank, including the authority to liaise with 
shareholders in corporate governance matters. 
 

Additionally, from September 2018, CaixaBank may not grant the ”la Caixa” Banking 
Foundation financing that exceeds 5% of the eligible own funds at the sub-consolidated level 
of the CaixaBank Group. 
As a result, on 15 March 2018, the Foundation’s Board of Trustees approved the (standard) 
financial plan for 2018, which has yet to be approved by the Bank of Spain as of the date of 
authorisation for issue of these financial statements. CaixaBank, S.A., with registered office 
at Calle Pintor Sorolla, 2-4, Valencia, is a leading financial group in the Spanish market, made 
up of the banking business, insurance activities and investments in international banks and 
leading companies in the services sector. It is a public limited company whose shares are 
admitted to trading on the Madrid, Barcelona, Valencia and Bilbao stock exchanges and on 
the continuous market, forming part of the IBEX 35 since 4 February 2008. 

At the end of 2017 and 2016, the most significant consolidated figures of the CaixaBank 
Group are as follows: 

(Millions of euros)  

% indirect  Share

Year Name interest capita l

2017 CaixaBank, SA 40.00 5,981 16,538 1,684

2016 CaixaBank, SA 45.32 5,981 16,371 1,047

 Profi t/(loss )   Reserves  

 

In accordance with that established in the bylaws, the ”la Caixa” Banking Foundation mainly 
carries out its activities in Spain, without prejudice to its special focus, as a result of its origin, 
on Catalonia and the Balearic Islands, as well as potentially carrying out its activities abroad. 
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Pursuant to Article 42.1.a) of the Commercial Code, the ”la Caixa” Banking Foundation is 
the controlling company of a group of subsidiaries providing a range of products and 
services. The ”la Caixa” Banking Foundation is therefore required to prepare, in addition to 
separate financial statements, consolidated financial statements for the Caixa d’Estalvis i 
Pensions de Barcelona, ”la Caixa, Banking Foundation Group (the ”la Caixa” Banking 
Foundation Group or the ”la Caixa” Group), which also include interests in joint ventures 
and investments in associates. The accompanying financial statements therefore do not 
reflect the financial position of the group headed by the ”la Caixa” Banking Foundation. 
These figures are presented in the consolidated financial statements all the rest for issue by 
the CEO, in conjunction with the separate financial statements, in accordance with 
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European Union, the 
headline financials of which at 31 December 2017 and 2016 were as follows:  
 

(millions of euros) 2017 2016 

Consolidated equity 18,559 31,257 
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to the 
Group 

1,189 696 
Total consolidated assets 26,284 362,209 

The change in total consolidated assets is due mainly to Criteria's loss of control over 
CaixaBank in 2017. 

Considering the loss of control over relevant CaixaBank decisions, and in accordance with 
IFRS 10, the ”la Caixa” Banking Foundation Group now consolidates  its stake in CaixaBank 
in its financial statements as an associate holding using the equity method given the 
significant influence that it still has over CaixaBank. This has entailed a restatement of the 
financial information in the 2016 consolidated financial statements, derecognising the assets 
and liabilities associated with the stake in CaixaBank in the consolidated statement of profit 
or loss and recognising the stake held in CaixaBank at fair value when control was lost. 

The figures in these financial statements are presented in thousands of euros unless the use 
of another monetary unit is stated explicitly. Certain financial information in these notes was 
rounded off and, consequently, the figures shown herein as totals may differ slightly from 
the arithmetic sum of the individual figures given before them. 
 
2017 ACTIVITIES REPORT OF THE ”la Caixa” BANKING FOUNDATION 
 

The ”la Caixa” Banking Foundation reached various milestones in 2017 across all three of 

its priority areas of action: Social work, research and promotion of excellence and the 

dissemination of culture and knowledge. These results are a direct product of the 2016-2019 

Strategic Plan, which envisions upwards of EUR 2,000 million in investment over this four-

year horizon under the motto Changing the present. Building the future.   

 

In 2017, the ”la Caixa” Foundation extended its budget to EUR 510 million, up on the EUR 

500 million allocated in the previous nine years.  

 

The liquidation of the budget for the financial year 2017 was 475.9 million euros. Thus, in 

the Social area, 279.7 million euros have been allocated (59%); in the area of the Divulgation 

of Culture and Knowledge, 121.3 million euros (25%); and in the area of Research and 

Training excellence, 74.9 million euros (16%). 

 

In 2017 the ”la Caixa” Banking Foundation undertook almost 49,352 initiatives, targeting 

more than 11 million beneficiaries.  
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Flagship social projects here include CaixaProinfancia, which for ten years has been 

fostering the social inclusion of vulnerable children and young people, and extending its 

support to their family members. In 2017, this initiative reached out to 62,254 children from 

households at risk of exclusion.  

 

In addition to the fight against child poverty, the Strategic Plan views job creation as a 

further priority of the Banking Foundation. Its labour market integration programme, 

Incorpora, has just celebrated its tenth anniversary. The initiative offered over 33,600 jobs 

to vulnerable individuals over the course of 2017, compared to the 28,920 jobs reported in 

the previous year. This has largely been made possible by the 10,000-plus companies 

collaborating on the programme.  

 

Turning to healthcare, the entity has already set up its Comprehensive Care Programme for 

People with Advanced Diseases at 123 different health centres. In 2017, a total of 24,094 

patients and 29,555 family members received psychological and social care and support.  

 

Providing easier access to housing is another strategic priority under the Strategic Plan. 

The ”la Caixa” Banking Foundation and CaixaBank already have between them upwards of 

32,000 flats available to low-income individuals and families, with monthly rents starting at 

just EUR 85. 

 

Elderly people have traditionally been a priority for welfare projects ever since the 

inception, over a century ago, of ”la Caixa” as a pensions and old-age savings institution. In 

2017, a total of 821,532 participants lent their support to numerous social, cultural, healthcare 

and technological initiatives intended for the elderly.  

 

On top of all this, we have the hugely successful volunteer milk collection campaign called 

A milk moustache for all kids, which is aimed at vulnerable families and is supported by 

food banks across all of Spain. In its third year, the scheme collected 1.2 million litres of 

milk thanks to public solidarity.  

 

The Banking Foundation views education as a key driver of individual and collective 

progress. Training therefore remains one of its key priorities. With this goal in mind, the 

EduCaixa programme has reached out to over 2.4 million pupils from 8,300 schools in 

Spain. Different types of grants and scholarships were also handed out as part of this drive 

to improve levels of education, such as the 120 international scholarships and 77 PHD grants 

awarded in 2017.  

 

Meanwhile, the ”la Caixa” Banking Foundation and the Telefónica Foundation are 

continuing to work together on their joint ProFuturo project. The initiative, inspired by 

Pope Francis, seeks to promote the digital education of children, teenagers and adults from 

the most underprivileged regions of Africa, Latin America, the Middle East and South-East 

Asia, reaching out to 430,403 children in 2017. 

 

In 2017, the Banking Foundation stepped up its international collaboration with 

internationally renowned entities, including Bill & Melinda Gates Foundation to promote 

child vaccination in developing countries; UNICEF, with the aim of reducing child deaths 

caused by pneumonia; and UNHCR to improve living conditions for refugees. 
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Following the agreement reached with Portuguese bank BPI, ”la Caixa” Banking Foundation 

has recently announced the expansion of welfare projects to Portugal, where it intends to 

roll out the Foundation's most emblematic projects.  

 

Research essentials 
 

The 2016-2019 Strategic Plan is firmly committed to medical research and is looking to 

triple the budget in this realm to EUR 90 million by the end of the four-year plan horizon. 

To better visualise this commitment, a campaign was launched in 2017 to raise awareness of 

the importance of research in improving the well-being of people and to recognise the 

efforts of scientists who dedicate their lives to fighting disease and protecting one of our 

most valued assets: our own health. They are the Essentials.  
 

The Foundation has also deepened its commitment to scientific progress through its 

ongoing support for research into Alzheimer’s, AIDS, neurodegenerative diseases, 

cardiovascular conditions and cancer.  

 
Support for culture, science and education 
 
A total of 6 million people visited the different cultural, scientific and educational 

programmes and events organised across all of Spain by the ”la Caixa” Foundation in 2017, 

a rise of 13% year on year. These impressive figures have been reached while maintaining 

unrivalled levels of cultural and scientific outreach; another priority under the Strategic Plan. 

 

At CaixaForum, Barcelona, the exhibition entitled Andy Warhol. Mechanical Art was the 

most visited event during the year. Turning to CosmoCaixa, Welfare Projects' Science Museum 

in Barcelona, highlights for the year included the unveiling of T. Rex, displaying the fossil of 

a dinosaur that inhabited the Earth some 67 million years ago. Meanwhile, at CaixaForum 

Madrid the most popular exhibition was Ramon Casas. A much-yearned modernity. 

(2) BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

a) Regulatory financial reporting framework applicable to the Foundation.  
 

These financial statements were prepared by the CEO of the ”la Caixa” Banking Foundation 
in accordance with the regulatory financial reporting framework applicable to the 
Foundation, which consists of: 

- The Spanish Commercial Code and all other Spanish corporate law. 
 

- The Resolution of 26 March 2013 of the Spanish Accounting and Audit Institute, 
approving the Accounting Plan for non-profit organisations. This resolution includes 
and fully encompasses the provisions of Royal Decree 1491/2011, of 24 October, 
and for everything not specifically amended in that decree, that set forth in the 
Spanish National Chart of Accounts. 
 

- Foundations Law 50/2002, of 26 December, and Royal Decree 1337/2005, of 11 
November, approving the regulations for national foundations, as well as the 
amendments introduced thereto by Royal Decree 1611/2007. 

 
- Law 26/2013 of December 27 on savings banks and banking foundations. 

 



 

 

 

10 

- Royal Decree 877/2015, of 2 October, implementing Law 26/2013, of 27 December, 
on savings banks and banking foundations, which governs the reserve fund that must 
be established by certain banking foundations. 
 

- Bank of Spain Circular 6/2015, of 17 November, on savings banks and banking 
foundations, which governs certain aspects of remuneration and corporate 
governance reports, as well as the content and other aspects of the management 
protocol and the financial plan. 
 

- Bank of Spain Circular 7/2016, of 29 November, implementing the specific 
accounting principles that must be applied by banking foundations, among other 
regulations. 
 

- The mandatory rules approved by the Spanish Accounting and Audit Institute to 
implement the Spanish General Chart of Accounts and the relevant secondary 
legislation; and 
 

- All other applicable Spanish legislation. 

b) Fair presentation 
 

These financial statements, which were obtained from the ”la Caixa” Banking Foundation’s 
accounting records, are presented in accordance with the regulatory framework applicable 
thereto and, in particular, with the accounting principles and rules contained therein and, 
accordingly, present fairly the Foundation’s equity, financial position, results of operations 
for the year ended 31 December 2017. 

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Chief Executive Officer on 29 
March 2018, and will be submitted for approval by the Board of Trustees, whereby it is 
expected that will be approved without any changes. Accordingly, the financial statements of 
the  ”la Caixa” Banking Foundation for 2016 were approved by its Board of Trustees on 18 
May de 2017. 

c) Non-obligatory accounting principles applied 
 

These financial statements were prepared by taking into account all the obligatory accounting 
principles and standards with a significant effect hereon. All obligatory accounting principles 
were applied. 

d) Key issues in relation to the measurement and estimation of uncertainty 
 

In preparing the accompanying financial statements estimates were made by the management 
in order to measure certain of the assets, liabilities, income, expenses and obligations reported 
herein. These estimates basically relate to: 

 The useful life of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (see Note 5). 
 The calculation of impairment losses on certain assets (see Notes 5 and 6). 
 Non-current provisions (see Notes 4.f and 9) 
 The provisions recognised under “Payables to beneficiaries” for those short-term 

obligations that the Foundation must meet in order to carry out the programmes 
launched (see Note 10). 

 The assumptions used in the calculation of pension and other obligations to 
employees (see Notes 4.g and 9).  
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 The income tax income or expense based on the tax rate expected for the full year 
and the capitalisation and recoverability of tax assets (see Note 11). 

 
At 31 December 2017, the Foundation had a working capital deficiency of EUR 63,029 
thousand. However, the Foundation expects to offset this situation with the dividends it will 
receive from its subsidiary Criteria Caixa, S.A.U. and with the income tax refund for 2017 
(see Note 6.5). 

Although these estimates were made on the basis of the best information available at 31 
December 2017, events that take place in the future might make it necessary to change these 
estimates (upwards or downwards) in coming years. Such changes in accounting estimates 
would be applied prospectively. 

e) Comparative information 
 

The information relating to 2016 contained in these financial statements is presented solely 
for purposes of comparison with the information for 2017. 

In 2017 there were no significant amendments made to the accounting regulations applicable 
that may affect the comparability of information. 

f) Grouping of items 
 

Certain items in the balance sheet and the income statement are grouped together to facilitate 
their understanding; however, whenever the amounts involved are material, the information 
is broken down in the related notes to the financial statements. 
 
(3) SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR 

The proposed distribution of surplus for the year is as follows: 

Basis of distribution
Amount (thousands 

of euros)

Surplus for the year (Note 8) 73,149

Total 73,149

Amount used
Amount (thousands 

of euros)

 A. Surplus from previous years
     - Retained earnings 73,149

Total 73,149  
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(4) ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND MEASUREMENT BASES 

The principal measurement bases used by the Foundation in preparing its financial 
statements for the year ended 31 December 2017, in accordance with the Spanish National 
Chart of Accounts for non-profit organisations, were as follows: 

a) Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment- 

Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment are initially recognised at acquisition or 
production cost and are subsequently reduced by the related accumulated amortisation or 
depreciation and by any impairment losses recognised. 

Amortisation and depreciation are calculated using the straight-line method based on the 
years of estimated useful life of the assets. 

All intangible assets recognised on the Foundation’s balance sheet are made up of assets with 
a finite useful life. 

The annual percentages of amortisation and depreciation applied on a straight-line basis to 
the various assets are as follows: 

Property, plant and equipment Annual % 

Buildings 
Facilities added 

2% 
8% - 25% 

Fixed facilities 10%-12% 
Furniture and other office equipment 6% - 12% 
Electronic equipment 25% 
Transport 
Museography modules 

16% 
17% 

  

Intangible assets Annual % 

Computer software 20% 
  

The costs of expansion or improvements leading to a lengthening of the useful lives of the 
assets are capitalised. 

Upkeep and maintenance expenses that do not enhance the utilisation or lengthen the useful 
life of the assets are charged to the income statement as they are incurred. 

The structure, facilities and furniture used by the Foundation to carry out its activities relate 
mainly to properties used for charitable or social activities. The Entity therefore classifies 
them as assets not generating cash flows, since the Foundation has these assets for a purpose 
other than generating commercial return, such as social economic flows generated by these 
activities that benefit the group, i.e., their social benefit or service potential. 

The art collection owned by the Foundation is also part of its property, plant and equipment. 
The pieces included in the art collection are valued according to their purchase price, for 
acquisitions for valuable consideration, and at fair value, for art works donated by third 
parties. 
The pieces in the art collection are not depreciated. 

At the end of each year or whenever there are indications of impairment of the property, 
plant and equipment, the Entity estimates any potential impairment losses that may reduce 
the recoverable amount of these assets to below the carrying amount, calculating the 
potential impairment loss based on the difference between the carrying amount and the 
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recoverable amount, which is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For 
this purpose, value in use is determined in connection with the replacement cost.  

b) Financial instruments- 

Financial assets 

Classification 

The financial assets held by the Foundation are classified, where applicable, in the 
following categories:  

1. Loans and receivables: these are financial assets arising from the sale of goods or the 
rendering of services in the ordinary course of the Entity's business, or financial 
assets which, not having commercial substance, are not equity instruments or 
derivatives, have fixed or determinable payments and are not traded in an active 
market. 

2. Held-to-maturity investments: debt securities with fixed maturity and determinable 
payments that are traded in an active market and which the Foundation has the 
positive intention and ability to hold to the date of maturity.  

3. Financial assets held for trading: assets acquired with the intention of selling them in 
the near term and assets that form part of a portfolio for which there is evidence of 
a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking.  

4. Investments in the equity of Group companies, associates and jointly controlled 
entities: Group companies are those with which the Foundation has a relationship of 
control, and associates are those over which the Foundation exerts a significant 
influence. Jointly controlled entities include companies over which, by virtue of an 
agreement, the Foundation exercises joint control with one or more other investors.  

5. Available-for-sale financial assets: these include debt securities and equity 
instruments of other companies that are not classified in any of the aforementioned 
categories. 

Initial valuation 

Financial assets are initially recognised, in general, at the fair value of the consideration 
given, plus any directly attributable transaction costs.     

Subsequent measurement 

Loans, receivables and investments held to maturity are measured at amortised cost. 

Financial assets held for trading are measured at fair value and the gains or losses arising 
from changes in fair value are recognised in the income statement. 

Investments in Group companies and associates and interests in jointly controlled 
entities are measured at cost net, where appropriate, of any accumulated impairment 
losses. The impairment is calculated as the difference between the carrying amount and 
recoverable amount, which is the higher of its current fair value minus the cost of sale 
and the present value of the estimated cash flow from the investment. Unless there is 
better evidence of the recoverable amount, it is based on the value of the equity of the 
investee, adjusted by the unrealised gains existing at the measurement date. 

Lastly, available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value and the gains and 
losses arising from changes in fair value are recognised in equity until the asset is 
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disposed of or it is determined that it has become (permanently) impaired, at which time 
the cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in equity are recognised in the net 
profit or loss for the year. In this regard, and for securities representing share capital, 
(permanent) impairment is deemed to exist if the market value of the asset has fallen by 
more than 40% or if there has been a prolonged drop in market value over a specified 
period without the value having recovered. 

At least at each reporting date the Foundation performs impairment tests on its financial 
assets for which there were indications of impairment. Objective evidence of impairment 
is considered to exist when the recoverable amount of the financial asset is lower than 
its carrying amount. When this occurs, the impairment loss is recognised in the income 
statement. 

The Foundation derecognises financial assets when the rights to the cash flows from the 
related financial asset expire or are transferred, and when substantially all the risks and 
rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred.  

Financial liabilities 

Financial liabilities include accounts payable by the Foundation that have arisen from 
the purchase of goods or services in the normal course of the Foundation’s business and 
those which, not having commercial substance, cannot be classed as derivative financial 
instruments.  

Accounts payable are initially recognised at the fair value of the consideration received, 
adjusted for the directly attributable transaction costs. These liabilities are subsequently 
measured at amortised cost.  

Any liability derivative financial instruments are measured at fair value using the same 
methods as those described above for held-for-trading financial assets.  

The Foundation derecognises financial liabilities when the obligations giving rise to them 
cease to exist. 

c) Receivables and payables for own activities- 

1. Receivables for own activities: these include collection rights that arise in carrying 
out its own activities with beneficiaries, users, sponsors and affiliates. 
 

2. Payables for own activities: these include obligations arising from granting aid and 
other assistance to the Entity’s beneficiaries and to suppliers for the provision of 
services in compliance with its corporate purpose. 

Initial and subsequent measurement of receivables 

Payments, donations and other similar aid from sponsors, affiliates or other debtors, 
maturing in the short term, that give rise to a collection right that is recognised at its 
nominal value. If the maturity date exceeds the aforementioned period, they are 
recognised at present value. The difference between the present value and the 
nominal value of the receivable is recognised as financial income in the income 
statement in accordance with the amortised cost method. 
The Foundation makes the necessary valuation adjustments when there is objective 
evidence of an impairment loss on these assets. For such purpose, the impairment 
loss on the financial assets is recognised by applying the amortised cost method. 
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Initial and subsequent measurement of payables 

The aid and other assistance granted by the Entity to its beneficiaries and the 
accounts payable to suppliers for the provision of services, maturing in the short 
term, give rise to the recognition of a liability at its nominal value. If the maturity 
date exceeds the aforementioned period, they are recognised at present value. The 
difference between the present value and the nominal value of the payable is 
recognised as a finance cost in the income statement in accordance with the 
amortised cost method. 
If the aid is granted over several years, the liability is irrevocably and unconditionally 
recognised at the present value of the firmly committed amount. This same criteria 
is applied in those cases in which the extension of the aid is not subject to periodic 
assessments, but rather mere compliance with formal or administrative processes. 
 

d) Income tax- 

Tax expense (tax income) comprises current tax expense (current tax income) and deferred 
tax expense (deferred tax income). 

The current income tax expense is the amount payable by the Entity as a result of income 
tax settlements for a given year. The tax credits and other tax advantages, excluding 
withholdings and prepayments, and the tax losses available for carryforward and actually used 
in the year, give rise to a smaller current tax amount. 

The deferred tax expense or income corresponds to the recognition and derecognition of 
deferred tax assets and liabilities. They include the timing differences, which are identified as 
any amounts expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying 
amounts of assets and liabilities and their tax base, and tax loss and tax credit carryforwards. 
Such amounts are recognised at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the timing 
difference or credit when the asset is realised or the liability is settled. 

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for the timing differences, except for those arising from 
the initial recognition of goodwill or other assets and liabilities in a transaction that does not 
affect the tax result or book result and is not a business combination. 

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is considered probable that the Entity, 
or the tax group to which the Entity belongs, will have taxable profits in the future against 
which the deferred tax assets can be utilised.  

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arising from transactions debited or credited directly in 
equity are also recognised in equity as the balancing entry. 

At each accounting close, the recognised deferred tax assets are reassessed and appropriate 
adjustments made to the extent that there are doubts regarding their future recovery. 
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are also reassessed and are recognised to the extent that it 
has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be 
recovered. 

e) Income and expenses- 

Income and expenses are recognised on an accrual basis, i.e. when the real flow of goods or 
services relating to the item arises, regardless of when the resulting monetary or financial 
flow arises. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received, net of 
discounts and taxes. 

Revenue from sales is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the 
goods sold have been transferred to the buyer, and the Company retains neither continuing 
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managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective control 
over the goods sold. 

Revenue from the rendering of services is recognised by reference to the stage of completion 
of the transaction at the end of the reporting period, provided the outcome of the transaction 
can be estimated reliably. 

The interest received from financial assets is recognised using the effective interest rate 
method and the dividend is recognised when the shareholder's right to receive it is declared. 
In any case, interest and dividends from financial assets accrued after the date of acquisition 
are recognised as income in the income statement. 

Expenses and income of non-profit organisations 

1. Expenses. 

1.1 General criteria for recognition. 

The expenses incurred by the Entity will be recognised in the income statement for the year 
in which they are incurred, regardless of the date on which the financial flow takes place. In 
particular, the aid granted by the Entity is recognised when it is approved. 

1.2 Rules on the timing of recognition. 

The recognition of these expenses occasionally differs pending the fulfilment of certain 
circumstances necessary for their accrual, which allow them to be definitively recognised in 
the income statement. 

1.3 Multi-year expenses. 

The aid finally granted by the Entity, such as that through collaboration agreements and 
other committed multi-year expenses, is recognised in the income statement for the year in 
which the aid granted was approved with a charge to a liability account for the present value 
of the obligation assumed. 

1.4 Specific criteria applicable to expenditures incurred for the organisation of future events. 

In accordance with that set forth in section 1.1, expenditures relating to the organisation of 
future events (exhibitions, congresses, conferences, etc.) are recognised in the Entity’s 
income statement as an expense on the date they are incurred, unless they relate to the 
acquisition of property, plant and equipment, rights to organise the aforementioned event or 
any other concept that meets the definition of an asset. 

2. Income. 

2.1 Income from the delivery of goods or the provision of services is measured at the agreed-
upon amount. 
 

2.2 Income from fund-raising promotions with sponsors and collaborators is recognised 
when the campaigns and acts take place. 
 

2.3 In any case, the Entity recognises the necessary accruals. 
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f) Provisions and contingencies- 

When preparing the financial statements, a distinction was made between: 

- Provisions: credit balances covering present obligations arising from past events whose 
cancellation could lead to a cash outflow but whose amount and/or cancellation are 
uncertain. 

- Contingent liabilities: possible obligations that arise from past events and whose existence 
will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or two future events 
not wholly within the Foundation’s control. 

The financial statements include all the provisions with respect to which it is considered that 
it is more likely than not that the obligation will have to be settled. Contingent liabilities are 
not recognised in the financial statements, but rather are disclosed, unless the possibility of 
an outflow in settlement is considered to be remote. 
 
Provisions are measured at the present value of the best possible estimate of the amount 
required to settle or transfer the obligation, taking into account the information available on 
the event and its consequences. Any adjustments that arise from discounting these estimates 
are recognised as an expense. 

g) Pension obligations and retirement and early retirement bonuses- 

The collective labour agreement of the ”la Caixa” Banking Foundation stipulates that active 
employees may participate in a group pension plan. Until 31 December 2016, contributions 
were distributed between the Entity and the employees and from 1 January 2017 
contributions to the collective pension fund are made by the Entity only. 

On 4 December 2015 the first collective labour agreement was entered into, effective from 
1 January 2016 until 31 December 2017. This agreement stipulated that for 2016 and 2017 
the Entity’s contribution to the group pension plan would be 6.5% and 7.5%, respectively, 
and the employee’s contribution would be 0.5% and 0%, respectively. 

Further, 19 December 2017 the Foundation's second collective labour agreement was 
entered into, effective from 1 January 2018 until 31 December 2020. This agreement 
approves an increase in the Entity's contribution to the group pension from 7.5% to 8%, 
with no contributions from employees. 

The contributions made by the ”la Caixa” Banking Foundation are recognised under “Staff 
expenses – Employee benefit costs” in the income statement for the related year (see Note 
13.4). 

In addition, the ”la Caixa” Banking Foundation took out a risk policy with VidaCaixa relating 
to disability, death of a spouse or death of a parent for active employees that are covered by 
the group pension plan. The amount of the risk policy premium is reviewed on an annual 
basis and recognised under “Staff expenses – Employee benefit costs” in the accompanying 
income statement.  

The first collective labour agreement valid until 31 December 2017 stipulates that employees 
will receive an extraordinary bonus of three monthly salary payments upon retirement. This 
obligation is covered by an insurance policy with VidaCaixa. Following the implementation 
of the new collective agreement in 2018, this extraordinary bonus was replaced with a 0.5% 
increase in the Entity's contribution to the group pension fund. 
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On 14 May 2013, the former ”la Caixa” Foundation entered into a new labour agreement 
through which it continued the early retirement programme for its employees that began in 
2005. This new agreement envisaged the payment of between 90% and 80% of the salary 
and contributions defined in the group pension plan for employees over 58 years of age. The 
present value of the cost of the obligations in respect of wages, salaries, social security costs, 
defined pension plan contributions, etc., up until the age of retirement agreed upon with the 
employees under the programmes, is covered by provisions made to a specific fund 
recognised under “Obligations for non-current employee benefits” and “Current 
provisions”, which amounted to EUR 941 thousand and EUR 865 thousand at 31 December 
2017 (EUR 1,719 thousand and EUR 1,128 thousand at 31 December 2016), respectively, in 
the accompanying balance sheet (see Note 9). There were no new early-retirement 
agreements entered into after 2013. 

h) Termination benefits- 

Under current labour legislation, the Entity is required to make severance payments to 
employees whose employment is terminated under certain conditions. Severance payments 
that may be reasonably quantified are expensed in the year in which a valid expectation 
against the third parties affected concerning the dismissal is created. 

i) Grants, donations and bequests received- 

Non-refundable grants, donations and bequests are generally recognised directly in the 
Entity’s equity to be subsequently reclassified to surplus for the year as income on a 
systematic and rational basis in proportion to the expenses arising from the grant, donation 
or bequest, i.e., they are recognised as income in the income statement as the related expenses 
are incurred. 
 
Monetary grants, donations and bequests are measured at fair value of the amount awarded. 
 
All grants received in 2017 have been formalized through an individualized concession 
agreement, being recorded at the time of the grant as repayable, and subsequently considered 
as non-refundable as related expenses occur. 
 
In 2017, the ”la Caixa” Banking Foundation considered no grants awarded to be non-
refundable, as there is an individual concession agreement in place. 
 
In October 2013 the European Commission awarded the former ”la Caixa” Foundation a 
non-refundable grant, which was recognised directly in equity, to finance the execution and 
coordination of a Responsible Research and Innovation project (RRI Tools), for a total of 
EUR 1,005 thousand, in accordance with the agreement entered into with the European 
Commission and the other entities participating in the project. In 2016 the amount of the 
non-refundable grant relating to this project was increased by EUR 83 thousand, thus 
reaching a total of EUR 1,088 thousand. 
 
In 2016, the ”la Caixa” Banking Foundation recognised a total of EUR 436 thousand as 
income for the year under “Grants taken to surplus for the year” in the income statement, 
which related to the expenses accrued in the year for carrying out the projects described 
above.   
The RRI Tools project was completed on 31 December 2016. 

The non-refundable grants, donations and bequests that are obtained without being allocated 
to a specific purpose, for the purpose of financing the Foundation’s ordinary operating costs, 
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will be recognised directly in surplus for the year. In 2017 and 2016, the ”la Caixa” Banking 
Foundation received donations and bequests tied to the Foundation’s activity for a total of 
EUR 2,010 thousand and EUR 2,409, respectively, which were recognised under “Core 
income” in the accompanying income statement.  
 
Refundable grants, donations and bequests received are recognised as liabilities until they 
become non-refundable, which will be the moment when the conditions established for their 
concession have been met and there is no reasonable doubt that they will be received. 
In 2017, the ”la Caixa” Banking Foundation received various refundable grants, considered 
to be refundable at 31 December 2017, recognised under “Non-current payables” in the 
accompanying balance sheet. Of all the refundable grants awarded, a total of EUR 10,741 
thousand were taken to surplus for the year (EUR 301 thousand in 2016) (see Note 6.3). 

j) Related party transactions- 

The Foundation performs all its transactions with related parties on an arm’s-length basis. 
Furthermore, transfer prices are adequately supported and, therefore, the Entity considers 
that there are no material risks in this connection that might give rise to significant liabilities 
in the future. 

(5) INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

The breakdown of intangible assets and property, plant and equipment, and the related 
accumulated amortisation and depreciation, as well as the changes in 2017 and 2016, are as 
follows:  

Intangible Assets

Balance at 31 Additions Balance at 31

December or charges Disposals Transfers December

2016 for the year for the year for the year 2017

Cost

Computer software 9,786 3,530 - - 13,316

Total cost 9,786 3,530 - - 13,316

Accumulated amortisation

Computer software (2,988) (1,805) - - (4,793)

Total accumulated amortisation (2,988) (1,805) - - (4,793)

TOTAL NET 6,798 1,725 - - 8,523

Thousands of euros

Intangible Assets

Balance at 31 Additions Balance at 31

December or charges Disposals Transfers December

2015 for the year for the year for the year 2016

Cost

Computer software 6,650 3,136 - - 9,786

Total cost 6,650 3,136 - - 9,786

Accumulated amortisation

Computer software (1,764) (1,224) - - (2,988)

Total accumulated amortisation (1,764) (1,224) - - (2,988)

TOTAL NET 4,886 1,912 - - 6,798

Thousands of euros
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The additions to intangible assets in 2017 relate mainly to the investments made in 
management software, as well as the investments made to develop the website.  

Property, plant and equipment

Balance at 31 

December 

2016

Additions or 

charges for 

the year

Disposals for 

the year

Transfers for 

the year

Balance at 31 

December 

2017

Cost

Land 37.404 (3) 37.401

Buildings 240.169 321 (10) 14.957 255.437

Facilities 107.650 5.447 (3) 4.740 117.834

Furniture and office equipment 26.373 351 791 27.515

Transport equipment 1.991 - - - 1.991

Computer hardware 29.259 563 547 30.369

Other non-current assets 107.512 1.407 (25) 1.501 110.395

Work in progress 25.932 9.933 - (22.536) 13.329

Total cost 576.290 18.022 (41) - 594.271

Accumulated depreciation

Buildings (63.073) (4.967) 4 - (68.036)

Facilities (87.076) (4.621) 3 - (91.694)

Furniture and office equipment (23.189) (775) - (23.964)

Transport equipment (1.522) (224) - - (1.746)

Computer hardware (24.325) (1.777) - (26.102)

Other non-current assets (11.293) (1.225) - - (12.518)

Total accumulated amortisation (210.478) (13.589) 7 - (224.060)

IMPAIRMENT (270) - - - (270)

TOTAL, NET 365.542 4.433 (34) - 369.941

Thousands of euros

 

Property, plant and equipment

Balance at 31 

December 

2015

Additions or 

charges for 

the year

Disposals for 

the year

Transfers for 

the year

Balance at 31 

December 

2016

Cost

Land 38,185 6 (822) 35 37,404

Buildings 241,018 2 (911) 60 240,169

Facilities 100,446 3,876 (475) 3,803 107,650

Furniture and office equipment 26,048 362 (203) 166 26,373

Transport equipment 1,991 - - - 1,991

Computer hardware 27,684 1,131 (14) 458 29,259

Other non-current assets 105,177 606 - 1,729 107,512

Work in progress 16,495 15,688 - (6,251) 25,932

Total cost 557,044 21,671 (2,425) - 576,290

Accumulated depreciation

Buildings (58,816) (4,725) 468 - (63,073)

Facilities (83,399) (4,143) 466 - (87,076)

Furniture and office equipment (22,690) (700) 201 - (23,189)

Transport equipment (1,231) (291) - - (1,522)

Computer hardware (22,499) (1,840) 14 - (24,325)

Other non-current assets (10,381) (912) - - (11,293)

Total accumulated amortisation (199,016) (12,611) 1,149 - (210,478)

IMPAIRMENT (270) - - - (270)

TOTAL, NET 357,758 9,060 (1,276) - (365,542)

Thousands of euros
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The main additions to property, plant and equipment in 2017 relate to the construction of 
the new CaixaForum centre in Seville for EUR 2,013 thousand; the investments made to 
refurbish and/or improve several properties in which the Entity carries out its activities for 
a total of EUR 13,288 thousand, including the Cap Roig center auditorium in Girona or the 
permanent exhibition room at CosmoCaixa Barcelona; and to the construction in progress 
of a mobile exhibition unit for EUR 843 thousand.  

The transfers in 2017 relate mainly to the classification to the related items of property, plant 
and equipment of the investments made during the construction, renovation and 
refurbishment period for the Foundation’s various activity centres. The most significant 
transfers relates to CaixaForum Seville, which was inaugurated in March 2017. 

“Other non-current assets” mainly includes the collection of works of art owned by the ”la 
Caixa” Banking Foundation with a carrying amount of EUR 93,267 thousand.  

As indicated in the tables above, in 2017 a total of EUR 15,394 thousand were recognised in 
the income statement for the amortisation and depreciation charge relating to intangible 
assets and property, plant and equipment (EUR 13,835 thousand in 2016).  

At 31 December 2017, the Entity had intangible assets and property, plant and equipment 
that were fully amortised or depreciated and still in use amounting to a gross total of EUR 
125,242 thousand and EUR 1,354 thousand, respectively (EUR 116,425 thousand and EUR 
1,071 thousand, respectively, at 31 December 2016).  

(6) FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

6.1) Current and non-current investments in Group companies and associates 

Equity instruments 

The most significant information relating to non-current investments in Group companies 
and associates at the end of 2017 and 2016 is as follows: 
 

Grupo Criteria Caixa, S.A.U. 
 

 

(Thousands of euros)
% Share

Year interest capital

2017 100.00 1,834,166 14,377,106 1,458,728 10,467,353

2016 100.00 1,834,166 14,162,341 1,004,756 10,467,353

 Cost of direct 

ownership interest Reserves Profit/(loss)

 

Criteria Caixa, S.A.U., with registered office at Plaza Weyler, 3, Palma de Mallorca,  is the 
investment holding company that manages all of the ”la Caixa” Banking Foundation Group’s 
shareholdings. 

At 31 December 2017, the net asset value (NAV) of Criteria amounted to EUR 18,335 
thousand (EUR 14,913 thousand at 31 December 2016).  
In 2017, Criteria distributed a total of EUR 400,000 thousand in dividends to the ”la Caixa” 
Banking Foundation, which were recognised under “Financial income from investments in 
equity instruments in Group company and associates” in the accompanying income 
statement (EUR 375,000 thousand in 2016) (see Note 12). 
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There were no changes under “Non-current investments in Group companies and associates 
– Equity instruments” in 2017 or 2016. 
 
Other financial assets 

The current balance of “Other financial assets” at 31 December 2017 relates to the position 
arising from the final settlement of the income tax for 2016 amounting to EUR 139,301 
thousand held with the head of the tax group, CaixaBank, which was settled in February 2018 
(see Notes 11 and 12.2). 

6.2) Current and non-current financial assets 

Equity instruments 

At 31 December 2017 and 2016, the non-current balance recognised under “Equity 
instruments” included the ownership interest representing 2.25% of the share capital of 
Corporación Empresarial de Extremadura, S.A. amounting to EUR 251 thousand, which 
represents 25% of the amount paid for all shares owned by the ”la Caixa” Banking 
Foundation.  

In 2016, EUR 487 thousand were recognised under “Impairment losses and gains/(losses) 
on disposal of financial instruments” on the accompanying income statement due to the sale 
of the shares acquired by the ”la Caixa” Banking Foundation in the research company Aelix 
Therapeutics, S.L. in 2015. 

The current balance recognised under this heading at 31 December 2017 and 2016, in the 
amount of EUR 413 thousand and EUR 410 thousand, respectively, relates to shares and 
investment funds held by the Foundation. 

Loans to entities 

In 2015 the ”la Caixa” Banking Foundation sold the Vic Cultural Centre for a total of EUR 
1,080 thousand. At the end of 2017 a total of EUR 540 thousand recognised under “Non-
current financial assets” and a total of EUR 108 thousand recognised under “Current 
financial assets” had yet to be received. 

The loans receivable generated as a result of this transaction for a total of EUR 648 thousand 
will be repaid through annual payments of EUR 108 thousand until the loan’s maturity date 
in 2023. No interest is accrued on these loans. 

Other financial assets 

This heading includes several long-term guarantees provided by the ”la Caixa” Banking 
Foundation, for the amount of EUR 311 thousand, at 31 December 2017 (EUR 417 
thousand at year-end 2016). 

The balance recognised under this heading in 2016 includes an amount of EUR 813 thousand 
relating to the VAT refund for 2008 corresponding to the former Caixa de Girona 
Foundation. 
On 20 January 2017, the ”la Caixa” Banking Foundation received notice from the Central 
Economic-Administrative Tribunal dismissing this request. The Foundation therefore took 
out a corresponding provision for EUR 813 thousand (see Notes 9 and 11). 
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Other non-current and current accounts receivable from public administrations 

This heading includes mainly the grants considered to be refundable awarded to the 
Foundation by public bodies, yet to be received in the long and short term, amounting to 
EUR 48,098 thousand and EUR 3,561 thousand, respectively, at year-end 2017 (EUR 31,858 
thousand and EUR 2,710 thousand at year-end 2016). 
These grants are recognised under “Non-current payables” and “Current payables” in the 
accompanying balance for the related amounts (see Note 6.3). 
 
6.3) Financial liabilities (current and non-current) 

Other non-current and current financial liabilities 

As of December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, the other long and short-term financial 
liabilities are as follows: 
 

Debt transformable into grants, donations and bequests 29,892 16,542 35,480 1,028 
Other financial liabilities 42,830 -              31,773 -                    

Total 72,722 16,542   67,253 1,028

Long term

Thousands of euros

Short term Long term Short term

31/12/2017 31/12/2016

 
 

 Debt transformable into grants, donations and bequests 

“Other financial liabilities” includes the grants awarded by the European Commission to the 
”la Caixa” Banking Foundation, initially considered to be refundable, where there is an 
individual concession agreement. However, the conditions established for these grants to be 
considered non-refundable and, therefore, recognised in equity have not yet been met (see 
Note 4 i). 

Changes in 2017 and 2016 are as follows: 

Refundable grants

Balance at 31 Transfers between Allocation to Balance at 31

December Additions Disposals long and short to December

Body 2016 for the year for the year term profit or loss 2017

International 35,480 17,841 - (23,429) - 29,892

Long-term debt 

transformable into grants
35,480 17,841 - (23,429) - 29,892

International 1,028 2,826 - 23,429 (10,741) 16,542

Short-term debt 

transformable into grants
1,028 2,826 - 23,429 (10,741) 16,542

Thousands of euros
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Refundable grants

Ente

International - 36,809 - (1,329) - 35,480

Long-term debt 

transformable into grants
- 36,809 - (1,329) - 35,480

International - - - 1,329 (301) 1,028

Short-term debt 

transformable into grants
- - - 1,329 (301) 1,028

Thousands of euros

Balance at 31 

December 2015

Additions 

for the 

year

Disposals for 

the year

Transfers 

between long 

and short term

Allocation to 

profit or loss

Balance at 

31 December 

2016

 

The main grants awarded to the Foundation in 2017 are as follows: 
 

- POEJ: An Operational Youth Employment Programme ("POEJ"), subsidising 
companies and entities that hire new workers to help generate stable quality 
employment for young people on the state's Youth Guarantee Scheme. The grant 
was awarded in May 2017 for a total of EUR 20,000 thousand. 
 

- EIT-Health: a programme promoting the creation of companies in the scientific field, 
by providing expert advice and subsidising research centre projects to transform 
scientific knowledge into companies. The grant was awarded in August 2017 for a 
total of EUR 240 thousand. 

 
The main grants awarded to the Foundation in 2016 were as follows: 
 

- POISES: Spanish Operational Programme for Social Inclusion and Social Economy, 
which subsidises projects aimed at implementing measures that favour the active 
inclusion of people at risk of social exclusion through integrated social and labour 
market inclusion paths that enable their integration into the job market. The grant 
was awarded in December 2016 for a total of EUR 31,800 thousand. 
 

- Inphinit: a PhD scholarship programme aimed at including young international 
researchers in fields related to engineering, physics, mathematics, and health and/or 
life sciences in the finest research centres in Spain. The grant was awarded in May 
2016 for a total of EUR 4,708 thousand. 
 

In 2017 and 2016, the ”la Caixa” Banking Foundation recognised a total of EUR 10,741 
thousand and EUR 301 thousand respectively as income for the year under “Grants taken 
to surplus for the year” in the income statement, which relates to the expenses accrued in 
the year for carrying out those projects whose expenses may be subsidised.  

 Other financial liabilities 

The non-current balance of “Other financial liabilities” mainly includes EUR 39,639 
thousand and EUR 26,792 thousand at 31 December 2017 and 2016, respectively, relating 
to obligations arising from the multi-annual collaboration agreements entered into by the 
Foundation with other entities that will take effect in the long term.  
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6.4) Non-current and current payables to Group companies and associates 

Non-current payables to Group companies and associates 

The detail of this heading in the balance sheets at 31 December 2017 and 2016 is as follows: 
 

(Thousands of euros) 31/12/2017 31/12/2016 

Non-current payables to Group companies and associates     

 Interest-bearing loans and borrowings (Note 12.2) 46,000 66,000 

 Other payables to Group companies (Note 12.2) 2,800 5,800 

     

Total     48,800 71,800 

At 31 December 2017 and 2016, the balance of “Interest-bearing loans and borrowings” relates 
to a loan held with CaixaBank associated with the agreements entered into in 2013 between 
Caixa d’Estalvis i Pensions de Barcelona ”la Caixa”, CaixaBank and the Council of Europe 
Development Bank (CEB), whereby the latter offers a finance facility for the development of 
welfare projects for a total amount of EUR 100,000 thousand carried out through CaixaBank.  

The loan conditions are as follows: 

 EUR 35,000 thousand drawn down on 18 March 2013 at a fixed interest rate of 
1.69% and maturing on 18 March 2020 (with a two-year grace period). 

 EUR 35,000 thousand drawn down on 3 June 2013, bearing a fixed interest rate of 
1.37% and maturing on 3 June 2020 (with a 2-year grace period). 

 EUR 30,000 thousand drawn down on 1 December 2014 at a fixed interest rate of 
0.87% and maturing on 1 December 2021 (with a two-year grace period). 

On 8 February 2018 a novation modifying but not discharging a loan agreement was signed 
by CaixaBank S.A., Criteria Caixa S.A.U. and the Caixa d’Estalvis i Pensions de Barcelona, 
”la Caixa”, Banking Foundation, whereby CaixaBank cedes to Criteria Caixa its contractual 
position in the Loan Agreement signed on 12 February 2013. 

The interest accrued in 2017 amounted to EUR 965 thousand (EUR 1,188 thousand in 2016) 
and was recognised under “Financial costs” in the accompanying income statements (see 
Note 13.3). 

The detail of the capital repayments is summarised in the table below: 

(Thousands of euros) 
      

Year       Amount 

  2016     14,000 

  2017     20,000 

  2018 (Note 12.2)   20,000 

  2019     20,000 

  2020     20,000 

  2021     6,000 

     

Total       100,000 

At 31 December 2017, the EUR 20,000 thousand payable in 2018 was recognised under 
“Current payables to Group companies and associates” in the accompanying balance sheet. 
The remaining EUR 46,000 thousand repayable upon maturity in 2021 were recognised at 
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31 December 2017 under “Non-current payables to Group companies and associates” in the 
accompanying balance sheet (see Note 12.2).  

At 31 December 2017 and 2016, the balance recognised under “Other payables to Group 
companies” amounting to EUR 2,800 thousand and EUR 5,800 thousand, respectively, 
relates to the non-current amount payable to Inmo Criteria Caixa, S.A. on the respective 
dates by virtue of the collaboration agreement entered into on 10 December 2014 between 
the Foundation and the company in order to carry out the Affordable Housing programme 
for a total of EUR 16,800 thousand (see Note 12.2). 

Current payables to Group companies and associates 

The balance recognised under this heading at 31 December 2017 relates mainly to the current 
amount repayable for the loan held with CaixaBank mentioned in the previous section and 
the interest payable amounting to EUR 20,000 thousand and EUR 143 thousand, 
respectively (EUR 20,000 thousand and EUR 187 thousand at 31 December 2016).  

It also includes the current balance payable to Inmo Criteria Caixa, S.A. of EUR 3,000 
thousand (EUR 3,600 thousand in 2016), by virtue of the collaboration agreement mentioned 
in the previous section (see Note 12.2).  

6.5) Information on the nature and level of risk of financial instruments  

The ”la Caixa” Banking Foundation finances its activities basically through the dividends 
received from its subsidiary Criteria Caixa, S.A.U. and the amount remaining to be applied 
to the Foundation’s activities from the surpluses of previous years. 
 
At 31 December 2017, the balance sheet of the ”la Caixa” Banking Foundation disclosed a 
working capital deficiency that the Entity plans to offset with a) the dividends that it will 
receive from its subsidiary Criteria Caixa, S.A.U. and b) the income tax refund for 2017: 
 

a) Criteria Caixa, S.A.U. is the holding company through which the ”la Caixa” Banking 
Foundation ” manages its assets and finances its social activities by generating the 
dividends necessary each year to carry out these activities and meet the obligations 
assumed by the Foundation. At 31 December 2017, Criteria had sufficient liquid 
assets to cover its capital requirements in 2018 in order to carry out the welfare fund 
projects of the ”la Caixa” Banking Foundation.   

 
b) The income tax refund for 2017 amounting to EUR 142,664 thousand was 

recognised at the end of the year under “Deferred tax assets” and will be reclassified 
as current at 31 December 2018 once the related income tax settlement is filed (see 
Note 11). 

 
The Entity’s other accounts receivable from third parties are not significant and do not entail 
a credit risk that may affect the Foundation’s solvency. 
The market risk to which the ”la Caixa” Banking Foundation ” is exposed is concentrated in 
the 100% ownership interest that it holds in its investee Criteria Caixa, S.A.U. (see Note 6.1). 
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(7) CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

The breakdown of this heading in the accompanying balance sheets at 31 December 2017 
and 2016 is as follows: 
 

(Thousands of euros) 

31/12/2017 31/12/2016 

Loans and advances to credit institutions 36,469 36,242 

Demand deposits (Note 12) 36,469 36,242 

Total 36,469 36,242 

 
“Loans and advances to credit institutions” relates to the current accounts held mainly at 
CaixaBank.  

In 2017, the ”la Caixa” Banking Foundation’s opened no term deposits.  In 2016, the 
Foundation set up several term deposits with maturities of between 6 and 38 days, and an 
effective interest rate of 0.10%. 

The return obtained on the balances held in the current accounts and on the term deposits 
amounted to EUR 25 thousand in 2017 (EUR 55 thousand in 2016), which are recognised 
in the related heading of the accompanying income statement (see Note 12).  

 (8) EQUITY AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 

The changes in “Equity” in 2017 and 2016 were as follows:  

(Thousands  of euros)

Welfare Fund 5,868,000 - - - 5,868,000 

Reserves 5,049,177 - 132 - 5,049,309 

Surplus from previous years 62,040 65,791 - - 127,831 

  Retained earnings 62,040 65,791 - - 127,831 

Surplus for the year (Note 3) 65,791 -65,791 - 73,149 73,149 

Total shareholders’ equity 11,045,008 - 132 73,149 11,118,289 

Distribution 

of profi t

Profi t/(loss ) 

for the year

Balance at 

31/12/2016
Other

Balance at 

31/12/2017

(Thousands  of euros)

Welfare Fund 5,868,000 - - - 5,868,000 

Reserves 5,049,177 - - 5,049,177 

Surplus from previous years - 62,040 - - 62,040 

   Retained earnings - 62,040 - - 62,040 

Surplus for the year (Note 3) 62,040 -62,040 - 65,791 65,791 

Total shareholders’ equity 10,979,217 - - 65,791 11,045,008 

Distribution 

of profi t

Profi t/(loss ) 

for the year

Balance at 

31/12/2015
Other

Balance at 

31/12/2016

 

The Welfare Fund consists of 23,168,578 shares of Criteria Caixa, S.A.U. contributed as non-
monetary founding capital at the time of the transformation of Caixa d’Estalvis i Pensions 
de Barcelona, ”la Caixa” into a banking foundation, recognised in “Reserves”, for an 
equivalent carrying amount recognised by ”la Caixa” at 31 December 2013 of EUR 5,868 
million. 
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Pursuant to that established in Article 12 of Foundations Law 50/2002, of 26 December, in 
March 2014 an independent expert issued a report concluding that the value of the shares 
assigned to the welfare fund was at least EUR 5,868 thousand. 

In addition, on 14 April 2014 the Protectorate of the Ministry of Economy, Industry and 
Competitiveness issued a favourable report regarding the adequacy of the endowment of the 
”la Caixa” Banking Foundation in accordance with that set forth in Article 35 of Foundations 
Law 50/2002.  

In February 2017 the Foundation's reserves were increased by EUR 132 thousand following 
the en bloc transfer of the assets and liabilities of Fundación Privada Arte y Mecenazgo to 
the ”la Caixa” Banking Foundation when the former was dissolved and wound up (see Note 
12.1). 

On 18 May 2017, the Board of Trustees of the ”la Caixa” Banking Foundation approved the 
distribution of surplus profit for 2016 to retained earnings. 

 (9) PROVISIONS  

The detail of this heading in the accompanying balance sheet at 31 December 2017 and 2016 
and the changes therein are as follows: 
 

2017

Obligations for non-current 
employee benefits (Note 4g) 1,719 -                          -               (778) 941
Other provisions 1,103 -                          (813) -                    290

Total non-current provisions 2,822 -                          (813) (778) 1,231

Current provisions (Note 4g) 1,128 (18)                    (1,023) 778 865

Total current provisions 1,128 (18)                    (1,023) 778 865

Balance at 

31/12/2016

Balance at 

31/12/2017

Thousands of euros

Adjustments for 

the year

Amounts 

used in the 

Transfers for 

the year

Reductions

 
2016

Obligations for non-current 
employee benefits (Note 4g) 2,786 -                          -               (1,067) 1,719
Other provisions 1,112 -                          -               (9) 1,103

Total non-current provisions 3,898 (1,076) 2,822

Current provisions (Note 4g) 1,490 -                          (1,429) 1,067 1,128
Other provisions -                -                          (9) 9 -             

Total current provisions 1,490 -                          (1,438) 1,076 1,128

Balance at 

31/12/2015

Balance at 

31/12/2016

Thousands of euros

Adjustments for 

the year

Amounts 

used in the 

Transfers for 

the year

Reductions

 
 
The balance of the provisions for employee benefits includes the present value of the non-
current and current balances payable at 31 December 2017 and 2016 for the obligations 
assumed in prior years by the former ”la Caixa” Foundation, already liquidated, with regard 
to the early retirement of certain employees. The amounts used in accordance with the early 
retirement agreements amounting to EUR 975 thousand and EUR 1,429 thousand relate to 
payments made in 2017 and 2016, respectively.  
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The application in 2017 recognised under “Other provisions” for the amount of EUR 813 
thousand, corresponds to the cancellation of the provision made in prior years by the former 
”la Caixa” Foundation of Girona in connection with the process of requesting a VAT refund 
for 2008, after notification was received in January from the Central Economic-
Administrative Tribunal dismissing the request for the VAT refund (see Note 6.2).  

 (10) PAYABLES TO BENEFICIARIES 

This heading on the liabilities side of the accompanying balance sheet includes the current 
amounts payable at the end of the year committed to beneficiaries in certain collaboration 
agreements relating to the programmes carried out by the ”la Caixa” Banking Foundation. 

The breakdown of the amounts per programme at 31 December 2017 and 2016 is as follows: 
 

31/12/2017 31/12/2016

Programme to combat child poverty 44,060 50,818

Programme to promote job opportunities 8,146 8,873

Programme to foster social initiatives 8,145 10,637

Programme to recover natural spaces 3,516 5,295

International aid programme for vulnerable countries 10,552 8,969

Scientific research and dissemination programme 19,827 9,520

Accessible housing/social renting programme 1,616 2,662

Scholarships programme 7,246 6,536

Collaboration agreements with Public Administrations to support the 

development of social and cultural programmes
16,941 21,886

Other collaboration agreements with entities 4,921 6,248

Total payables to beneficiaries 124,970 131,444

Thousands of euros

 

The changes to this heading in 2017 and 2016 were as follows: 
 

2017

(Thousands of euros) Balance Balance

31/12/2016  31/12/2017

Payables  to beneficiaries 131,444 254,040 (254,109) (6,405) 124,970

Total changes in the year 131,444 254,040 (254,109) (6,405) 124,970

Decreases due to 

payments
Increases Repayments

 
 

2016

(Thousands of euros) Balance at Balance at

31/12/2015  31/12/2016

Payables  to beneficiaries 134,358 99,951 (101,147) (1,718) 131,444 

Total changes in the year 134,358 99,951 (101,147) (1,718) 131,444 

Decreases due 

to payments
Increases Repayments
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(11) TAX POSITION 

Tax consolidation 

The ”la Caixa” Banking Foundation has filed consolidated income tax returns since 1991. 

Following the entry into force of Law 26/2013, of 27 December, on savings banks and 
banking foundations, and given that in 2013 the ”la Caixa” Banking Foundation’s 
shareholding in CaixaBank was reduced to below 70%, the ”la Caixa” Banking Foundation 
became a subsidiary and is no longer the Parent of the consolidated tax group (this position 
now falls to CaixaBank, effective as of 1 January 2013). 

Since 2008, in accordance with the amendment of VAT Law 37/1992, of 28 December, 
introduced by Law 36/2006, of 29 November, the ”la Caixa” Banking Foundation has also 
applied the special tax scheme for groups of entities, which enables it to file consolidated 
VAT returns along with Group companies that have also chosen to adopt this special 
scheme. Since 2016 the Foundation has been a subsidiary of the Group, and CaixaBank is 
now the parent. 

Years open to tax inspection 

The inspections for 2010 to 2012 were completed this year, with no material impact for the 
”la Caixa” Banking Foundation. The Central Office for Large Taxpayers has assigned 
CaixaBank the joint and several responsibility relating thereto as successor of ”la Caixa” 
Banking Foundation's financial activities following the reorganisation in 2011. 

Accordingly, the ”la Caixa” Banking Foundation has 2013 and subsequent years open for 
review for the main taxes applicable. 

The various interpretations which can be made of the tax regulations applicable to 
transactions carried out by the Entity may give rise to certain contingent tax liabilities that 
cannot be objectively quantified. The Entity’s management considers that the tax expense 
that could arise from the various interpretations would not significantly affect the 
accompanying financial statements. 

Transactions operating under a special tax scheme 

In 2017 the ”la Caixa” Banking Foundation did not carry out any transactions under the 
special tax scheme established in chapter VII of title VII of Corporate Income Tax Law 
27/2014, of 27 November. 

Information on transactions carried out under the special tax scheme in prior years is 
disclosed in the notes on the tax position to the financial statements corresponding to those 
years. 

Tax credit for reinvestment of extraordinary profits 

Appendix 1 presents the main figures compared to previous years, pursuant to Article 42 of 
Legislative Royal Decree 4/2004, of 5 March, and Transitional Provision Twenty-Four of 
Corporate Income Tax Law 27/2014. 
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Reconciliation of accounting profit to taxable profit 

The reconciliation of the income tax expense recognised in the income statement for 2017 
and 2016 to the corresponding pre-tax profit for these years is as follows: 

(Thousands of euros)

2017 2016

Profit/(loss) before tax (1) (69,342) (71,018)

Increases/decreases due to permanent differences (406,115) (385,021)

 Non-deductible expenses 15,405 13,890

Cri teria  dividends (400,000) (375,000)

Other decreases/increases (21,520) (23,911)

Tax base (475,457) (456,039)

Tax payable (base x 30%) 142,637 136,812

Income tax rate for the year 142,637 136,812

Other adjustments (146) -

Tax adjustments (includes the derecognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities due to tax reform) - (3)

INCOME TAX (2) 142,491 136,809

Profit/(loss) after tax (1) +  (2) 73,149 65,791

 
 
In accordance with Article 24 of the revised Corporate Income Tax Law, amended by Final 
Provision Six of the Corporate Income Tax Law, effective as of 1 January 2014, maintenance 
expenses for the Welfare Fund, that under prevailing accounting legislation are recognised 
on the income statement, shall be tax deductible.  

Pursuant to the binding consultation issued by the General Directorate of Tax on 18 
November 2015, the amounts assigned by banking foundations to investments relating to 
welfare projects shall be tax deductible in the period in which they are made, even when 
capitalised for accounting purposes. The Foundation has adjusted 2017 taxable profit by 
EUR 20,856 thousand corresponding mainly to investments in intangible assets and the 
property, plant and equipment made during the year. Additionally, the depreciation and 
amortisation charge for these investments has been included in the adjustment of EUR 
15,405 thousand recognised under “Non-deductible expenses”. 

The reconciliation between accounting profit/(loss) before tax in 2017 and 2016, and 
taxable profit/(loss) for these years is shown below: 

(Thousands of euros)

Increases Decreases Amounts

Accounting profit/(loss) before tax (69,342)

Permanent differences

 Non-deductible expenses 15,405 15,405

Cri teria  dividends (400,000) (400,000)

Other (21,520) (21,520)

Temporary differences

 Other (89) (89)

Tax base (475,546)

Year 2017
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Year 2016

(Thousands of euros)

Increases Decreases Amounts

Accounting profit/(loss) before tax (71.018)

Permanent differences

 Non-deductible expenses 13.890 13.890

Cri teria  dividends (375.000) (375.000)

Other 2.871 (26.782) (23.911)

Temporary differences

 Other (646) (646)

Taxable profit/(tax loss) (456.685)
 

 

Deferred tax assets/liabilities 

Pursuant to current tax legislation, in 2017 and 2016 there were certain temporary differences 
which must be taken into account when quantifying the corresponding income tax 
expenditure. The sources and movements in deferred tax assets/liabilities recognised in the 
balance sheet at 31 December 2017 and 2016 are as follows:  
 
2017

Deferred tax assets
(Thousands of euros)

31/12/2016

Increases due 

to movements 

in the year

Decreases due 

to movements 

in the year 31/12/2017

Pens ion plan contributions 1,818 1,818

Early reti rement obl igations  27 194 (27) 194

Tax loss  carryforwards 363,533 142,664 (139,633) 366,564

Unused tax credits 40,461 (9) 40,452

Other 24 24

Total 405,863 142,858 (139,669) 409,052  
2016

Deferred tax assets
(Thousands of euros)

31/12/2015

Increases due 

to movements 

in the year

Decreases due 

to movements 

in the year 31/12/2016

Pens ion plan contributions 1,791 27 1,818

Early reti rement obl igations  221 (194) 27

Tax losses 330,721 136,832 (104,020) 363,533

Unused tax credits 40,505 (44) 40,461

Other 24 24

Total 373,262 136,859 (104,258) 405,863  

The increases in “Tax loss carryforwards” in 2017 and 2016 relate mainly to taxable profit 
for 2017 and 2016 for an amount of EUR 142,664 thousand and EUR 136,812 thousand, 
respectively. 
 
The decreases in “Tax loss carryforwards” in 2017 and 2016 relate to the settlement and 
presentation of corporate income taxes 2016 and 2015, respectively.  
 
The tax loss carryforward recorded in 2015 (EUR 104,020 thousand) was met by CaixaBank 
as parent of the tax group, while that reported in 2016 (EUR 139,633 thousand) was 
transferred to “Current investments in Group companies and associates” for the current 
balance receivable from CaixaBank (see Notes 6.1 and 12.2), which was settled in February 
2018. 
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At tax group consolidation level, a dynamic model has been developed that analyses the 
recoverability of the tax assets recognised for accounting purposes and those generated in 
subsequent periods up to the date covered by the model. The purpose of the model is to 
verify that the tax group is able to offset all tax losses and other tax assets recognised in the 
balance sheet with future taxable profits; and the best estimate of the new tax assets that can 
be generated in the future. 

The model uses the following as the most relevant estimates: 

 The forecast profit or loss for each year covered by the model. The estimates are 
consistent with the various reports used by the Group for internal management and 
for supervisory information, including certain details regarding the composition 
thereof, and, 

 The reversible nature of the main tax assets recognised on the balance sheet. 

The Group considers the information used in the model to be relevant and strategic. 

The model is updated every six months with information provided by the Group's various 
areas and an independent tax expert contracted by the Group subsequently revises and 
validates the reasonableness of the working tax assumptions used therein. 

At 31 December 2017 and 2016, the model concludes that the Group has sufficient capacity 
to recover deferred tax assets. 

In the current interest-rate environment, the nominal value of deferred tax assets does not 
different significantly from present value. 
 
At 31 December 2017 and 2016, the deferred tax liabilities were included in the tax base, and 
there were no amounts yet to be reversed: 
 
2017

Deferred tax liabilities
(Thousands of euros)

31/12/2016

Increases due to 

movements in the 

year

Decreases due to 

movements in the year 31/12/2017

El iminations  due to intragroup  transfers 3 -                              -                                3

Total 3 -                              -                                3  
 

2016

Deferred tax liabilities
(Thousands of euros)

31/12/2015

Increases due 

to movements 

in the year

Decreases due to 

movements in 

the year 31/12/2016

El iminations  due to intragroup  transfers 195 3 (195) 3

Total 195 3 (195) 3  
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(12) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

12.1) Related party transactions  

The most significant related party transactions as defined in the regulations for the 
preparation of financial statements and the Accounting Plan for non-profit organisations can 
be summarised as follows: 

 Framework agreement for the rendering by CaixaBank of certain services to the ”la 
Caixa” Banking Foundation. The main services provided, by virtue of engagement 
documents, include tax, financial and audit services, management of the corporate 
brand, among others.  

 Security services agreement between CaixaBank, S.A. and the Caixa d’Estalvis i 
Pensions de Barcelona, ”la Caixa”, Banking Foundation. 

 Lease to CaixaBank of the ”la Caixa” Banking Foundation’s offices at Avenida 
Diagonal 621-629, Barcelona. 

 Service agreement extended by CaixaBank Facilities Management, S.A. (formerly 
Suministros Urbanos y Mantenimientos, S.A.), for the management and maintenance 
of buildings owned by the ”la Caixa” Banking Foundation. 

 Framework service agreement extended by Serveis Informàtics la Caixa, S.A. (Silk), 
for the development of projects and provision of IT services. 

 Licensing agreement for brands and domain names extended by the ”la Caixa” 
Banking Foundation ”in favour of CaixaBank, under which the former extends to 
the latter a user licence for specific brands, and the right to use a number of domain 
names. 

 A loan associated with the agreements entered into between Caixa d’Estalvis i 
Pensions de Barcelona, CaixaBank and the Council of Europe Development Bank 
(CEB), whereby the latter offers a finance facility for the development of welfare 
projects for a total amount of EUR 100,000 thousand (see Note 6)1. 

 Collaboration agreement signed between ”la Caixa” Banking Foundation and Inmo 
Criteria Caixa, S.A. in the form of a non-fundable grant, for the development of the 
Accessible Housing programme (see Note 6). 

 Contributions made by the Caixa d’Estalvis i Pensions de Barcelona, ”la Caixa” 
Banking Foundation to related foundations. 

All related party transactions were performed on an arm’s length basis. 

Pursuant to that set forth in Law 26/2013, of 27 December, on savings banks and banking 
foundations, and Bank of Spain Circular 6/2015, of 17 November, on 18 May 2017 the 
Foundation's Board of Trustees approved a protocol for managing the financial investment 
between the ”la Caixa” Banking Foundation, Criteria and CaixaBank, approved by the Bank 
of Spain on 23 June 2017. 

                                                      

1 On 8 February 2018, a novation was signed modifying but not discharging a loan agreement between 
CaixaBank and ”la Caixa” Banking Foundation on 12 February 2013 (see Note 6.4). 
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On 15 March 2018, the Foundation’s Board of Trustees ratified the validity for 2018 of the 
protocol for managing the financial investment approved on 18 May 2017, which has yet to 
be approved by the Bank of Spain as of the date of authorisation for issue of these financial 
statements. 
The management protocol is published under the section “Corporate Information - 
Corporate Documentation” on the ”la Caixa” Banking Foundation’s website,  
www.fundacionbancarialacaixa.org. 
 
The main aspects governed by this management protocol are as follows: 
 

- The basic strategic lines governing the ”la Caixa” Banking Foundation’s management 
of its investment in CaixaBank. 

- Relations between the Board of Trustees and CaixaBank’s governing bodies. Criteria 
governing the appointment of CaixaBank directors by the “la Caixa” Banking 
Foundation. 

- The general criteria governing transactions between the ”la Caixa” Banking 
Foundation and CaixaBank, and the mechanisms to be introduced to prevent 
potential conflicts of interest. 

- The mechanisms to avoid the emergence of conflicts of interest caused by ”la Caixa” 
Banking Foundation’s status as an indirect shareholder of CaixaBank through 
Criteria. 

- The basic criteria relating to the assignment and use of distinctive signs and domain 
names owned by ”la Caixa” Banking Foundation by CaixaBank and the companies 
in its Group. 

- The provision for ”la Caixa” Banking Foundation to have a right of pre-emptive 
acquisition in the event of transfer by CaixaBank of Monte de Piedad, which it owns 

- The basic principles for a possible collaboration so that CaixaBank may implement 
corporate social responsibility policies through the ”la Caixa” Banking Foundation 
”and disseminate its welfare projects through the CaixaBank branch network, and 
where appropriate, through other material means. 

- The flow of adequate information to allow ”la Caixa” Banking Foundation and 
CaixaBank to prepare their financial statements and to comply with periodic 
reporting and supervisory duties with the Bank of Spain and other regulatory bodies. 

For the purpose of governing relations between the entities and their respective groups, and 
establishing the framework of the Foundation as an indirect shareholder (through Criteria) 
of CaixaBank, on 25 January 2018 the Board of Trustees of the ”la Caixa” Banking 
Foundation entered into a new internal protocol governing relations between the ”la Caixa” 
Banking Foundation, Criteria and CaixaBank.  

In addition to the aforementioned transactions, the summary of transactions performed in 
2017 and 2016 with Group companies, jointly controlled entities, associates and other related 
parties is as follows: 

http://www.fundacionbancarialacaixa.org/
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2017

Thousands  of euros

Note
”la Caixa” Banking 

Foundation Group

Criteria 

Group

Associates and 

joint ventures

Services  received - (3,227) (4,289)

Services  rendered - 71 -

Interest expenses (Note 6.4) - (724) (241)

Finance income (Note 7) - 27 6

Grants  extended (2,493) - (13,295)

Grants  received - 20 -

Dividends  received (Note 6.1) - 400,000 -

Rental  income 6 199 63

Lease expenses - (2,242) (1,043)

Income from brand - - 1,677

Financia l  income - 58 -  

2016

Thousands  of euros

Note
”la Caixa” Banking 

Foundation Group

Criteria 

Group

Associates and 

joint ventures

Services  received - (12,954) -

Services  rendered - 26 -

Interest expenses (Note 13.3) - (1,190) -

Finance income (Notes  6.2 and 7) - 544 -

Grants  extended (1,972) - (5,775)

Grants  received - 20 -

Dividends  received (Note 6.1) - 375,000 -

Rental  income - 297 -

Lease expenses - (1,589) -

Income from brand - 1,655 -  

As explained in Note 1, on 26 September 2017 the Governing Council of the European 
Central Bank (ECB) considered that Criteria had complied with the conditions set on 26 May 
2016 for the deconsolidation of CaixaBank for prudential purposes. From that date, it no 
longer exercised control or a dominant interest over CaixaBank, and therefore could no 
longer be considered its parent.  

All transactions carried out between the ”la Caixa” Banking Foundation and CaixaBank and 
its subsidiaries up to 26 September 2017 were classified as group operations. From that date 
onwards, transactions with the new CaixaBank Group have been considered as transactions 
with associates. 

Grants extended to ”la Caixa” Banking Foundation Group companies and associates 
correspond to the contributions made by the ”la Caixa” Banking Foundation to other related 
foundations for the development of their activities, with a significant representation of their 
governing bodies. 
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Key data of the main foundations considered to be related parties are as follows: 

(Thousands  of euros)

Name and mandate Regis tered office

Fundació de l'Esperança C/ Palma St. Just 4, Barcelona 57 -

Fight against poverty and socia l  exclus ion

Fundación Privada Instituto de Salud Global Barcelona C/ Rosel ló 132, Barcelona 2,705 (649)

Global  health: innovation and transfer of knowledge 

Fundació Privada Centre Joan Riu Crta. Les  Planes  km 7 2,117 27
Aid and socia l  and labour market integration of disabled 

people
Sant Gregori , Girona

Fundació Privada Institut de Recerca de la Sida-Caixa, IrsiCaixa Avda. Diagonal  621, Barcelona 840 43

Biomedica l  research for AIDS

Asociación de Voluntarios de "la Caixa" C/ Isaac Newton 26, Barcelona 183 79Promotion of the participation of current and former "la  

Ca ixa" Group employees  in chari ty actions

Fundación Profuturo C/ Jordán, 11, Madrid 19,588 35
Driving and fostering education for underprivi leged 

members  of society through digi ta l  tra ining

31/12/2017

Equity

 

Profi t/(loss ) 

for the year 

 

On 30 July 2016, the Board of Trustees of Fundación Privada Arte y Mecenazgo agreed to 
the dissolution and liquidation of this entity through the transfer en bloc of its assets and 
liabilities to the ”la Caixa” Banking Foundation. 
 
At its meeting held on 8 September 2016, the Board of Trustees of the ”la Caixa” Banking 
Foundation approved the proposal for the liquidation of Fundación Privada Arte y 
Mecenazgo and the acceptance of its assets and liabilities included in the balance sheet, 
submitted to the Foundations Protectorate of the Catalan Regional Government.  
 
The dissolution and liquidation through the transfer en bloc of the assets and liabilities was 
carried out in accordance with Article 314.4 et seq. of the Catalonia Civil Code and Articles 
29 and 30 of the bylaws of Fundación Privada Arte y Mecenazgo, which are based on the 
second cause established in letter b) of Article 335.4 of the Catalonia Civil Code. 

The full spin off of these assets and liabilities to the ”la Caixa” Banking Foundation took 
effect on 14 February 2017 when the liquidation statement of the Fundación Privada Arte y 
Mecenazgo was issued and registered. 
 
The balance sheet including the assets and liabilities of Fundación Privada Arte y Mecenazgo 
transferred to the ”la Caixa” Banking Foundation on the date of the transfer in February 
2017 was as follows 

 
Thousands 

of euros 
 

ASSETS   

   

CURRENT ASSETS 132 
 

  Cash and cash equivalents 132 
 

 TOTAL ASSETS 132  
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Thousands 

of euros 
 

LIABILITIES   

   

 EQUITY  132  

Shareholders’ equity 132  

  Welfare Fund 212  

  Surplus from previous years (54)  

  Surplus for the year (26)  

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 132 (Note 8) 

 
12.2) Balances with related parties  
 
Balances with related parties at 31 December 2017 and 2016 were as follows: 

Note
”la Caixa” Banking 

Foundation Group

Criteria 

Group

Associates and 

joint ventures

Current loans  and receivables  - 61 141,278

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 7) - - 36,469

Non-current payables  (Note 6.4) - (2,800) -

Non-current loans (Note 6.4) - - (46,000)

Current loans (Note 6.4) - - (20,000)

Current interest payable (Note 6.4) - - (143)

Current payables - (3,355) (12,206)

Thousands of euros

31/12/2017

 

Note
”la Caixa” Banking 

Foundation Group

Criteria 

Group

Associates and 

joint ventures

Current loans  and receivables  - 105,682 -

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 7) - 36,242 -

Non-current payables  (Note 6.4) - (5,800) -

Non-current loans (Note 6.4) - (66,000) -

Current loans (Note 6.4) - (20,000) -

Current interest payable (Note 6.4) - (187) -

Current payables (105) (11,489) (1,764)

Thousands of euros

31/12/2016

 

 

The Company also holds the financial investments described in Note 6. 
 
At 31 December 2017, “Current loans and receivables” included mainly the position arising 
from the final settlement of the income tax for 2016 amounting to EUR 139,301 thousand 
held with the head of the tax group, CaixaBank, which was settled in February 2018 (see 
Note 6.1). 

At 31 December 2016, "Current loans and receivables" mainly includes the position arising 
from the definitive settlement of the income tax for 2015, amounting to EUR 104,020 
thousand held with CaixaBank, the parent company of the tax group, which was settled in 
February 2017. 

“Current payables” with the Criteria Group at 31 December 2017 and 2016 mainly includes 
the balance payable at the end of the year amounting to EUR 3,000 thousand and EUR 3,600 
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thousand, respectively, to Inmo Criteria Caixa, S.A. in relation to the collaboration agreement 
for the development of the Accessible housing programme signed with the ”la Caixa” 
Banking Foundation (see Note 6.4).  
The remainder of “Current payables” with the Criteria Group, associates and jointly 
controlled entities, for the amount of EUR 12,561 thousand, corresponds mainly to 
transactions with related parties involving the service agreements described in section 12.1) 
of this note. 

12.3) Remuneration of governing bodies  

In fulfilment of the provisions of the laws governing foundations, members of the ”la Caixa” 
Banking Foundation’s Board of Trustees, listed in Note 15.1, receive no remuneration for 
carrying out their duties.  

The diems received by the trustees as members of the governing bodies of group companies 
and associates for the exercise of their duties amounted to 5,410 thousand euros in 2017 
(5,977 thousand euros in 2016), of which, the remuneration received from group companies 
was 2,987 thousand euros in 2017 (3,894 thousand euros in 2016). 

No other expenses relating to pension plans or loans or advances have been accrued. 

12.4) Remuneration of Senior Management 

Senior Management, which is not part of the Foundation’s Board of Trustees, comprises 
executives with a senior management contract, and includes a Chief Executive Officer and 
Deputy General Manager, received a total of EUR 1,251 thousand for their work in these 
capacities in 2017 (EUR 1,198 thousand in 2016). 

Contributions to pension plans and other remuneration in kind totalled EUR 233 thousand in 
2017 (EUR 226 thousand in 2016). No other expenses were accrued and no loans were granted. 

Senior Management forms part of the Foundation’s Executive Committee together with five 
other members, who, while not Senior Management, hold management roles in specific areas 
within the group. The executive committee comprises of seven members (two female and 
five male). 

(13) INCOME AND EXPENSES 

13.1) Monetary aid- 

The Foundation recognises the aid extended to other social entities under the collaboration 
agreements on social welfare projects signed with these entities and other contributions to 
specific beneficiaries under “Aid-related and other expenses” in the accompanying income 
statement. The breakdown in this heading for 2017 and 2016 is as follows: 
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Thousands of euros
2017 2016

Benefits - Scholarships programme 19.067 17.109

Collaboration agreements with social welfare organisations
   Social renting programme 17.619 16.078
   Programme to foster social initiatives 19.898 19.889
   Programme to develop regional welfare projects 45.699 45.161
   Programme to promote job opportunities 10.874 -
   Programme to combat child poverty 40.162 45.647
   Programme to recover natural spaces 2.175 2.650
   International cooperation programme 16.813 8.871
   Research programme 29.578 19.915
   Cultural programme 440 -
   Other welfare programmes 2.180 1.943
   Collaboration agreement with public administrations

   to support the development of welfare and cultural programmes
29.850 29.331

   Other collaboration agreements with entities 19.685 22.128

Total collaboration agreements with entities 234.973 211.613

Total monetary aid 254.040 228.722
 

 
13.2) External services- 
 
The breakdown of this heading in the accompanying income statements for 2017 and 2016 
is as follows: 
 
Thousands of euros

2017 2016
Production and development of activities 121,905 111,876
Leases and fees 9,866 5,882
Building maintenance and repair 6,499 6,688
Fees for professional services (Note 15.3) 10,328 18,867
Transport 2,738 2,739
Insurance premiums 1,074 1,331
Banking services 52 292
Advertising, publicity and public relations 26,551 30,139
Supplies 5,520 5,048
Expenses of governing bodies 2,821 1,110
Other services 10,335 7,772
Total external services 197,689 191,744  

“Production and development of activities” relates to the expenses incurred by the 
Foundation in carrying out its activities, such as setting up and taking down exhibitions, 
services required for centre operations, or purchases of various materials, among other 
activities. 

The amount recognised under “Expenses of governing bodies” in 2017 and 2016 relates to 
the operating expenses of the Board of Trustees and the General Secretariat. 

Operating leases 

“Leases and fees” includes the cost of the lease of the ”la Caixa” Banking Foundation’s head 
offices located at Avenida Diagonal 621 in Barcelona, to CaixaBank, through a non-
cancellable five-year lease agreement expiring on 30 September 2022 (see Note 12), for EUR 
2,653 thousand in 2017 (EUR 1,589 thousand in 2016).  
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The total amount of the future minimum lease payments to be made to the lessor under 
these agreements, excluding future rental increases, are as follows: 

- Up to 1 year: EUR 2,416 thousand. 
- Between one and five years: EUR 10,299 thousand. 

13.3) Financial expenses- 

The breakdown of this item in the accompanying statement of profit or loss for 2017 and 
2016, by types of financial transaction, is as follows: 
 

(Thousands of euros)

2017 2016

Interest-bearing loans  and borrowings  (Note 6.4) (965) (1,188)

Interest on payables  to Group companies  (Note 12) -                  (2)

Total (965) (1,190)  
 
13.4) Staff expenses- 

The detail of this heading in the income statement at 31 December 2017 and 2016 is as 
follows: 
 

2017 2016

Wages and salaries

     Sa laries 23,127 22,021

     Termination benefi ts 1,757 118

Total 24,884 22,139

Thousands of euros

 
 

2017 2016

Employee benefit costs

     Employer socia l  securi ty contributions 4,944 4,701

     Other employee benefi t costs 4,671 3,540

Total 9,615 8,241

Thousands  of euros

 
 
Compensation paid in 2017 and 2016 corresponds to individual separation agreements made 
with employees, and there was no collective restructuring and/or internal re-balancing 
agreement in place at the Foundation. 
 
The EUR 4,671 thousand recognised under “Other employee benefit costs” at 31 December 
2017 includes EUR 1,127 thousand (EUR 836 thousand in 2016) corresponding to 
contributions to group pension plans. It also includes other expenses for social 
improvements established in the collective labour agreement of the ”la Caixa” Banking 
Foundation in force in 2017 “(see Note 4g). 
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(14) COMPANY ACTIVITY. USE OF ASSETS FOR THE ENTITY’S 
CORPORATE PURPOSE. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 

14.1) Company activity- 

I. Activities carried out 

1) WELFARE ACTIVITIES 

Identification 

Description of activities Care for vulnerable groups and/or those that are at risk 
or socially excluded 

Type of activity Own 

Identification of activity by 
sector 

Social and care 

Place where the activity is 
carried out 

National and international sphere 

 
Detailed description of the activity carried out 

Programmes to support those who are most vulnerable, providing lasting solutions 
covering basic needs and creating equal opportunities. Courses of action concerning child 
poverty and promotion of employment were extended and enhanced in 2017.  
Work is also ongoing to consolidate courses of action and activities to boost co-habitation 
and social cohesion in multicultural contexts, emotional support and comprehensive care 
for people with advanced diseases, promotion of active ageing and access to housing for 
the elderly, young people and families with small children. 
 
In 2017, some of the main initiatives were: 
 

 The child poverty programme CaixaProinfancia helped 62,254 children in 2017. 
The programme was deployed in a further eight cities: Burgos and Valladolid in 
Castilla-La Mancha; Badajoz in Extremadura; Tudela in Navarra; Córdoba, El 
Ejido, Granada and Jerez in Andalusia. 
 
Implementation of the programme was also be consolidated at the locations in 
which it was first deployed in 2016: A Coruña, Ourense, Pontevedra, Santiago de 
Compostela, Lugo and Vigo in Galicia; Ciudad Real in Castilla-La Mancha; El 
Vendrell, Figueres, Girona, Lleida, Lloret de Mar, Manlleu, Manresa, Salt, 
Tarragona and Tortosa in Catalonia.  
 
In 2017, the programme's networks were adapted to the new regional model, 
increasing from 32 to 177. Previously there were different networks in each city 
which were not limited to a specific area. Now they are organised by 
neighbourhood or district.  
 

 Launch of the call for projects for the Operational Social Inclusion and Social 
Economy Programme ("POISES") to implement measures in favour of the active 
inclusion of persons at risk and/or in situations of social exclusion, through 
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integral social and labour market insertion programmes to give them access to the 
job market. Collaboration programme with the European Social Fund, through 
which 2,010 jobs were created in 2017.  
 

 Launch of the call for projects for the Operational Youth Employment 
Programme ("POEJ") to help generate stable quality employment for young 
people on the state's Youth Guarantee Scheme. Collaboration with the European 
Social Fund. A total of 925 jobs were created through this call in 2017.  

 

 The “ProFuturo” project - a training and child literacy programme, aimed at 
providing universal quality education and offering the most vulnerable children in 
Latin America, Africa and Asia access to new technologies. In 2017, thanks to the 
contribution of the ”la Caixa” Banking Foundation, 430,403 children took part in 
the project developed jointly with the Profuturo Foundation. 

 

 Consolidation of the Intercultural Community Intervention programme in the 
regions in which it was first developed in 2010. In 2017, several technical 
interventions were organised by the scientific management team to consolidate the 
processes used to ensure these regions are long-lasting and sustainable over time. 
A survey was also carried out to measure the impact and development of 
cohabitation in highly diverse regions.   
 
In 2017, the intervention teams set up in 2014 were reorganised in order to expand 
the intervention programme into further regions in the next few years.  
 

 In the programme for the Elderly , following completion of the pilot test in three 
cities in Catalonia, the “Never alone” project has been expanded to include other 
cities in Catalonia, La Rioja, Palma de Mallorca and western Andalusia. The 
objective of this programme is to prevent and reduce unwanted loneliness among 
the elderly population. In 2017, the “Life in company” project was established in 
collaboration with “Amics de la Gent Gran” in some Foundation centres. A total 
of 17,583 initiatives were carried out, with 821,532 beneficiaries.  
 

 In 2017, the number of psychological and social care teams working on the “End 
of life and loneliness” project were increased by three, from four to seven: 
Fundación Vianorte-Laguna (Madrid), Red Cross (Seville) and Parque Sanitario 
Sant Joan de Déu (Sant Boi de Llobregat). 
 

 Access to social housing for the lowest income earners was continued through the 
Social Rent and Accessible Housing programmes.  

 

 Start of a new international programme “Work 4 Progress” promoting innovation 
platforms for job creation aimed at young people and women in India, Peru and 
Mozambique. The project had a total of 8,581 beneficiaries in its first year. 

 Consolidation of strategic alliances in global healthcare, in collaboration with the 
leading international organisations and institutions, to help in the fight against the 
main causes of infant mortality, such as malaria and pneumonia, through the 
prevention, detection and treatment of these diseases. 
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In 2017, aid was extended to vaccinate children in Mozambique against 
pneumonia. Work to eradicate malaria is still ongoing after three years of 
collaboration in affected areas. 

 

 Creation, presentation and implementation of the ”la Caixa” Volunteer Association 
Master Plan, to underscore its commitments and encourage current volunteers to 
play a more active role: volunteers include group customers and retired and current 
employees.  
Consolidation of the Technical Volunteering Offices, implemented in several 
Spanish cities in 2016. 
 

 
 
Human resources employed 

Type 
Number Hours/year 

Projected Executed Projected Executed 

Salaried personnel 145 139 242,956 233,237 

Personnel with services contract - - - - 

Volunteers 13,150 8,802 1,107,000 142,000 

 
 
Beneficiaries or users of the activity 

Type 
Number 

Projected Executed 

Individuals 3,220,000 3,469,489 

Legal persons 14,545 13,943 
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Financial resources employed 
 
Thousands of euros

Projected Executed

Aid-related and other expenses
a) Monetary aid 186,825 182,114

b) Non-monetary aid
c) Expenses relating to collaborations and governing bodies

Change in inventories of finished products and work in progress
Procurements
Staff expenses 13,354 14,913

Other operating expenses 116,254 100,456

Depreciation and amortisation 2,558 2,638

Impairment and gains/(losses) on disposal of non-current assets
Financial expenses
Change in fair value of financial instruments
Exchange differences
Impairment losses and gains/(losses) on disposal of financial 

instruments
Income tax
Subtotal - expenses 318,991 300,121

Acquisition of assets (except for historical heritage assets)
Acquisition of historical heritage assets
Cancellation of non-trade payables
Subtotal - investments

TOTAL FUNDS USED 318,991 300,121

Expenses/Investment

Amount

 
 
Objectives and indicators of the activity 

Objective Indicator 
Amount 

Projected Executed 

Maintain focus on 
welfare projects 

% budget for social initiatives 
/ total budget 

60% 59% 

Strengthen and expand 
interventions in the 
area of child poverty 

Number of children attended 
by CaixaProinfancia 

Total:  
63,500 

children 
 

Total:  
62,254 

children 
 

Strengthen and expand 
interventions in the 
area of employment 

Number of people attended by 
the programme to provide 
access to employment for 
individuals at risk of social 
inclusion (Incorpora) 

Total: 80,000 
jobs filled 

Total: 79,656 
jobs filled 

Improve employability 
among young people 

Number of young people 
helped 

Total: 22,500 Total: 20,804 
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2) QUALITY RESEARCH ACTIVITIES 

Identification 

Description of 
activities 

Support for research and quality training 

Type of activity  Own 

Identification of 
activity by sector 

Research and education 

Place where the 
activity is carried out 

National and international sphere 

Detailed description of the projected activity 

The Foundation's 2016-2019 Strategic Plan is heavily committed to research and aims to 
substantially increase the annual budget for these types of initiatives. Activities focus on 
three main areas: 

1. Training for young scientists with high potential through grants at renowned 
centres for young researchers. 

2. Cooperation with research centres and programmes carrying out innovative 
projects for the purposes of eradicating illnesses such as AIDS, cancer, 
neurodegenerative conditions or cardiovascular disorders, among others. 

3. Support for projects oriented to transfer knowledge and the results of research to 
society at large. 

 
In 2017, some of the main initiatives were: 

 In 2017 the budget for projects in the sphere of biomedicine and healthcare was 
increased. 
 

 First international call for projects in the INPhINIT scholarship programme, 
which has awarded 57 PHD grants in for Spanish research centres bearing the 
Severo Ochoa seal of excellence, “María de Maeztu" units of excellence and 
centres accredited by the Carlos III institute of health. The programme is co-
financed by the European Union through COFUND, one of the Marie 
Skłodowska-Curie initiatives in the Horizon 2020 Framework Programme. 
 

 Launch of the first call for project for the Junior Leader postgraduate scholarships 
programme, which will be granted in 2018. The objective of this programme is to 
promote innovative and high quality research and support the best scientific talent, 
offering participants an attractive and competitive environment that fosters 
excellence in research. 
 

 Support for a project for the Identification of epigenetic biomarkers in 
Alzheimer's, carried out in collaboration with the Miguel Servet Foundation of 
Navarre, aimed at improving the diagnosis, prognosis and treatment of this illness, 
analysing DNA methylation in certain genes in the peripheral blood in patients in 
comparison with controls.  

 



 

 

 

47 

 Support for a research and support project involving school children (aged 3 to 
16), their teachers, schools and families, with the objective of demonstrating that 
acquiring health habits in childhood reduces the risk of cardiovascular disease and 
improve the quality of life as an adult. Project carried out in collaboration with the 
SHE Foundation. 
 

 Consolidation of the call for innovation projects in the area of life sciences and 
health for the CaixaImpulse programme to support research centres during phase 
of protecting the knowledge generated and passing it on to society. 
 
In 2017, 23 new research centre projects were promoted, three of which were co-
financed by the European Commission (EIT-Health). 
Further, four companies (spin offs) were created this year from the first edition. The 
companies Care Respite, Werium Assistive Solutions, Glycardial and Creatsense 
Health are spin offs of the UAB's Centre for Computer Vision, the CSIC, the 
Catalonian Institute for Cardiovascular Science and Rovira i Virgili university, 
respectively, and have successfully passed on to the market the ideas generated in 
their laboratories thanks to the Foundation's acceleration programme. Glycardial 
also raised funding of EUR 1.5 million, making it the first CaixaImpulse product 
to secure investment from a venture capital fund. 
 

 Start up in CosmoCaixa Barcelona of the Responsible Innovation Laboratory in 
the biomedicine and health sector under the European project COMPASS, funded 
by the EC's Horizon 2020 programme. 
 

 Launch of a new call for biomedical research projects in Spain and Portugal, aimed 
at promoting projects seeking excellence in the fight against some of the world's 
most common illnesses, such as cardiovascular and neurological diseases, 
infectious diseases and cancer. Once the call has been completed in March 2018, 
about 20 projects showing the greatest potential, excellence or social impact will 
be chosen, in the areas of basic, clinical or translational research.  

 

 
Human resources employed 

Type 
Number Hours/year 

Projected Executed Projected Executed 

Salaried personnel 29 38 49,149 64,662 

Personnel with services contract - - - - 

Volunteers 350 - 17,500 - 

 

Beneficiaries or users of the activity 
 

Type 
Number 

Projected Executed 

Individuals 730 745 

Legal persons 127 179 
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Financial resources employed 

Thousands of euros

Projected Executed

Aid-related and other expenses
a) Monetary aid 45,437 57,891

b) Non-monetary aid
c) Expenses relating to collaborations and governing bodies

Change in inventories of finished products and work in progress
Procurements
Staff expenses 3,470 4,570

Other operating expenses 31,783 9,549

Depreciation and amortisation
Impairment and gains/(losses) on disposal of non-current assets
Financial expenses
Change in fair value of financial instruments
Exchange differences
Impairment losses and gains/(losses) on disposal of financial 

instruments
Income tax
Subtotal - expenses 80,690 72,010

Acquisition of assets (except for historical heritage assets)
Acquisition of historical heritage assets
Cancellation of non-trade payables
Subtotal - investments

TOTAL FUNDS USED 80,690 72,010

Expenses/Investment

Amount

 

Objectives and indicators of the activity 

Objective Indicator 
Amount 

Projected Executed 

Increase research 
investment 

% budget for research / total 
budget 

15 % 15 % 

Foster scientific 
exchange 

Centres of excellence with 
research scholarships 

30-40 centres 
of excellence 

26 centres of 
excellence 

Focus on 
interventions in the 
area of research 

% of investment in research in 
the three lines (training, 
support and translation) / 
total investment in research 

85% 85% 
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3) CULTURAL OUTREACH ACTIVITIES AND KNOWLEDGE 

Identification 

Description of 
activities 

Dissemination and universal promotion of culture, science and 
knowledge 

Type of activity Own 

Identification of 
activity by sector 

Culture, science and knowledge 

Place where the 
activity is carried out 

National and international sphere 

 
Detailed description of the projected activity 

 
Initiatives aimed at developing different actions to disseminate all areas of scientific and 
cultural knowledge and spark interest in science and the arts, in the Foundation’s own 
centres (CosmoCaixa and CaixaForum) and across Spain through exhibitions, workshops, 
conferences, etc. 
Strategic alliances are therefore formed with museums and renowned professionals and 
collaborations with noteworthy scientific teams are carried out.  
 
Further, as part of the Strategic Plan, the Foundation has continued to developed 
initiatives aimed at fostering debate, dialogue and social reflection addressing a variety of 
social problems through activities carried out at the Palau Macaya in Barcelona.  
 
Specifically, the main initiatives carried out in 2017 include: 

 “Ramón Casas. A much-yearned modernity”, exhibition at CaixaForum Madrid 
and Palma. 

 “Ancient Greece” exhibition at CaixaForum Barcelona and Madrid, in 
collaboration with the British Museum. 

 Giorgio de Chirico exhibition at CaixaForum Barcelona and Madrid. 

 Andy Warhol exhibition at CaixaForum Barcelona. 

 “Gods of the Prado” exhibition at CaixaForum Palma in collaboration with the 
Prado Museum. 

 In 2017, a new CaixaForum centre was opened in Seville in March 2017, attracting 
a total of 229,328 visitors since then. 

 Participatory concerts were held for the first time based on the theme music of film.  
Various participatory concerts were also held (Händel’s Messiah, participatory 
musical and opera choirs) in cities throughout the country such as Madrid, 
Valencia, Bilbao, Pamplona, Seville, Granada, Santa Cruz de Tenerife, Valladolid, 
Gijón, Zaragoza and La Coruña. A smaller-scale participatory musical was also 
held at CaixaForum Barcelona and Zaragoza and the new CaixaForum Seville.  
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 A new show about percussion for families and school children was also held to 
discuss rhythm and beat at various CaixaForum sites, aimed at introducing these 
audiences to the musical theatre genre. 

 

 Activities for families and for the general public focused around exhibitions on 
music, literature, philosophy, history and art, among others. 

 

 Consolidation of the new ”la Caixa” Social Observatory: An ideas laboratory 
opened in 2016 that analyses social reality in Spain from a variety of different 
standpoints relating to the entity's main action lines (poverty, infancy, 
employment, exclusion, etc.). In 2017, has been occurred the presentation of 
dossiers on social inclusion, science and culture. The social inclusion dossier 
addressed the social impact of youth unemployment. In addition, this exercise has 
been defined and presented the Social Observatory Awards of "la Caixa". This 
contest rewards informative articles of scientific quality in the area of social 
sciences to support younger researchers.  
 

 “Talking Brain, programmed to speak” exhibition at Cosmocaixa, describing brain 
function from the perspective of language. New interactive, audiovisual systems 
enable visitors to see how the brain functions live. The exhibition was one reason for 
the record-breaking number of visitors attracted by CosmoCaixa (884,636 in 2017). 

 

 International congress to discuss the “Talking Brain” exhibition, addressing 
language and the brain. This event included conferences given by Spanish and 
international linguistic and neurological experts, and was highly rated by the public. 

 

 Re-opening of the Madrid Planetarium in October 2017, following its full 
technological upgrade, a change in the exhibition format and improvements in 
access to the centre, in collaboration with the Madrid City Council. In 2017, two 
exhibitions were held, “Climate change, understanding to survive the climate” and 
a new work “Images of the universe”. In addition, courses on astronomy and key 
international conferences attracting a great deal of media attention were also held. 
 

 Publication of the second call for projects at Palau Macaya, on reflection, debate and 
the sharing and dissemination of ideas. The objective is to present innovative 
methodologies capable of creating social progress and transformation. 
The projects selected in the first call launched in 2016 were developed in 2017 and the 
third call was made in September for projects that will be carried out in 2018-2019. 

 

Human resources employed 

Type 
Number Hours/year 

Projected Executed Projected Executed 

Salaried personnel 234 219 384,393 362,287 

Personnel with services contract - - - - 

Volunteers 510 547 25,500 13,006 
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Beneficiaries or users of the activity 

Type 
Number 

Projected Executed 

Individuals 6,850,000 8,180,145 

Legal persons 262 212 

 

Financial resources employed 

Thousands of euros

Projected Executed

Aid-related and other expenses
a) Monetary aid 7,530 14,035

b) Non-monetary aid
c) Expenses relating to collaborations and governing bodies

Change in inventories of finished products and work in progress
Procurements
Staff expenses 15,545 14,629

Other operating expenses 109,880 86,194

Depreciation and amortisation 11,635 12,756

Impairment and gains/(losses) on disposal of non-current assets
Financial expenses
Change in fair value of financial instruments
Exchange differences
Impairment losses and gains/(losses) on disposal of financial 

instruments
Income tax
Subtotal - expenses 144,590 127,614

Acquisition of assets (except for historical heritage assets)
Acquisition of historical heritage assets
Cancellation of non-trade payables
Subtotal - investments

TOTAL FUNDS USED 144,590 127,614

Expenses/Investment

Amount

 

Objectives and indicators of the activity 
 

Objective Indicator 
Amount 

Projected Executed 

Consolidate the level of 
excellence in knowledge-
sharing activities: 

 
  

1) Maintain the 
positive opinion of 
users (NPS)1 

NPS CaixaForum 63 out of 100 59 out of 100 

NPS CosmoCaixa  58 - 59 out of 100 61 out of 100 

2) Maintain annual 
visitor numbers at the 
centres 

CaixaForum 
annual visitors 

2,600,000 - 2,610,000 2,420,572 

CosmoCaixa 
annual visitors 

758,000 - 762,000 884,636 

 
1 The Net Promoter Score (NPS) is a metric used to measure user satisfaction levels with a 
product or service. To obtain a score the number of detractors is subtracted from the number 
of promoters to obtain a percentage, which is used to measure the quality of the service. The 
NPS index many be as low as -100 (all customers are detractors) or as high as 100 (all 
customers are promoters). 
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II. Total financial resources employed by the entity 

Thousands of euros

Aid-related and other expenses
a) Monetary aid 182,114 57,891 14,035 254,040 254,040

b) Non-monetary aid
c) Expenses relating to collaborations and 

governing bodies
2,821 2,821

Change in inventories of finished products 

and work in progress
Procurements
Staff expenses 14,913 4,570 14,629 34,112 387 34,499

Other operating expenses 100,456 9,549 86,194 196,199 1,854 198,053

Depreciation and amortisation 2,638 - 12,756 15,394 15,394
Impairment and gains/(losses) on disposal 

of non-current assets
2 2

Financial expenses 965 965

Change in fair value of financial instruments

Exchange differences
Impairment losses and gains/(losses) on 

disposal of financial instruments
7 7

Income tax
Subtotal - expenses 300,121 72,010 127,614 499,745 6,036 505,781
Acquisition of assets (except for historical 

heritage assets)
Acquisition of historical heritage assets
Cancellation of non-trade payables
Subtotal - investments -                   -                         -                -                     -                       -             

TOTAL FUNDS USED 300,121 72,010 127,614 499,745 6,036 505,781

Expenses/Investment
Not charged to 

activities
TOTAL

Welfare 

activities

Cultural 

outreach 

activities and 

knowledge

Total activities

Research 

activities and 

quality training

 

III. Total financial resources obtained by the entity 
 
Thousands of euros

INCOME Projected Executed

Income and other revenue from assets 402,142 404,511
Sales and services rendered of own activities 5,754 3,362
Ordinary income from commercial activities - -
Public sector grants 17,244 12,751
Private contributions 11 17
Other types of income 141,585 158,289
TOTAL INCOME PROJECTED 566,736 578,930  

IV. Collaboration agreements with other entities 

Collaboration agreements signed by the ”la Caixa” Banking Foundation with other entities 
in 2017 as part of the aid and social initiatives programme are shown in Appendix 2 of this 
report. 

V. Deviations between the action plan and data 

The deviation below the initial budget relates to welfare programmes and culture- and 
knowledge-sharing programmes and is due to efficiencies achieved in the contracting and 
costs of the different programmes and the fact that specific activities and new lines of action 
initially contemplated in the budget are not carried out. 

In addition, the deviation above the initial budget is due to expenses not initially expected in 
relation to operations, maintenance and infrastructures, in addition to the recognition of 
unrecoverable loans.  
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With regard to the financial resources needed to meet the 2017 budget, the income arises 
mainly from the distribution of reserves and from dividends received from Criteria Caixa, 
S.A.U., in the amount of EUR 400,000 thousand (see Note 6.1) and income tax revenue for 
the year of EUR 142,491 thousand (see Note 11), recognised under “Other types of income” 
for the amount of EUR 133,000 thousand. Further, repayments of aid were higher than 
envisaged. The Foundation’s remaining funds derive from revenue from own activities and 
other revenue. 

On 20 December 2017, the ”la Caixa” Banking Foundation filed its 2018 Action Plan, which 
was previously approved by the Board of Trustees on 14 December 2017, with the 
Foundations Registry. 

14.2) Use of assets for the Entity's corporate purpose- 

a) Goods and rights included in the founding capital 

The goods and rights included in the founding capital consist of 23,168,578 shares of the 
investee Criteria Caixa, S.A.U. contributed as non-monetary founding capital at the time of 
the transformation of Caixa d’Estalvis i Pensions de Barcelona, ”la Caixa” into a banking 
foundation, for an equivalent carrying amount recognised by ”la Caixa” at 31 December 2013 
of EUR 5,868,000 thousand (see Note 8). 

All assets and rights of the ”la Caixa” Banking Foundation are directly related to compliance 
with its corporate purpose.  the corporate purpose of which is to promote and develop social, 
charitable, welfare, educational and/or cultural projects and initiatives as specified in the first 
article of its bylaws. 

b) Allocation of rent and income 

1. Degree of compliance with use of profit and income 

 
YEAR 

ACCOUNTING 
PROFIT 

NEGATIVE 
ADJUSTMENTS 

POSITIVE 
ADJUSTMENTS 

CALCULATION 
BASIS 

RESOURCES 
ALLOCATED 

TO 
OBJECTIVES 
(EXPENSES + 

INVESTMENTS) 

2016 65,791  -      463,336 529,127 474,308 90% 

2017 73,149 - 499,745 572,894 505,903 88% 

 
Pursuant to Additional Provision Three of Law 26/2013, of 27 December, on savings banks 
and banking foundations, banking foundations regulated by this law are not subject to the 
limits established in Article 27 of Foundations Law 50/2002, of 26 December, and the use 
of profit and income for founding purposes. 

2. Funds used in the year 

Pursuant to that set forth in Foundations Law 50/2002, of 26 December, the expenses 
incurred and investments made each year that effectively contribute to complying with the 
Foundation’s corporate purpose specified in its bylaws, except for amortisation and 
depreciation charges and provisions, are considered to be used for founding purposes. When 
the investments allocated to founding purposes have been financed through income that 
must be distributed in profit over several years (such as grants, donations and bequests) or 
through borrowed funds, these investments will be calculated in the same proportion as that 
used for calculating the income or repaying the borrowed funds. 
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The funds used by the ”la Caixa” Banking Foundation ”in 2017 were as follows: 
 

 Thousands of euros AMOUNT TOTAL 

1. Expenses in compliance with founding purposes 484,351 484,351 

  

Shareh
olders' 
equity 

Grants, donations and 
bequests 

Debt  

2. Investments in compliance with founding 
purposes (2.1 + 2.2) 

21,552 - - 21,552 

2.1. Used in the year 21,552 - - 21,552 

2.2. From prior years  - - - 

 a) Debts cancelled in the year that were incurred in 
previous years 

  
- 
 

 

b) Allocation of grants, donations and bequests related 
to assets from previous years 

 -  
 

TOTAL (1 + 2)    505,903 

 
The investments made in 2017 in compliance with founding purposes were financed in full 
using the Foundation's own funds. 

14.3) Administrative expenses- 

Expenses arising directly from the administration of assets in 2017, corresponding mainly to 
administrative expenses for buildings owned by the ”la Caixa” Banking Foundation, 
amounted to EUR 222 thousand (EUR 275 thousand in 2016) and do not exceed the limits 
established in Article 33 of Royal Decree 1337/2005, of 11 November, approving the 
regulations for national foundations. 
 
Additionally, members of the ”la Caixa” Banking Foundation’s “Board of Trustees did not 
receive any payment for the performance of this function in 2017. 

(15)  OTHER INFORMATION 

15.1) Composition of the governing bodies- 
 

In 2017 the following changes were made to the ”la Caixa” Banking Foundation’s Board of 
Trustees: 

Ben Ami, Shlomo Trustee appointment 

García-Bragado Dalmau, Alejandro Trustee resignation, Deputy Chairman and 
Deputy Secretary 

López Burniol, Juan-José Appointment, Deputy Chairman 

Santos Silva, Artur Trustee appointment 

Slim Helú, Carlos Trustee resignation 

 
At 31 December 2017, the ”la Caixa” Banking Foundation’s Board of Trustees was 
composed of 15 members (12 men and 3 women) as shown below: 

Fainé Casas, Isidro Chairman 

López Burniol, Juan-José Deputy Chairman 



 

 

 

55 

Aguilera Rodríguez, Antonio Trustee 

Alemany Mas, Salvador Trustee 

Alierta Izuel, César Trustee 

Ben Ami, Shlomo Trustee 

Bruach Galián, María del Carmen Trustee 

Castellví Piulachs, Josefina Trustee 

Gay Montalvo, Eugeni Trustee 

Javier Godó Muntañola Trustee 

Homs Ferret, Francesc Trustee 

Lanaspa Gatnau, Jaume Trustee 

Ortega Enciso, Asunción Trustee 

Santos Silva, Artur Trustee 

Solana Madariaga, Francisco Javier Trustee 

 
On 19 October 2017, the Foundation's Board of Trustees resolved to appoint Josep Maria 
Coronas Guinart as Secretary to the Board, to cover the vacancy left by the resignation of 
Óscar Calderón de Oya, with effect from that date.  
 
15.2) Information on the entity’s personnel- 

 
The ”la Caixa” Banking Foundation’s average headcount in 2017 and 2016, broken down by 
professional level, is as follows: 

2017

(Average number of employees)

Men Women Men Women

Executives 9 7 16

Managers 13 16 29

Administrators 89 203 3 4 299

Clerica l  s taff 2 20 2 1 25

Temporary employees 5 22 27

Total 118 268 5 5 396

Non-disabled Disabled
Total

 
 

2016

(Average number of employees)

Men Women Men Women

Executives 9 4 13

Managers 12 16 28

Administrators 83 196 3 3 285

Clerica l  s taff - 24 2 2 28

Temporary employees 3 13 16

Total 107 253 5 5 370

Non-disabled Disabled
Total

 
 
The distribution, by professional category and gender, at 31 December 2017 and 2016, is not 
significantly different from that shown in the preceding tables. At 31 December 2017 and 
2016, the ”la Caixa” Banking Foundation Group had 398 and 389 employees respectively. 
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15.3) Fees for financial audit and other services- 
 

In 2017 and 2016, the fees for financial audit and other services provided by the auditor of 
the ”la Caixa” Banking Foundation’s financial statements, Deloitte, S.L., or by companies 
related to this auditor as a result of a relationship of control, common ownership or common 
management, were as follows (in thousands of euros): 

 

  

Services provided by the 
auditors and by 

companies related to the 
auditors 

2017 2016 

      

Audit services 155 155 

Other attest services - - 

Total audit and related services 155 155 

Tax advisory services - - 

Other services 337 419 

Total professional services 492 574 

 

Fees for audit and other services are recognised under “External services - Fees for 
professional services” of the accompanying income statement (see Note 13.2).  

15.4) Degree of compliance with the Code of Conduct in current financial 
investments- 

With regard to its current financial investments in 2017, Caixa d’Estalvis i Pensions de 
Barcelona, ”la Caixa” Banking Foundation is compliant with the principles and 
recommendations of the codes of conduct for non-profit organisations. The Board of 
Trustees of Caixa d’Estalvis i Pensions de Barcelona, ”la Caixa” Banking Foundation will 
prepare the corresponding report detailing the degree of compliance with these principles 
and recommendations, pursuant to Additional Provision Three of Law 44/2002, of 22 
November, on Reform Measures for the Financial System, and Article 25 of Royal Decree 
1337/2005, of 11 November, approving the regulations for national foundations. 

15.5) Environmental information- 

Given the activities in which the ”la Caixa” Banking Foundation is engaged, it has no 
environmental liabilities, expenses, assets or provisions and contingencies that may have a 
material impact on its equity, financial position or results. For this reason, no specific 
environmental breakdowns are included in these notes. 

15.6) Authorisations granted by the Protectorate- 

In 2017, no authorisations were requested from the Protectorate pursuant to Foundations 
Law 50/2002 or Royal Decree 1337/2005, approving the regulations for national 
foundations. 

(16)  EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 

There were no events after the reporting period that may affect the annual accounts or the going 

concern principle.  
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(17)  STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

  2017 2016 

A) CASH FLOWS FROM/(USED IN) OPERATING AND 
MANAGEMENT ACTIVITIES     

1. Surplus for the year before tax (69,342) (71,018) 

2. Adjustment for (157,717) (115,319) 

Depreciation and amortisation (+) 15,394 13,835 

Changes in provisions (+/-) (1,854) (1,438) 

Grants, donations and bequests (-) (12,751) (202) 

Gains/(losses) on derecognition and disposal of assets (+/-) (14) (1,230) 

Gains/(losses) on derecognition and disposal of financial instruments (+/-) 7 (487) 

Financial income (-) (400,033) (375,060) 

Financial costs (+) 965 1,190 

Changes in fair value of financial instruments (+/-) 1 6 

Other income and expense (-/+) 240,568 248,067 

3. Changes in working capital 66,904 16,793 

Trade and other receivables 10,151 13,909 

Other current assets (+/-)  -    - 

Trade and other payables (+/-) 8,062 9,237 

Other current liabilities (+/-) 48,691 (6,353) 

4. Other cash flows from operating activities 189,045 234,153 

Interest paid  (1,229) (1,229) 

Dividends received (+) 400,000 510,000 

Interest received 33 60 

Income tax receipts/(payments) 104,020 - 

Other payments and collections (+/-)  (313,999) (274,678) 

5. Net cash flows from/(used in) operating activities (+/-1+/-2+/ 
     -3+/-4) 

28,890 64,609 

B) CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES   

6. Payment for investments (-)  (11,042) (24,807) 

Intangible assets  (2,530) (3,209) 

Property, plant and equipment  (8,512) (24,631) 

7. Proceeds from disposals (+) 358 3,107 

From Group companies and associates 68 - 

Property, plant and equipment 155 2,616 

Other financial assets 3 491 

Other assets 132 - 

8. Net cash flows from/(used in) investing activities (7-6) (10,684) (24,733) 

C) CASH FLOWS FROM/(USED IN) FINANCING 
ACTIVITIES 

  

9. Proceeds and payments relating to equity transactions 5,621 3,146 

Grants, donations and bequests received (+) 5,621 3,146 

10. Proceeds and payments relating to financial liability instruments (23,600) (14,000) 

Issuance - 10,000 

Borrowings from Group companies and associates (+) - 10,000 

Redemption and repayment of: (23,600) (24,000) 

Borrowings from Group companies and associates (-) (23,600) (24,000) 

11. Net cash flows from/(used in) financing activities (+/-9+/-10) (17,979) (10,854) 

D) Effect of exchange rate changes - - 

E) NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH 
EQUIVALENTS (+/-5+/-8+/-11+/-D) 

227 29,022 

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 36,242 7,220 

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 36,469 36,242 
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(18)  INVENTORY 

The breakdown of the most significant assets on the balance sheet at 31 December 2017, is 
as follows (in thousands of euros): 

DESCRIPTION 
YEAR 

ACTIVATED 
INITIAL 
VALUE  DEPRECIATION 

CARRYING 
AMOUNT 

ART COLLECTION 1987 93,269 - 93,269 

COSMOCAIXA BARCELONA 1923 139,736 (63,838) 75,898 

CAIXAFORUM MADRID 2001 56,218 (18,223) 37,995 

CAIXAFORUM BARCELONA 1964 51,827 (22,946) 28,881 

CAIXAFORUM ZARAGOZA 2008 20,865 (1,871) 18,994 

CAIXAFORUM SEVILLA 2017 19,160 (552) 18,608 

CAIXAFORUM PALMA 1987 23,461 (10,874) 12,586 

PALAU MACAYA 1950 17,896 (7,441) 10,455 

MANAGEMENT SOFTWARE 1995 20,375 (13,494) 6,881 

DIAGONAL OFFICES (FURNITURE) 1996 14,672 (7,870) 6,802 

CAP ROIG (GIRONA) 2010 6,855 (1,664) 5,191 

CONGREGACIÓN NTRA. SRA. DE LA ESPERANZA 1923 6,510 (1,488) 5,023 

CAIXAFORUM GIRONA 2010 7,484 (2,587) 4,896 

ESPACIO CAIXA GIRONA 2002 4,322 (938) 3,384 

EXHIBITION ITINERANT UNITS 1991 4,540 (2,047) 2,494 

CENTRAL WAREHOUSE 1998 4,530 (2,500) 2,030 

ESPACIO CAIXA MADRID 1998 4,424 (2,491) 1,933 

CAIXAFORUM LLEIDA 1978 6,268 (4,411) 1,857 

CAIXAFORUM TARRAGONA 1950 4,696 (3,043) 1,653 

ESPACIO CAIXA MURCIA 2003 2,395 (979) 1,417 

COMPUTER SOFTWARE - MISC. 2014 2,218 (814) 1,404 

C/ SEQUIA BUILDING, BARCELONA 1985 1,485 (367) 1,118 

TRAVELLING SCIENCE EXHIBITIONS 2010 3,206 (2,101) 1,105 

AV. DRASSANES BUILDING BARCELONA 1995 2,011 (934) 1,077 

C/ PRINCIPE VERGARA BUILDING, MADRID 2014 1,019 (7) 1,012 

PALAFRUGELL ELDERLY CARE CENTRE 2002 1,351 (480) 870 

SANTS ELDERLY CARE CENTRE 1997 1,676 (821) 856 

SANTA COLOMA ELDERLY CARE CENTRE 2000 1,444 (602) 842 

CENTRO JOAN RIU 1994 3,412 (2,573) 839 

LLEDO ELDERLY CARE CENTRE 2002 1,056 (238) 818 

VILANOVA I LA GELTRÚ ELDERLY CARE CENTRE 2000 1,685 (905) 780 

CALELLA ELDERLY CARE CENTRE 1977 1,502 (768) 734 

VIRREI AMAT ELDERLY CARE CENTRE 1962 1,566 (898) 668 

SABADELL ELDERLY CARE CENTRE 1977 1,377 (717) 660 

BONANOVA ELDERLY CARE CENTRE 2015 752 (94) 658 

SAGRADA FAMILIA ELDERLY CARE CENTRE 1997 1,397 (745) 652 

C/ MALLORCA BUILDING, BARCELONA 1950 1,885 (1,233) 651 

SANLLEHI ELDERLY CARE CENTRE 1977 1,837 (1,234) 603 

VILADECANS ELDERLY CARE CENTRE 2000 1,165 (563) 602 

OLOT ELDERLY CARE CENTRE 1997 1,360 (765) 595 
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DESCRIPTION 
YEAR 

ACTIVATED 
INITIAL 
VALUE AMORTIZATION 

CARRYING 
AMOUNT 

BADALONA ELDERLY CARE CENTRE 1975 902 (309) 593 

PRAT DE LLOBREGAT ELDERLY CARE CENTRE 2001 1,435 (928) 507 

ESPACIO CAIXA STA. CRISTINA D'ARO 1999 1,100 (595) 506 

AV VERGE DE MONTSERRAT BUILDING, BCN 1944 966 (498) 469 

PERELLO ELDERLY CARE CENTRE 1988 752 (315) 437 

RBLA JUST OLIVERES BUILDING, HOSPITALET 1979 1,217 (785) 433 

ES FORTI ELDERLY CARE CENTRE 1964 1,006 (577) 429 

TARRAGONA ELDERLY CARE CENTRE 1959 1,395 (974) 421 

C/ RAFAEL CAPDEVILA BUILDING, BARCELONA 1979 776 (365) 411 

SANTA MADRONA ELDERLY CARE CENTRE 1964 1,178 (792) 385 

CANET DE MAR ELDERLY CARE CENTRE 1978 813 (461) 352 

LA BISBAL ELDERLY CARE CENTRE 1942 1,753 (1,410) 343 

C/ MUNTANER BUILDING BARCELONA 1950 772 (433) 339 

TORTOSA ELDERLY CARE CENTRE 1986 692 (369) 324 

TANTARANTANA ELDERLY CARE CENTRE 1998 932 (607) 324 

MANRESA ELDERLY CARE CENTRE 1967 1,218 (900) 319 

PALAFRUGELL ELDERLY CARE CENTRE 1981 609 (296) 312 

SAN LUIS ELDERLY CARE CENTRE 1998 818 (521) 297 

BELLVITGE ELDERLY CARE CENTRE 1969 1,407 (1,126) 281 

CONGRES ELDERLY CARE CENTRE 1974 1,563 (1,292) 271 

SANTPOL DE MAR ELDERLY CARE CENTRE 1975 570 (309) 260 

CA N’ANGLADA ELDERLY CARE CENTRE 1979 803 (546) 257 

CAMPOS ELDERLY CARE CENTRE 1936 855 (604) 251 

PL. LLUIS SOLA BUILDING, BADALONA 1964 435 (190) 245 

C/ RAFAEL CAPDEVILA BUILDING, BARCELONA 1987 4,118 (3,879) 239 

SANT SADURNI ELDERLY CARE CENTRE 2000 668 (433) 235 

ES MERCADAL ELDERLY CARE CENTRE 1962 465 (232) 233 

C/ FRANCESC MORAGAS BUILDING, BARCELONA 1955 413 (181) 232 

MOLLET DEL VALLÈS ELDERLY CARE CENTRE 1976 851 (619) 232 

LLEIDA ELDERLY CARE CENTRE 1961 948 (718) 230 

ALCANAR ELDERLY CARE CENTRE 1967 699 (483) 216 

AMPOSTA ELDERLY CARE CENTRE 1978 1,203 (987) 216 

C/ TERMES ROMANES BUILDING, BADALONA 1985 295 (92) 203 

C/ AMARGOS BUILDING, BARCELONA 2012 213 (17) 195 

CIUTADELLA ELDERLY CARE CENTRE 1955 1,082 (888) 194 

CERDANYOLA DEL VALLÈS ELDERLY CARE CENTRE 1979 850 (657) 193 

C/ SANT MARC BUILDING, BADALONA 1976 362 (170) 192 

C/ LA FONT BUILDING, ST ANDREU DE LA BARCA 1979 380 (189) 192 

ESPACIO CAIXA BRUC 2011 651 (464) 187 

C/ SANT CLIMENT BUILDING, VILADECANS 1974 328 (164) 164 

VILAFRANCA DEL PENEDÈS ELDERLY CARE 
CENTRE 

1987 204 (44) 160 

CALDES DE MALAVELLA ELDERLY CARE CENTRE 1998 684 (530) 154 

PREMIA DE MAR ELDERLY CARE CENTRE 1974 581 (430) 151 

RAMBLA POBLENOU BUILDING, BARCELONA 1942 443 (294) 149 
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YEAR 

ACTIVATED 
INITIAL 
VALUE  DEPRECIATION 

CARRYING 
AMOUNT 

MERIDIANA ELDERLY CARE CENTRE 1973 703 (561) 142 

ULLDECONA ELDERLY CARE CENTRE 1980 569 (434) 135 

SENTMENAT ELDERLY CARE CENTRE 1981 687 (557) 130 

C/ NOU LAND, PALAFRUGELL 1997 129 - 129 

PL. SANT JOAN BUILDING, VILAFRANCA DEL P. 1942 202 (73) 129 

TRINITAT ELDERLY CARE CENTRE 1975 373 (248) 125 

C/ TAMARIT BUILDING, RIPOLLET 1979 171 (52) 119 

GRANOLLERS ELDERLY CARE CENTRE 1987 371 (254) 117 

REUS ELDERLY CARE CENTRE 1978 826 (712) 114 

C/ MAJOR BUILDING, GANDESA 1970 174 (61) 113 

HOSPITALET DE LL. ELDERLY CARE CENTRE 1987 743 (631) 111 

ESPACIO CAIXA MANRESA - 111 - 111 

C/ANTONI MAMPEL BUILDING,SANT VICENÇ H. 1978 235 (127) 108 

VILASSAR CULTURAL CENTRE 1982 177 (73) 104 

EL CARMEL ELDERLY CARE CENTRE 1982 881 (784) 97 

MOIA ELDERLY CARE CENTRE 1980 652 (556) 96 

LA SEU D’URGELL ELDERLY CARE CENTRE 1981 809 (713) 96 

CAN VIDALET ELDERLY CARE CENTRE 1974 473 (383) 90 

C/ CATALUNYA BUILDING, REUS 1967 176 (91) 85 

C/ GRAN VIA DE LES CORTS CATALANES 
BUILDING, BARCELONA 

1982 107 (23) 84 

AMPOSTA LAND 1988 81 - 81 

PL. AJUNTAMENT BUILDING, PUIGCERDÀ 1993 177 (100) 77 

SALOU ELDERLY CARE CENTRE 1998 1,407 (1,330) 77 

SURIA ELDERLY CARE CENTRE 1987 555 (480) 76 

ST VICENÇ DE CASTELLET ELDERLY CARE CENTRE 1982 470 (397) 73 

LA GARRIGA ELDERLY CARE CENTRE 1979 556 (484) 72 

C/ TRAVESSIA BUILDING, ST FELIU DE CODINES 1950 110 (40) 70 

C/ BALMES BUILDING, GIRONELLA 1981 136 (70) 66 

C/ LOPE DE VEGA BUILDING, BARCELONA 1984 90 (27) 63 

C/ D’AVALL BUILDING, AMER 1955 115 (55) 61 

DANTE ELDERLY CARE CENTRE 1987 1,133 (1,072) 61 

CASTELLANA OFFICES (FURNITURE) 2017 63 (2) 61 

PL. ESPANYA BUILDING, LLUCMAJOR 1939 91 (32) 60 

C/ ST. ANTONI BUILDING, CALELLA 1979 70 (16) 54 

CAMPDEVANOL RETIRMENT HOME 1994 148 (99) 49 

C/ LUIS RIBAS BUILDING, RUBI 1982 61 (15) 45 

CASAL BELAFIA-LLEDIA 1984 697 (657) 40 

VILASECA ELDERLY CARE CENTRE 1985 915 (875) 40 

AV COMTES DE PALLARS BUILDING, SORT 1950 102 (66) 36 

MARE DE DEU DE LORD BUILDING, BARCELONA 1974 154 (119) 35 

C/ MAR BUILDING, FELANITX 1930 80 (46) 34 

C/ INDUSTRIA BUILDING, ANGLÈS 1994 103 (71) 32 

CAMI RAL BUILDING, BELLVER DE CERDANYA 1959 52 (23) 29 
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YEAR 

ACTIVATED 
INITIAL 
VALUE  DEPRECIATION  

CARRYING 
AMOUNT 

PLA DELS FORNELLS BUILDING, BARCELONA 1980 71 (43) 28 

C/ BOLIVIA BUILDING, MADRID 2014 24 (1) 24 

OLESA DE MONTSERRAT ELDERLY CARE CENTRE 1987 541 (517) 24 

GAUDI ELDERLY CARE CENTRE 1983 510 (489) 22 

C/ INDUSTRIA BUILDING, ANGLÈS 1994 55 (36) 19 

C/ VIA LAIETANA BUILDING, BARCELONA 1942 68 (51) 17 

 
 

(19) EXPLANATION ADDED FOR TRANSLATION TO ENGLISH 

These financial statements are presented on the basis of the regulatory financial reporting 
framework applicable to the company in Spain (see Note 2). Certain accounting practices 
applied by the Company that conform with that regulatory financial reporting framework 
may not conform with other generally accepted accounting principles and rules.   
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Appendix 1 
 
Tax credit for reinvestment of extraordinary profit 
 
Profit qualifying for the tax credits set forth in Article 42 of Legislative Royal Decree 4/2004, 
of 5 March, approving the restated text of the Corporate Income Tax Law (Transitional 
Provision Twenty-Four of Corporate Income Tax Law 27/2014). 
 

 
 
Reinvestment is carried out in equity securities granting holdings in excess of 5%, and on 
property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and investment properties relating to the 
business activity. 
 

 

 

Year

Profi t

qual i fying

Amount 

used Tax credit

Year of 

reinvestment

2014 68,850 68,850 8,230 2014



Appendix 2

Collaboration and social welfare agreements with other entities

Agreement 

amount
Entity Description

30.000.000 GOVERNMENT OF CATALONIA Collaboration for welfare projects

8.000.000 FUNDACIÓN PROFUTURO
Profuturo project: promotes the digital education of children, teenagers and adults from the 
most underprivileged regions of Africa, Latin America, the Middle East and South-East Asia.

4.140.000 MINISTRY OF THE INTERIOR
Training and reintegration programmes for prisons and social integration centres managed by 
the Ministry of the Interior

2.850.000 FUNDACIÓN INVESTIGACIÓN MÉDICA APLICADA Liver cancer research and new Hepcare treatments

2.352.000
CATALONIA REGIONAL GOVERNMENT DEPARTMENT 
OF JUSTICE

Rehabilitation and social and labour market reintegration programmes

1.950.000
VALL HEBRON INSTITUTE OF ONCOLOGY RESEARCH - 
PRIVATE FOUNDATION

International cancer research and education programme

1.600.000 UNIVERSIDAD PÚBLICA DE NAVARRA Internal call for post-docs and internationalisation
1.600.000 UNIVERSIDAD DE NAVARRA Predoctorate grants and tropical health project
1.500.000 INSTITUT DE BIOENGINYERIA DE CATALUNYA Liquid biopsies 
1.253.000 MADRID CITY COUNCIL Programmes and activities in the Madrid planetarium
1.200.000 FUNDACIÓN MIGUEL SERVET Intensification of research activities
1.200.000 FUNDACIÓN INVESTIGACIÓN MÉDICA APLICADA Applied medicine research centre

1.042.000 FUNDACIÓ PRIVADA SHE
SI! programme (Comprehensive healthcare): Promotion of healthy habits among children 
and teenagers aged between 3 and 16 to demonstrate that this can reduce cardiovascular 
disease and improve the quality of life in adulthood

1.000.000 FUNDO REVITA Emergency: Wildfires in Portugal in 2017
1.000.000 GAVI ALLIANCE Vaccinations for Mozambique
1.000.000 ASOCIACIÓN ESPAÑA CON ACNUR Malnutrition in refugees
1.000.000 UNIVERSIDAD DE NAVARRA Excellence scholarships
990.000 MASSACHUSETTS INSTITUTE OF TECHNOLOGY Promote information sharing between MIT and Spanish universities and research centres 
929.680 FUNDACIÓN PROYECTO DON BOSCO Operational social inclusion and social economy programme. European social fund

879.060 UNIVERSIDADE DE SANTIAGO DE COMPOSTELA
Synthesis, characterisation and study of the antitumour properties in atomic quantum clusters 
(AQCs) and organometallic compounds

870.000 INSTITUT RECERCA HOSPITAL DE SANT PAU "Down Alzheimer Barcelona Neuroimaging Initiative" project
835.000 ASOCIACIÓN DE VOLUNTARIOS DE "LA CAIXA" Promotion and development of volunteer initiatives and charity work
800.000 SOCIETY FOR DEVELOPMENT ALTERNATIVES Work 4 Progress India: "Development Alternatives" pilot programme

699.936
AGENCIA DE MEDIO AMBIENTE Y AGUA DE 
ANDALUCÍA 

Andalusia natural spaces project: to preserve natural spaces and hire people at risk of social 
exclusion

600.000 FUNDACIÓ F.C.BARCELONA Collaboration in the development of social projects
600.000 FEDERACIÓN CANARIA DE MUNICIPIOS 2017 social emergency
501.918 YMCA Operational social inclusion and social economy programme. European social fund

500.000
FUNDACIÓ D’ESTUDIS SUPERIORS EN CIÈNCIES DE LA 
SALUT

New faculty of medicine at UVIC

500.000 CANARY ISLAND GOVERNMENT
Canary Islands natural spaces project: to preserve natural spaces and hire people at risk of 
social exclusion

450.000 DIPUTACIO DE GIRONA Project to preserve natural spaces and hire people at risk of social exclusion
450.000 FUNDACIÓN CAJACANARIAS Grants for research projects - 2017
440.000 NICDO Inclusion Spring Break - Valle del Roncal (Navarra) 2017

425.196 INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK
Promoting sustainable competitiveness of organic avocado and quinoa in household orders 
in southern Peru

400.000 FUNDACIÓN CAJACANARIAS Canary Islands Scenic Arts Festival (Cae)
400.000 UNIVERSIDAD DE NAVARRA Immunotherapy for childhood cancer
400.000 UNIVERSITAT AUTONÓMA DE BARCELONA Support for quality research and scientific and technological skills 
400.000 UNIVERSITAT DE BARCELONA Internal call for post-doctorate research
400.000 UNIVERSITAT POLITECNICA DE CATALUNYA Scholarships and grants
380.700 AGENCIA EFE, S.A 13th call under the "la Caixa" and Agencia Efe scholarship programme
380.000 BARCELONA SUPERCOMPUTING CENTER Exascale and Big Fecha "TICXVIDA" technologies
380.000 CONSEJO SUP. INVESTIG.CIENTIFICAS Initiatives to support education and environmental awareness
350.000 DIPUTACIÓ DE TARRAGONA Project to preserve natural spaces and hire people at risk of social exclusion
350.000 UNIVERSITAT POMPEU FABRA Study of human epigenetics
344.946 SPANISH RED CROSS Operational social inclusion and social economy programme. European social fund
300.000 FUNDACIÓ IMO IPS cells and retinal dystrophy
300.000 BARCELONA GSE Research grants for social and economic well-being
300.000 NICDO Schools programme and science outreach plan 2017
300.000 FUNDACIÓN BALUARTE Baluarte Auditorium internal cultural programme
280.000 CENTRO UNED PAMPLONA Strategic programmes to promote university research
250.000 FECAM Social emergency
250.000 FUNDACIÓN DEL TEATRO LIRICO Theatre activities and teaching project
250.000 JUNTA COMUNIDADES DE CASTILLA-LA MANCHA Castile - La Mancha environmental programme 2017 
249.418 FUNDACIÓN JUANSOÑADOR Operational social inclusion and social economy programme. European social fund
246.776 GOVERNMENT OF CATALONIA Economic aid programme for young people on probation
235.176 FUNDACIÓN DIAGRAMA Operational social inclusion and social economy programme. European social fund
210.000 FUNDACIÓ MONA Primatology research 
200.000 COMUNIDAD AUTÓNOMA DE LAS ISLAS BALEARES Balearic Islands: project to preserve natural spaces and hire people at risk of social exclusion
200.000 FUNDACIÓN UNIR Educational activities exploring the values of learning and knowledge sharing 
200.000 SOCIB Medclic: the Mediterranean in one click 
200.000 UNIVERSITAT AUTÓNOMA DE BARCELONA Climate change research - Climadat
188.219 FUNDACIÓN ACCIÓN CONTRA EL HAMBRE Operational social inclusion and social economy programme. European social fund

188.187
ASOCIACIÓN PARA LA INTEGRACIÓN Y DESARROLLO 
SOCIAL MERIDIANOS

Operational social inclusion and social economy programme. European social fund

181.500 UNIVERSIDAD POLITECNICA DE MADRID Employability and university employment observatory - CRUE
180.000 CAJA BURGOS WELFARE PROJECTS Volunteering for the environment 2017
175.848 FUNDACIÓ JAUME BOFILL Development of New School 21
173.538 FUNDACIÓN INTERMEDIA Operational social inclusion and social economy programme. European social fund
150.000 FUNDACIÓN DE INVESTIGACIONES BIOMÉDICAS Herniated disc project - Fundación Investigaciones Biomédicas
150.000 UNIVERSIDAD DE DEUSTO Deustobide - School of citizenship 2017
150.000 SOCIEDAD AÑO JUBILAR 2017, SL Lebaniego jubilee year, 2017
150.000 FUNDACIÓN CAMINO DE LA CRUZ DE CARAVACA Jublidar de Caravaca de la Cruz jubilee year, 2017
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Agreement 

amount
Entity Description

150.000 UNIVERSIDAD DE GRANADA Liquid biopsies for the stratification prostate cancer - Genyo 
150.000 UNIVERSIDAD DE GRANADA Epigenetic biomarkers in bowel cancer - Genyo 
140.000 FUNDACIÓ PRIVADA INST.RECERCA SIDA-CAIXA Xplore Health project
135.000 FUNDACIÓ PRIVADA IS GLOBAL BARCELONA "Pian 3 - Oriol Mitjà" project
128.037 INSTITUTO ANDALUZ DEL PATRIMONIO HISTÓRICO Restoration of great oil paintings by the artist Murillo 
125.000 FUNDACIÓ FORUM AMBIENTAL Ecoinnovation laboratory
124.152 UNESCO CENTRE OF CATALONIA Development of "Escola Nova 21"
124.000 FUNDACIÓ ORFEO CATALA "Les Escoles al Palau" season 
120.000 CENTRO ASOCIADO DE LA UNED A TUDELA Support for research projects
120.000 NAVARRA REGIONAL GOVERNMENT - SOCIAL POLICIESERSISI (Enhancing The Right To Social Inclusion Through Service Integration)
119.595 INSERCOOP SCCL Operational social inclusion and social economy programme. European social fund
118.179 FUNDACIÓN SECRETARIADO GITANO Operational social inclusion and social economy programme. European social fund

117.600 CAJA BURGOS WELFARE PROJECTS
Improvement and adaptation of the archaeological and botanical content of the path 
adjacent to the Atapuerca site 

115.500 UNIVERSITAT COMPLUTENSE DE MADRID Doctoral scholarships Spain
110.000 FUNITEC International talent scholarships
110.000 OCHAGAVIA CITY COUNCIL Inclusion Spring Break - Valles de Salazar 2017
106.700 INSTITUT RECERCA HOSPITAL DE SANT PAU Sherpa-Everest project 2017
104.230 FUNDACIÓ ORFEO CATALA 125th anniversary of Orfeón Catalán choral society. Concerts of Beethoven symphonies
104.060 UNIVERSITAT INTERNACIONAL DE CATALUNYA Statistical analysis of the intercultural and social coexistence survey in highly diverse regions
100.000 FUNDACIÓ CLINIC Prevention of HIV transmission in Catalonia
100.000 UNIVERSITAT DE LES ILLES BALEARS Call for research projects
100.000 UNIVERSITAT DE LLEIDA Training researchers
100.000 UNIVERSITAT ROVIRA I VIRGILI Internal call for post-doctorate research 

100.000
ASOCIACIÓN MUNDIAL DE AZUCARADOS CORNER 
DIABETIC

"Diabetics Corners"

100.000 FUNDACIÓ ABADIA DE MONTSERRAT Contribution for foundation-related purposes 
100.000 FUNDACIÓ ACCIÓ PER L'EDUCACIÓ Collaboration in schools: Eastern gate of Europe and Brazil
100.000 FUNDACIÓ UNIVERSITAT POMPEU FABRA Support for a rights observatory

100.000 REUS CITY COUNCIL
Collaboration with the Catalonian Capital of Culture 2017 - Corporate and decentralised 
budget

100.000 FUNDACIÓ ESADE
Collaboration in activities carried out by the ESADE Centre for Global Economy and 
Geopolitics

100.000 FUNDACIÓ UNIVERSITAT OBERTA DE CATALUNYA International "At Home VII" project and research initiative  
100.000 FUNDACIÓ TALLER DE MÙSICS Discount programme for students of higher education
100.000 FUNDACIÓN CULTURA DE PAZ Activities fulfilling its mandate
100.000 NETWORK OF EUROPEAN FOUNDATIONS - NEF Integrated community service

100.000 CENTRO GALEGO DE ARTE CONTEMPORANEO
Activities managed with the regional government of Galicia in the area of research, health 
and the environment aimed at improving environmental health and personal well-being

100.000 DIPUTACIÓN GENERAL DE ARAGÓN Aragón: "Research, health and the environment"

100.000 REGION OF MURCIA
Activities and projects in the area of research, health and the environment aimed at 
improving environmental health and personal well-being

100.000 GOVERNMENT OF CANTABRIA
Initiative to protect, promote, preserve and improve the environment linked to the 
Lebaniego Jubilee Year 2017 celebrations

100.000 FUNDACIÓN GOTA DE LECHE Social and health care for children
100.000 ASSOCIACIÓ BARCELONA GLOBAL "Barcelona International Policy Sector Plan"
90.000 FUNDACIÓN JOSÉ MANUEL LARA Project to promote reading. 
90.000 ASOCIACIÓN ENTRE AMIGOS Equality for the south project 
90.000 NAVARRA FEDERATION OF MUNICIPALITIES Agreement to recover urban spaces 2017
90.000 UNIVERSITAT INTERNACIONAL DE CATALUNYA Internal call for post-doctorate research 
88.000 ASSOCIACIÓ ESPANYOLA DE DIRECTIUS Nueva Economía Nueva Empresa forum
80.000 FUNDACIÓ BOSCH I GIMPERA Bioethics: Ethical, legal and social implications of biotechnologies
80.000 FUNDACIÓ IEB-FUND.INST.ECONOMIA BCN Europeg activities, Opinion group

80.000
REAL ACADEMIA CIENCIAS ECONÓMICAS Y 
FINANCIERAS

Contribution for the Entity's own activities

80.000 AMICS DE LA GENT GRAN Friends of the elderly programme
80.000 FUNDACIÓN ADACEN Growing older together
75.000 FUNDACIÓN PRO REAL ACADEMIA ESPAÑOLA Development of the classical library 2017
75.000 FUNDACIÓN ALBÉNIZ Music-related cultural activities
75.000 CONFEDERAION EMPRESARIAL DE BIZKAIA- CEBEK Collaboration in the development of social activities
75.000 ASOCIACIÓN DE EMPRESAS DE GUIPUZCOA- ADEGI Collaboration in the development of social activities 
75.000 INSTITUT D'ESTUDIS CATALANS Activities to promote research with the European Academy 

75.000
FEDERACIÓN DE ASOCIACIÓNES DE MINUSVÁLIDOS 
FÍSICOS

Support for independent living programme

75.000 FUNDACIÓN PROYECTO HOMBRE Strengthening to prevent risks among teenagers 

75.000 CANARIAS CULTURA EN RED, S.A.
"Canarias Crea" - a programme to promote cultural mobility, based on the encouragement 
and dissemination of cultural products and creation in the Canary Islands

72.000 FUNDACIÓ IEB-FUND.INST.ECONOMIA BCN Fostering the activities of the Europeg Group
70.000 BARCELONA SUPERCOMPUTING CENTER In Silico Engineering of Therapeutic Enzymes (ISETE)
70.000 CONSEJO SUP. INVESTIG.CIENTIFICAS Diagnosis of pseudomonas aeruginosa infections
70.000 FUNDACIÓ BOSCH I GIMPERA A new family of sEH inhibitors for AD
70.000 FUNDACIÓ BOSCH I GIMPERA Low cost point-of-care test for early recognition of sepsis
70.000 FUNDACIÓ EURECAT Medical device for improved post-operative rehabilitation after knee surgery

70.000 FUNDACIÓ EURECAT
Caixaimpulse - Definition, optimisation, development and implementation of foot ulcer 
protector for patients with reduced mobility

70.000 FUNDACIÓ EURECAT Ekauri-Alzheimer: 3G teleassistance system for preventive medicine
70.000 FUNDACIÓ PER LA RECERCA BIOMÈDICA Diagnosing Non-Tuberculosis Mycobacterial infections
70.000 FUNDACIÓ PER LA RECERCA BIOMÈDICA Treatment therapy for Freidreich Ataxia

70.000
VALL HEBRON INSTITUTE OF ONCOLOGY RESEARCH - 
PRIVATE FOUNDATION

Parpipred: Supplementary diagnostics test for targeted therapy with Parp inhibitors in breast 
and ovarian cancer

70.000 SAMARANCH FOUNDATION
Collaboration to promote cultural exchange between China and Spain the area of school 
football

70.000 FUNDACIÓN INVESTIGACIÓN MÉDICA APLICADA
Caixaimpulse - Definition, optimisation, development and implementation of a recombinant 
insulin 

70.000 FUNDACIÓN INVESTIGACIÓN MÉDICA APLICADA Development of a vaccination for primary liver cancer (Cirpavac)
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amount
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70.000 TARREGA CITY COUNCIL "Never alone" initiative
70.000 IDIBAPS Caixaimpulse - Assessment of the Predictheon project 

70.000 IDIBAPS
Exoliver: "The liver in a chip" platform for toxicology research and the development of 
pharmaceuticals

70.000 INSTITUT DE BIOENGINYERIA DE CATALUNYA Caixaimpulse - Assessment of the Ischemsurg project 
70.000 INSTITUT DE BIOENGINYERIA DE CATALUNYA Mechanotransduction inhibition as a therapy for the treatment of solid tumours

70.000 INSTITUT DE BIOENGINYERIA DE CATALUNYA
Nucleii in the form of 3D bioprinting of tissue (3dbiocores): Tissue type controls in cancer 
diagnosis

70.000 INSTITUT DE RECERCA VALL D'HEBRÓN
Implementation of assessment plan: Development of a molecular analysis application to 
detect and predict treatments for cancer

70.000 INSTITUT DE RECERCA VALL D'HEBRÓN
Thermoshot ™ /Flashshot ™: New technology to fight against infections caused by biofilms 
and those resistant to antimicrobials

70.000 INSTITUT QUIMIC DE SARRIA (IQS) Aortyx: Innovative biocompatible endoprothesis for the treatment of aortic dissection
70.000 ANFAS-FUENTELAREYNA Active ageing programme, "el Sueño Continua"

70.000
GRANJA ESCUELA GURE SUSTRAIAK COOPERATIVA DE 
INICI

Occupational centre of the farm school

70.000 ASOCIACIÓN CABALGATA REYES MAGOS Pamplona Procession of the Magi 2018
70.000 UNIVERSIDAD DE GRANADA Cerviscan: Device for predicting premature births
70.000 FUNDACIÓ AGUSTI PI-SUNYER C.S.BELLVITGE Neutralising antibodies for gram negative bacteria

70.000
INSTITUT DE RECERCA CONTRA LA LEUCEMIA JOSEP 
CARRERAS

"Development Of New Therapeutic Approaches For Leukemia"

70.000 FUNDACIÓN PROFESOR NOVOA SANTOS Live attenuated bacterial vaccines for multiresistant infections
70.000 CENTRO DE INVESTIGACIÓN BIOMÉDICA EN RED "Hiparco-Score Technology"
70.000 UNIVERSITAT AUTÓNOMA DE BARCELONA Strengthening of current antibiotics for use against infections acquired in hospitals
70.000 UNIVERSITAT AUTÓNOMA DE BARCELONA Immunosorbent lipids for the treatment of multiple sclerosis and amyotrophic lateral sclerosis
70.000 UNIVERSITAT POLITECNICA DE CATALUNYA Able: Low cost auxiliary biorobotic exoskeleton

70.000 UNIVERSITAT POMPEU FABRA
Miwendo - Microwave imaging device in real time for endoscope explorations and 
interventions

70.000 FUNDACIÓN DE INVESTIGACIÓN BIOMÉDICA
Preclinical development of ITH13001 as second generation oral treatment for multiple 
sclerosis

70.000 FUND. INVEST. BIOMEDICA H. GREGORIO MARA Corify: Treatment of cardiac arrhythmias
70.000 UNIVERSIDADE DE COIMBRA Biolocker: A solution for preventive oral treatment
70.000 CENTRE DE REGULACIÓ GENÒMICA Alternative splicing in lung cancer treatment
70.000 FUND. INVEST. HOSPITAL RAMON Y CAJAL New therapeutic approaches in the treatment of chronic kidney disease

70.000
FUNDACIÓN PARA LA INVESTIGACIÓN BIOMÉDICA DE 
CÓRDOBA

Goat (Ghrelina-O-Acil Transferasa): A new biomarker for prostate cancer screening

70.000 UNIVERSIDAD DE ALCALÁ Nano diagnostics technology
70.000 CONSORCI CSIC-IRTA Blocking sumo combination as a strategy in the discovery of new drugs
70.000 UNIVERSITAT DE VALENCIA Therapeutic modulation of the Gen BLN1-2 expression in myotonic dystrophy
69.909 FUNDACIÓ BOSCH I GIMPERA Caixaimpulse: Spinous Process Shortening project
65.000 FUNDACIÓ ROURE Assistance and support for people living in poverty and/or social exclusion and vulnerable people
62.740 AID - ASOCIACIÓN ARRABAL Operational social inclusion and social economy programme. European social fund
62.740 AFES SALUD MENTAL Operational social inclusion and social economy programme. European social fund

62.740
COMISIÓN ESPAÑOLA DE AYUDA AL REFUGIADO 
(CEAR)

Operational social inclusion and social economy programme. European social fund

62.740 COMITÉ ANTISIDA COMUNIDAD DE EXTREMADURA Operational social inclusion and social economy programme. European social fund

62.556
FUNDACIÓN SÍNDROME DE DOWN DE LA REGIÓN DE 
MURCIA

Operational social inclusion and social economy programme. European social fund

62.476 ASOCIACIÓN AMICOS Operational social inclusion and social economy programme. European social fund
62.452 ARCA EMPLEO Operational social inclusion and social economy programme. European social fund

62.112
ASOCIACIÓN PROVINCIAL PRO MINUSVÁLIDOS 
PSÍQUICOS DE JAÉN

Operational social inclusion and social economy programme. European social fund

61.700 FUNDACIÓ CATALANA PER A LA RECERCA 22nd edition of Science Week 
60.763 ASOCIACIÓN COLUMBARES Operational social inclusion and social economy programme. European social fund
60.000 FUNDACIÓN C.N.I.ONCOLOGICAS CARLOS III Meeting borders
60.000 TAULA D'ENTITATS DEL TERCER SECTOR SOCIA M4social
60.000 FUNDACIÓN FYDE Nueva Economía Nueva Empresa forum
60.000 REAL ACADEMIA DE LA HISTORIA Development of the electronic Spanish biographic dictionary

60.000 DESOS, OPCIÓ SOLIDÀRIA
Social and labour market inclusion and job creation through social farming, local trade and 
the social economy

60.000 LA TORRE DE HORTALEZA Jugamos para la Integración programme
60.000 FUNDACIÓ PRIVADA VIARANY Fostering citizenship and networking
60.000 FUNDACIÓ PER LA RECERCA BIOMÈDICA "Piscis CEEISCAT HIV-Aids patient cohort"
60.000 FUNDACIÓN FADE Improving the quality of life and care of hospitalised patients
60.000 FUNDACIÓN HERMES Support for the action plan of Fundació Hermes AI

60.000 FUNDACIÓN ILUNDAIN
Lan Sarreran: Programme for the social and labour market support for young people at risk 
of social exclusion

60.000 FUNDACIÓN GAZTELAN Actívate para el Empleo programme
60.000 CAJA BURGOS WELFARE PROJECTS Culturapia programme 2017
59.920 COMPAÑIA CANARIA DE SERVICIS EDUCATIVOS, S.L Bullyng project 

58.850
FUNDACIÓN CEPAIM ACCIÓN INTEGRAL CON 
MIGRANTES

Operational social inclusion and social economy programme. European social fund

58.492
CONFEDERACIÓN GALEGA DE PERSOAS CON 
DISCAPACIDADE

Operational social inclusion and social economy programme. European social fund

57.535
ASSOCIACIÓ CASAL DELS INFANTS PER A L'ACCIÓ 
SOCIAL ALS BARRIS

Operational social inclusion and social economy programme. European social fund

56.877 CENTRO MATER MISERICORDIAE Operational social inclusion and social economy programme. European social fund
56.465 ASSOCIACIO DE GENT GRAN L,ESPLAI DE REUS Espaciocaixa Reus endowment
56.403 FUNDACIÓ FAEDIS Operational social inclusion and social economy programme. European social fund
56.400 ASSOCIACIÓ DE GENT GRAN DE BRUC Espaciocaixa Bruc endowment
55.700 CASAL DELS INFANTS PER L'ACCIÓ SOCIAL ALS BARRIS Increase employability for at-risk women in the Mina neighbourhood

55.434 ASOCIACIÓN PRODIVERSA - PROGRESO Y DIVERSIÓN Operational social inclusion and social economy programme. European social fund

55.000 FUNDACIÓN VARAZDIN Ecosocial - Integrated management service for reusable glasses
55.000 ALENDOY Primeros Pasos collaboration agreement
54.050 (XX) PATRIMONIO NACIONAL PALACIO REAL Musical programme at the Santa María Real de la Huelgas Monastery 2017
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54.000 FUNDACIÓN ARED
 "La Llavor" programme: Temporary housing for socially-excluded people and/or those at 
risk of social exclusion to facilitate their comprehensive development and personal self-
sufficiency, and to promote their social inclusion

53.940 FUNDACIÓN EUROPEA PARA COOP. NORTE-SUR Lepe Soup Kitchen - Community Centre
53.920 ASSOC. CLUB SANTFELIU INFANTIL I JUVENIL Juntos/As programme: Education and social cohesion in the district of San Ildefons 
53.533 ASOCIACIÓN ADEPSI Operational social inclusion and social economy programme. European social fund
53.329 FUNDACIÓN LESMES Operational social inclusion and social economy programme. European social fund
52.650 TOMILLO Transitioning to self-sufficiency for at-risk or socially-excluded youth
52.500 ASSOCIACIO GENT GRAN CIUTADELLA Espaciocaixa Ciutadella endowment

51.670
ASSOCIACIÓ CATALANA DE DÈFICITS IMMUNITARIS 
PRIMARIS

Tengo Idpc programme: I am not alone. Psychological support for children with primary 
immune deficiencies and their families

51.200 FUNDACIÓ PRIVADA CAN CERDÀ Social initiatives 
50.100 ASSOCIACIO DE GENT GRAN ESPLAI D'OLOT Espaciocaixa Olot endowment
50.000 REIAL ACADÈMIA DE DOCTORS Cultural and social activities in the Catalonian language
50.000 UNIVERSITAT RAMON LLULL Internationalisation of research 
50.000 BANC DELS ALIMENTS Collaboration with food banks
50.000 INSTITUT D'EDUCACIO CONTINUA U.P.FABRA Master's degree in scientific, medical and environmental communication
50.000 FUNDACIÓ GRESOL-PROYECTO HOME Hombre project
50.000 FUNDACIÓ PRIVADA IS GLOBAL BARCELONA New treatment for Pian disease - Dr. Oriol Mitjà
50.000 SPANISH CHAPTER OF THE CLUB OF ROME The Entity's own activities
50.000 CENTRO ACADÉMICO ROMANO FUNDACIÓN 5 scholarships for seminarist training 2017-18
50.000 ASOCIACIÓN ANDALUZA PROYECTO HOMBRE Prevention initiatives for schools - Seville 
50.000 INST. D'ECONOMIA I EMPRESA I.VILLALONGA Collaboration with the Mediterranean Arch Euroregion and workshop, March 2017
50.000 INST. D'ECONOMIA I EMPRESA I.VILLALONGA Collaboration with the Euran Project and workshop

50.000 INSTITUT D'ESTUDIS CATALANS
Activities in the Languages Department: The Entity's own programmed activities and 
visibility initiatives

50.000 COMUNIDAD AUTÓNOMA DE LA RIOJA Activities in the area of Research, Health and the Environment

50.000 ASPACE NAVARRA
Lekarroz. Benchmark in training for working with people with cerebral palsy and their full 
social inclusion

50.000 ASOCIACIÓN SÍNDROME DE DOWN DE NAVARRA Sepap- Occupational initiative (Service to promote self-sufficiency)
50.000 FUNDACIÓ PRIVADA PORTAVENTURA Financing for several projects: charity dinner, charity race and charity golf tournament
50.000 FUNDACIÓN AUDITORIO BARAÑAIN Artescena project 2017
50.000 TEATRO CALDERÓN Cultural activities programme
50.000 UNICEF FOUNDATION - SPANISH COMMITTEE Mexican earthquake disaster - Water and drainage in temporary schools 
49.175 ESPLAI D'AMPOSTA Espaciocaixa Amposta endowment
48.939 ASSOCIACIO DE L'ESPLAI DE SANT POL DE MA Espaciocaixa Sant Pol De Mar endowment
48.500 CAJA BURGOS WELFARE PROJECTS Patio Casa Cordón cultural activity 2017

48.400 CAMBRA DEL LLIBRE DE CATALUNYA
Support for the candidacy of the "Sant Jordi a Cataluña, la Fiesta del Libro y la Rosa" festival 
for the Unesco intangible heritage list

48.000 ASOCIACIÓN JAÉN ACOGE Homeless shelter

48.000 AYUDA EN ACCIÓN
Equal opportunities, personal empowerment and innovation to combat child poverty and 
social exclusion in Zaragoza

48.000 SAVE THE CHILDREN FOUNDATION Preventing violence against children
48.000 ASOC. ARIADNA. FAM. Y AMIGOS DE TOXICO. “Entérate, Depende Sólo de Ti“ programme
48.000 ASOCIACIÓN IMERIS Prevention of parent-child violence among teenagers

48.000
ASOCIACIÓN MARROQUÍ PARA LA INTEGRACIÓN DE 
LOS INMIGRANTES

"Cobijando Sueños". Accommodation for young people in situations of social exclusion

47.920 ASOCIACIÓN COLECTIVO MINKA
Entre Tod@S: Comprehensive care and community health programme for vulnerable groups 
and/or those that are socially excluded

47.800 ASOCIACIÓN HOGAR LA SALLE JEREZ Community training circuit: "Formamos Parte" 
47.700 FUNDACIÓ PRIVADA TALLERS DE CATALUNYA Atrévete A Dar El Paso II programme

47.680 RAIS MADRID
Asun Almajano homes: A model of excellence in the approach to cancer treatment for the 
homeless; Assessment and replicability

47.500 CONSORCI DE L'AUDITORI I L'ORQUESTRA "Apropa Cultura" programme
46.900 ASSOC GENT GRAN EL PRAT DE LLOBREGAT Espaciocaixa Prat De Llobregat endowment

46.670 ASOC. DE PARKINSON DE GRANADA. AGORA
6th collaborative comprehensive care programme to promote self-sufficiency of people 
affected by multiple sclerosis, Parkinson's disease and other similar diseases

46.160 ASSOCIACIO GENT GRAN D,ALCANAR Espaciocaixa Alcanar endowment
45.980 MADRID DESTINO CULTURA, TURISMO Y NEGOCIO Citizens science activities. Medialab-Prado
45.980 FONS D'ART GALERIA "Arte en el Aula" programme
45.930 ASSOCIACIO GENT GRAN CARMEL Espaciocaixa El Carmelo endowment

45.320 ASOCIACIÓN PROYECTO ESCAN Recovery therapy and canine-assisted prevention of attacks, for victims of gender abuse

45.000
TRIPTOLEMOS PARA DESARROLLO 
AGROALIMENTARIO

Mobility aid for doctors

45.000 CONFED.ESPAÑOLA DIRECTIVOS Y EJECUTIVOS Growing talent in Zaragoza, Salamanca and Alicante
45.000 SOCIETAT EC.BARCELONESA D'AMICS DEL PAIS Collaboration in the Entity's activities
45.000 CIDOB War And Peace seminar + yearbook on immigration 
45.000 FUNDACIÓN WASSU Missionary activities
45.000 PARROQUIA DE SAN LORENZO Restoration of the Chapel of San Fermin in Pamplona - 2017
45.000 CAJA BURGOS WELFARE PROJECTS Social innovation networks 2017
43.500 ASOC GENT GRAN CAMPOS DEL PUERTO Espaciocaixa Campos endowment

43.200
FUNDACIÓ PRIVADA SERVEI SOLIDARI PER LA 
INCLUSIÓ

Texere. Network support

42.850 ASSOCIACIO DE GENT GRAN ESPLAI SANLEHI Espaciocaixa Sanllehy endowment
42.500 ASSOC.JUBILATS I PENSIONISTES DE BALAFIA Espaciocaixa Balafia endowment
42.199 ASSOCIACIO DE GENT GRAN DE PALAFRUGELL Espaciocaixa Palafrugell endowment
42.000 AS. CULT. TALLER COMUNICACIÓN RADIO ELCHE To promote the inclusion of at-risk or socially-vulnerablepeople 
42.000 SPANISH RED CROSS Ujaripén: Community involvement with the gypsy population of Tortosa

42.000 PAZ Y BIEN
Service to promote the personal self-sufficiency and psychological and social community 
support  for people with cognitive functional diversity and mental health needs Continuation 
of Disintra programme

42.000 ASSOCIACIO DE GENT GRAN TERRASSA Espaciocaixa Terrassa endowment
42.000 EFEDI Tiama project 2017 - Cameroon
41.800 ASSOCIACIO DE GENT GRAN SAN ANASTASI, TR Espaciocaixa San Anastasi endowment 
41.500 ASSOCIACIO DE GENT GRAN DE CANET DE MAR Espaciocaixa Canet de Mar endowment
41.400 ACCIÓN CONTRA EL HAMBRE Vives Emplea programme: Methodology for inclusion teams
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40.850 ASSOCIACIO DE GENT GRAN DE MOLLET Espaciocaixa Mollet endowment
40.800 EDUCATION, CULTURE AND SOLIDARITY Promoting inclusion in the Family, School and Neighbourhood
40.740 FUNDACIÓ PRIVADA IS GLOBAL BARCELONA Anti-malaria drugs for children
40.000 FUNDACIÓN CONTEMPORÁNEA Reset cultural management international meetings
40.000 FUNDACIÓ UNIVERSITARIA BALMES S.C.S. VII International Workshop - Donde Higher Education 
40.000 CREAF-UNITAT D´ECOLOGIA FACULTAT DE CIÈN Mosquito warning programme

40.000 FEDERACIÓ FRANCESC LAYRET COCEMFE BARCELONA Physical disability observatory (ODF)

40.000 SOCIEDAD CERVANTINA Visits to El Quijote edition space

40.000 DOG KING SERVICE SLU A psychological and educational intervention programme for people with rare diseases

40.000 FUND. SECRET GRAL  GITANO - MADRID Fight against poverty and social exclusion among Romani children, 2017

40.000 ASOC. FAM. ESQUIZOFRÉNICOS COSTA SOL
Psychosocial rehabilitation and social reincorporation forpeople with internal mental illnesses 
in prisons and halfway houses (social inclusion centre) 

40.000 ASSOCIACIÓ LLEIDATANA SÍNDROME DOWN Improving the quality of life of people with Down's syndrome

40.000 CÁRITAS DIOC.SALAMANCA
Project to improve personal abilities and skills all people directly or indirectly affected by the 
consumption of drugs with regard to managing drugs, the consequences of drug taking and 
ensure they receive top quality assistance tailored to their needs 

40.000 FUNDACIÓN ECCA Assistance for adult learning
40.000 FUNDACIÓN GIZAKIA HERRITAR Comprehensive soup kitchen service, Paris 365
40.000 ASSOCIACIO DE GENT GRAN CALELLA Espaciocaixa Calella endowment
40.000 INSTITUT QUIMIC DE SARRIA (IQS) Grants for research projects 
40.000 FUND. TUDELA COMPARTE Villa Javier project

40.000 DELEGACIÓN DIOCESANA DE MISIONES Collaboration with the Archdiocese of Pamplona and Tudela and Fcan para la Javierada

40.000 FUNDACIÓN NAVARRA PARA LA EXCELENCIA
Development and implementation of advanced management models for the third sector 
(Social) 

40.000 UNIVERSITAT POMPEU FABRA Collaboration with Centro de Estudios Filosóficos Eugenio Trias (CEFET)

39.840
PANDORA MIRABILIA. GÉNERO Y COMUNICACIÓN 
S.COOP.MAD

Network of inclusive and sustainable playgrounds

39.840
PANDORA MIRABILIA. GÉNERO Y COMUNICACIÓN 
S.COOP.MAD

Network of inclusive and sustainable playgrounds

39.300 FUNDACIÓ ÀMBIT PREVENCIÓ Social and labour market inclusion for drug-addictedpeople

39.150 ASOCIACIÓN GRANADINA DE FIBROMIALGIA
Comprehensive care programme to promote self-sufficiency of people affected by central 
sensitivity syndromes, and raise awareness in society and among health professionals

38.800 FUNDACIÓN MARCELINO CHAMPAGNAT Suman2+. Second opportunity school
38.700 ASSOC.DE PERSONES D EDAT DEL CONGRES Espaciocaixa Congres endowment
38.650 ASSOCIACIO GENT GRAN DE BONANOVA Espaciocaixa Bonanova endowment
37.930 ESPLAI BARRI DE LA RIBERA Espaciocaixa Ribera endowment
37.350 ASSOC.GENT GRAN SANT VICENÇ DELS HORTS Economic allowance for the Sant Viçens Dels Horts elderly care centre
37.120 COLECTIVO PARÉNTESIS Alternativas project. Health and prevention of different types of violence in prisons
36.500 HOSPITAL DE MOLLET Fundación Sanitària Mollet

36.200
ONGAWA - ENGINEERING FOR HUMAN 
DEVELOPMENT

Global Challenge: Diversity, interculturalism and social involvement in promoting global 
citizenship at universities

36.000 LABCOOP, SCCL Energiaactiva: Cooperative social inclusion for energy efficiency

36.000 TREBALL SOLIDARI
Expansion and consolidation of the network of the microcredits programme for self-
employment 

36.000 ASOC. CULTURAL L'ABEYERA Paths towards social and labour market inclusion III
36.000 ASOCIACIÓN TALMA El Horno de las Umbrías project and security
36.000 FEDERACIÓN DE ASOCIACIÓNES SURGE Emple@Surge II Objetivo Monomarental project
36.000 FUNDACIÓN RECAL Assistance for minors and teens at risk of developing additions

36.000 FUNDACIÓN MARQUÉS DE VALDECILLA
Cogiendo la Salud con Nuestras Manos project Programme of intercultural mediation with 
Romani women in Cantabria

36.000 R.E.I.R. Care service for children and teenagers
36.000 SPANISH RED CROSS Comprehensive employment paths for highly-challenged people
36.000 SPANISH RED CROSS Promoting academic success of children and teens at risk of social exclusion
36.000 FUNDACIÓ ABADIA DE MONTSERRAT Collaboration for the Gira de Escolania de Montserrat with the US

36.000
ASOCIACIÓN DE PACIENTES CARDIACOS DE GRANADA 
Y SU PROVINCIA

Comprehensive care for people affected by cardiac disease, central sensitivity illness 
(fibromyalgia, chronic fatigue, MCS) and acquired brain damage to improve their quality of 
life and that of their families

36.000
FRATERNITAT CRISTIANA DE PERSONES AMB 
DISCAPACITAT DE GIRONA

Sant Feliu de Pallerols inclusive home: Creating vacation homes, breaks and holidays 
forpeople with disabilities. Remodelling of Los Pabellones, phase 2

36.000 ASPRODENA LOGROÑO Building bridges in the community

36.000 ASPRODES-FEAPS
Helping to extend service coverage for dependent people who live in regionally-excluded 
areas

36.000
CLUB POLIDEPORTIVO LOS CARRILES DISCAPAC 
INTELECTU

Sports and autonomy

36.000 ASOCIACIÓN PARKINSON BABIA-LACIANA
Vamos a Centrarnos programme: Comprehensive care forpeople with Parkinson's and other 
degenerative diseases

36.000 FUNDACIÓ MERCÈ FONTANILLES Individual protection pathways in inclusion apartments
36.000 FUNDACIÓN INICIATIVAS SOLIDARIAS Accommodation aid for vulnerable people

36.000 C. D. A.N.I.D.I. DOS HERMANAS
Professionalisation of leisure and sporting activities of the club to promote self-sufficiency 
amongpeople with disabilities

36.000 HOSPITAL SANT JOAN DE DÉU Healthcare programme for at-risk and highly vulnerable families and children

36.000 ASOCIACIÓN ALMERIA ACOGE
Support for the social and educational inclusion of minors and young people in the El Puche 
district

36.000 ASOCIACIÓN DE MUJERES TAYDA Promoting social inclusion through the eradication of extreme poverty

36.000
ASOCIACIÓN PARA EL BIENESTAR DE LA FAMILIA 
ATARAXIA

Family psychological and social care centre

36.000 PROVIVIENDA Alliance for the development of Housing First in the Madrid region

36.000 PROVIVIENDA Alliance for the development of Housing First in the province of Santa Cruz de Tenerife

35.960 FUNDACIÓN CENTRO TIERRA DE TODOS Cultural diversity management. Todos Iguales, Todos Diferentes programme.
35.920 FUNDACIÓ HOSPITAL SANT PERE CLAVER Programme to improve mobility, independence, social inclusion and self-esteem
35.900 PEÑASCAL S.COOP. Cooking in San Francisco
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35.900 FUNDACIÓ PRIVADA MARÍA AUXILIADORA Social and labour market inclusion centre, Laura Vicuña

35.840 FUND. SECRET GRAL  GITANO - MADRID
Social and educational development for the inclusion of the residents of Camino Jara in 
Huesca

35.700 FUNDACIÓ PRIVADA TRINIJOVE Jóvenes Acompañados project

35.610 ASSOCIACIÓ SOCIAL FORMA 21 To guarantee an independent and normal life, and social inclusion, based on self-sufficiency

35.600 RED XXI
Bridge project for young people in situations of social vulnerability: Un Camino hacia el 
Futuro programme

35.500 FUNDACIÓN CALALA  FONDO DE MUJERES
Avanzando Juntas programme: A social and labour market inclusion programme for 
immigrant women, from a gender-based perspective

35.500 FUND. SECRET GRAL  GITANO - MADRID Promociona programme
35.120 FUNDACIÓ PRIVADA FVB-SALUT MENTAL Mujer: Avanzamos en Tu Futuro programme

35.100 ACAIS. COMUNIDAD Y DESARROLLO. SOC. COOP. MAD. "Emple@Té programme: Neighbourhood social and labour market inclusion project

35.000 ASSOCIACIÓ DREAM NEPAL "Malahome" of Dream Nepal
35.000 FUNDACIÓN ESPLAI, ACCIÓN SOCIAL, EDUCAC. Publication of the notebook for Debate VII
35.000 ASSOCIACIÓ AMICS DE LES MISSES POLIFÒNIQUES Collaboration in the Entity's activities
35.000 FUNDACIÓ CATALUNYA OBERTA Collaboration on the study "Outlook for Catalonia, 2050"
35.000 FUNDACIÓN CULTURA DE PAZ Contribution for the activities of Instituto Demos-Paz, 2017 
35.000 COVA SANT IGNASI MANRESA FUNDACIÓ PRIV. Scholarships to help low-income people attend courses 

35.000 ASOCIACIÓN NAVARRA NUEVO FUTURO
Aperio: Entre la Escuela y la Calle programme. Design, development and measurement of 
the impact of a social and educational device linked to the official education system

35.000 FUNDACIÓN ARGIBIDE
¿Y Quién No? Campaign promoting mental health and preventing the stigma associated with 
mental illness among teens and adolescents.

35.000 ASOCIACIÓN DE PERSONAS CON DISCAPACIDAD Apermet: Training project for disabled people to provide care in Merindad de Tudela
35.000 ÁFRICA VIVA Support for the healthcare system through nursing training in Lunsar and Sierra Leone
34.725 CAJA BURGOS WELFARE PROJECTS Mozo de Mulas project, 2017
34.475 ASSOCIACIO GENT GRAN OLESA MONTSERRAT Espaciocaixa Olesa de Montserrat endowment
34.400 ASSOC.PERSONAS EDAD CAN VILADET Espaciocaixa Can Vidalet endowment

34.150 FUNDACIÓN TIERRA DE HOMBRES
Refugio Seguro II project: Strengthening positive intercultural attitudes towards migrant 
children

34.000 ASSOC. CATALANA COMUNICACIÓ CIENTÍFICA Scientific communication and awareness activities
33.600 FUNDACIÓ PRIVADA MAS XIRGU Aprender A Trabajar Trabajando programme
33.600 FUNDACIÓN AMIGÓ Labora project: Helping young people at-risk of exclusion find gainful employment

33.560 AS. FIBROMIALGIA JAEN "AFIXA"
Multidisciplinary approach to improve the quality of life of sufferers of fibromyalgia and 
chronic fatigue syndrome: Una Mano Tendida a la Esperanza programme

33.460 GORABIDE Cognitive access and friendly environments, a proposal for community collaboration
33.400 FUNDACIÓN CAPACIS Active employment: Creando Activos programme

33.370 FUNDACIÓN ENTRECULTURAS FE Y ALEGRIA Schools in the face of interculturalism and their commitment to community social activities

33.300 CIPAIS, S.C.P.
Psychological and social support to promote self-sufficency in situations of dependency 
(SPAD)

33.300 ASSOCIACIÓ DE GENT GRAN SAGRAD FAMÍLIA Espaciocaixa Sagrada Familia endowment
32.840 FUNDACIÓN SOCIAL UNIVERSAL Mamá Margarita afternoon home

32.700 MÉDICOS DEL MUNDO
Date Una Oportunidad! programme. Improving the skills of women at risk of social 
exclusion.

32.610 FUNDACIÓN MARCELINO CHAMPAGNAT
Comprehensive social and educational assistance for families and their most vulnerable 
members at risk of social exclusion

32.590 FUNDACIÓ BANC DE RECURSOS Improving the academic performance of children in the San Mateo district
32.520 RAIS MADRID Programme for self-sufficiency and transition to adulthood for homeless youths
32.450 FUNDACIÓ PARC CIENTÍFIC DE BARCELONA Organisation of "Fira Recereca en Directe 2017"
32.200 ASS.GENT GRAN ESPLAI STA MADRONA  Espaciocaixa Santa Madrona endowment
32.000 FUNDACIÓN AMIGÓ Montesión youth centre
32.000 ASOCIACIÓN AUTISMO SEVILLA #Entretodxs: Significant leisure network
32.000 ASOCIACIÓN APOYO Shared homes

32.000 CENTRO ESPAÑOL DE SOLIDARIDAD
Consolidation of the educational - therapeutic programme for people with addictions and 
comorbidity with other disorders

32.000 INICIATIVAS SOLIDARIAS VALENCIA Building bridges towards educational inclusion
32.000 ASOCIACIÓN PUNTO OMEGA Promoting social inclusion through the eradication of extreme poverty
32.000 FUNDACIÓN ITAKA - ESCOLAPIOS Ikaskide social and educational project
31.930 ASOCIACIÓN MUJERES ENTRE MUNDOS Intercultural coexistence and citizen participation on equal terms
31.911 ESCUELA NAVARRA DE TEATRO "El Colectivo" programme

31.800
PLATAFORMA DE ASOC. GITANAS DE CANTABRIA 
ROMANES

"Keres Buchi?": Training and employability of the Gypsy population

31.800 ASSOCIACIO DE GENT GRAN DE MOIÀ Espaciocaixa Moia endowment
31.630 FUNDACIÓN ECCA Intercultural community involvement
31.500 FUND.PRIV. PER L'ESPORT I L'EDUCACIÓ BCN VIII Verano Fantástico

31.500
PROYECTO SOCIO-EDUCATIU NAÜM. GERMANES DE 
LA CARIT

Therapeutic care programme for the social and labour market inclusion of young people at 
risk and women with specific social difficulties

31.200 YMCA MADRID Independent housing for young people in care 

31.100 CONFED DE CENTROS JUVENILES DON BOSCO
Regional implementation of the "Reconoce" tool to accredit the skills acquired during 
volunteering initiatives

30.880 ASS PUNT DE REFERÈNCIA Mentoring for equal opportunities
30.800 AYUDA EN ACCIÓN Expanding horizons: Project to improve employability
30.800 ASSOCIACIÓ D'ALZHEIMER BAIX CAMP Living with Alzheimer's

30.720
FUNDACIÓ PRIVADA HÀBITAT3 TERCER SECTOR 
SOCIAL

Programme to provide and manage housing for Entities in the third social sector dedicated 
to mental health problems in the Baix Llobregat area

30.700 AMECOOP-ANDALUCÍA
Construyendo Tu Oportunidad programme: Cooperative self-employment for women and 
economic independence

30.675 UNIVERSITAT POLITECNICA DE CATALUNYA Organisation of scientific awareness activities at Noche Joven
30.400 FUND. PROYECTO D. BOSCO Occupational school - Granada
30.400 COORDINADORA D'ENTITATS DEL POBLE0SEC Poble-Sec for the elderly
30.250 PLATAFORMA EDITORIAL Youth literature prize. Neo award
30.000 HANSEL I GRETEL SCP Barcelona dialogues

30.000 XARXA D'UNIVERSITATS INSTITUT JOAN LLUÍS VIVES Study and social impact on university performance 
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30.000 CARITAS DIOCESANA DE SEVILLA Job market integration - Bio Alverde project

30.000 FUND. ODONTOLOGÍA SOCIAL LUIS SEIQUER
Oral health of the resident population of Ceuta and Melilla to prevent health risks, cross 
infection and oral disabilities

30.000 INSTITUT AGRICOLA CATALA DE SANT ISIDRE Collaboration on training files
30.000 FUNDACIÓN CAJACANARIAS LXIX Bajada de la Virgen de Los Reyes festivities, 2017

30.000 CULTURA TRETZE
Acogemos programme: Support and skills development to secure promotion and equal 
opportunities for immigrants

30.000 FUNDACIÓN HERMES Collaboration to carry out its own activities
30.000 ASOCIACIÓN PROFESSIONAL EMERGENCY AID Maydayterraneo project - 2017

30.000 ASOCIACIÓN NAVARRA PARA LA SALUD PSÍQUIC
Participo y Decido programme: Tool enabling users to prepare and assess a personal care 
plan

30.000 ASOCIACIÓN DE JÓVENES EMPRESARIOS DE NAVARRA Time Inncorporate programme

30.000 FUNDACIÓN FELIPE LECEA Intergenerational project: Men of yesterday, today and tomorrow
30.000 ASOCIACIÓN EUNATE NAVARRA Second language programme for children with hearing difficulties (PASELE)
30.000 ÓPERA DE CÁMARA DE NAVARRA 6th opera season in Navarre
30.000 FUNDACIÓN ULTZAMA 2013 Quesería Mikaela project
30.000 CASA DE MISERICORDIA DE PAMPLONA Social project - 2017
30.000 RAIS MADRID Promotion of Housing First methodology

29.820 JUVENTUDES MARIANAS VICENCIANAS
Fostering the social and educational development of poverty-stricken and socially-excluded 
minors and their families

29.600 FUNDACIÓ RANDSTAD Red programme 

29.580
VEUS. FEDERACIÓ CATALANA D'ENTITATS DE SALUT 
MENTAL EN 1ª PERSONA

Mental health in the first person: Mutual support, skills development and self-sufficiency. 
Leaving a mark on people and institutions.

29.500 ASS.PERSONES D,EDAT DE PREMIA DE MAR Espaciocaixa Premia De Mar endowment
29.250 ASOCIACIÓN AMEFA GRANADA Mediation as a path to understanding
28.885 ASSOC.DE G.G. ESPLAI CALDES MALAVELLA Espaciocaixa Caldes De Malavella endowment
28.480 CONFRATERNIDAD CARCELARIA DE ESPAÑA Restoring dialogues: Taking responsibility and repairing damage
28.300 ASSOCIACIO GENT GRAN STA. COLOMA Espaciocaixa Santa Coloma de Gramanet endowment

28.290 HOSPITAL RESIDÈNCIA DE LA VILA DE MOIÀ Improving the overall well-being and quality of life of elderly people and their families

28.160 ASPID LLEIDA Start up of the new comprehensive care centre for self-sufficiency in Lleida
28.150 ASSOCIACIÓ ANADROMES Social manufacturing space
28.000 ADIS En Orihuela, Tu Pueblo y el Mío. Inclusive leisure programme

28.000 CARITAS DIOCESANA DE SANT FELIU DE LLOBREGAT Abraham Shelter

28.000 CORDOBA ACOGE Promoting the labour market inclusion of immigrants

28.000
FUNDACIÓN DE TRABAJADORES DE LA SIDERURGIA 
INTEGRAL

Promoting the labour market integration of young people in situations of vulnerability, 
interrelating with the business sector

28.000 FUNDACIÓ PROYECTO I VIDA Development of comprehensive paths toward social and labour market inclusion

28.000
ASOCIACIÓN RURAL DE DESARROLLO Y 
COOPERACIÓN EUROPEA

Promoting social and labour market inclusion for socially-excluded young people

28.000 FUNDACIÓN OSCOBE Providing a support structure for people in order to strengthen their resources
28.000 FEDERACIÓN MUJERES PROGRESISTAS Youth employment. Construyendo Futuro programme
28.000 ACEIDH BARCELONA Social and labour market inclusion and guidance for people intellectual disabilities

28.000 FUNDACIÓN JOSE MARIA DE LLANOS
Social and labour market insertion programme for women in a situation of vulnerability, 
"Atalanta"

28.000 SPANISH RED CROSS
Promoting inclusive leisure and recreational activities giving people with functional diversity 
the material and human resources required to carry out their activities

28.000 FUND. PROYECTO D. BOSCO Professional skill-building for young people
28.000 FUND. PROYECTO D. BOSCO Occupational school
28.000 FUND. PROYECTO D. BOSCO Independent living: Miguel Magone

28.000
ASOCIACIÓN DE FAMILIAS CON PERSONAS DE 
ESPECTRO AUTISTA

Comprehensive support for the families of people on the autistic spectrum

28.000 FUND. TUTELAR CANARIA SONSOLES SORIANO Support and mentoring for quality of life and self-sufficiency of people with disabilities

28.000 COL.DESARROLLO RURAL DE TIERRA DE CAMPOS Say no to loneliness. Relaciónate programme

28.000 PROTGD
Tú Te Diviertes Mientras Nosotros Descansamos programme (inclusive leisure family 
respite)

28.000 FUNDACIÓN PIONEROS
Educándonos programme. Social and educational assistance programme for socially-
excluded children and young people

28.000 YMCA MADRID Comprehensive assistance for at-risk or socially-excluded families

27.930 FUNDACIÓN RAMÓN REY ARDID
Building skills to improve self-sufficiency, inclusion and empowerment in mentally disabled 
people through art and citizens' involvement

27.930 ASOCIACIÓN AMICA Acompaña programme. Discovering self-sufficiency skills
27.790 FUNDACIÓN DESARROLLO Y ASISTENCIA La Tercera No Es la Vencida programme

27.770 ASOCIACIÓN ANTARES
Resources for families caring for minors with intellectual disabilities and significant support 
needs

27.710 AFIM21 ATENCIÓN FAMILIA INFANCIA MAYORES Los Almendros y la Chanca Juegan programme
27.670 ASOCIACIÓN ACHALAY ESPAÑA Achalay Ilusión programme. Because children need hope to escape from poverty

27.650 YMCA MADRID
Creation and support in its first year of operations for a care centre for vulnerable children in 
the districts of Picuriña, Suerte Saavedra, Cerro de Reyes and Casco Antiguo de Badajoz

27.490 SURT.FUNDACIÓ DE DONES, FUNDACIÓ PRIVADA Abriendo Puertas programme: Support and shelter for poverty-stricken women, 2017
27.480 ALEPH-TEA. ASOC. LIBRE EDU. PERS. Y HUMA Promoting inclusive recreational and free time activities forpeople with autism

27.330 APRENEM MARESME
Aprendiendo Contigo support, advisory and intervention service for people with autism and 
their families

27.100 FUNDACIÓN TUTELAR TAU Support for independent living for young people in care

27.030 NEURO-AFEIC
"Nuestra Meta: Vuestra Sonrisa" programme. A comprehensive support programme to 
promote self-sufficiency and care for the disabled or dependentpeople suffering from spina 
bifida, strokes and neurodegenerative diseases

27.000 UNIVERSITAT ABAT OLIBA CEU Call for research projects 
27.000 FUND.PEL DESENVOLUPAMENT HUMA I SOCIAL Development of Leadership Programme for young people

27.000 COORD. LUCHA CONTRA LAS DROGOPEDENCIAS
Family assistance and academic support programme for minors and young people at risk of 
social exclusion Areas (Aula de Reparación Educativa)
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26.990 FUNDACIÓN AGEING SOCIAL LAB
Professional specialisation in physical, social, virtual and emotional accessibility for the 
organisation and technical management of services for the elderly: Self-sufficiency and 
prevention officer

26.900 SPANISH RED CROSS
Promote the process for obtaining obligatory secondary education qualifications among 
young people aged below 30

26.620 FUNDACIÓ PRIVADA ELS TRES TURONS Sheltered accommodation to promote independent living for people with mental illness

26.600 FUND. PROYECTO D. BOSCO Improving the employability of young people in vulnerable situations
26.520 AFA VALVERDE DEL CAMINO No Prescindas de Vivir programme
26.480 SPANISH RED CROSS Family assistance for at-risk children
26.400 CAJA BURGOS WELFARE PROJECTS "Memoria de Cenizas" production

26.250 ASOCIACIÓN CALOR Y CAFÉ DE GRANADA Consolidation of the Entity's resources for temporary housing inclusion in city of Granada

26.230 FED. PROVINCIAL DROGODEPENDENCIAS Comprehensive assistance programme for drug addicts and/or socially-excludedpeople 

25.640 ASSOCIACIÓ BENESTAR I DESENVOLUPAMENT
Mother-and-child inclusion apartments for socially-excluded expecting mothers and/ or 
mothers with children under 3

25.110 FUNDACIÓN TIERRA DE HOMBRES
Rompe el Silencio II programme: Raising awareness about sexual violence against children 
and teenagers, family and associated professional profiles: Una Realidad Que Hay Que 
Visibilizar project

25.000 REIAL ACADÈMIA DE CIÈNCIES I ARTS DE BARCELONA Dinner with the stars, 2017

25.000
CONFEDERACIÓN DE SOCIEDADES CIENTÍFICAS DE 
ESPAÑA

Decides project

25.000 FOMENTO DEL TRABAJO NACIONAL
Collaboration in the historical research programme "Las Voces del Fomento: Prensa 
Industrial 1849-1936"

25.000 SPANISH OLYMPIC COMMITTEE 2nd EDITION OF THE SPORTS SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROGRAMME

25.000
SELF EMPLOYED AND SMALL COMPANIES 
ASSOCIATION-SESCA

Collaboration in the Entity's activities

25.000 ENCICLOPÈDIA CATALANA National child and youth competition for reading aloud

25.000 FUNDACIÓ JOAN MARAGALL CRISTIANISME I CULTURA Financial collaboration for publications released by the Fundación Joan Maragall 2017 

25.000
FEDERACIÓ D' ASSOCIACIONS DE LA GENT GRAN DE 
CATALUNYA

Incorporation third age associations of the Espacioscaixa in the Federación de Asociaciónes 
de Gente Mayor de Cataluña (Fatec) and collaboration in the activities carried out by this 
Entity

25.000 INSTITUT CATALÀ DE RECERCA EN PATRIMONI
Social and cultural activities (conferences, seminars, publication, scientific research and public 
studies in Catalonia)

25.000 ASOCIACIÓN ANDEVI Comprehensive aid for pregnant women at-risk or socially-excluded
25.000 AMEDNA Mujer Emprende project
25.000 ASOCIACIÓN ESPAÑOLA CONTRA EL CÁNCER Navarre against cancer
25.000 FORO QPEA Research and education forum: Quality of life for the elderly
25.000 ISORA CITY COUNCIL Miradas Doc - International Documentary Film Festival 2017
25.000 AGRUPACIÓN CORAL DE CAMARA DE PAMPLONA Educational and social activities
25.000 ORFEÓN PAMPLONÉS Performance of choral music 

25.000
ASOC. TDIFERENCIA FORMACIÓN Y PROYECCIÓN 
TEATRAL

Stopping violence in the classroom - 2017

25.000 COL.LEGI PROFESSIONAL DE PERIODISTES DE Project to promote reading
24.460 FUND. SECRET GRAL  GITANO - MADRID Educational diversity and academic success: A community project
24.200 BIOCAT BIOREGIO DE CATALUNYA Debate with Isglobal on the Zika virus 
24.200 INSTITUT ILDELFONS CERDÀ Definition of a community care model

24.060 ASOC.DOMBENITENSE DE AYUDA AL TOXICOMANO "Adat" shelter and meeting centre

24.000 ADIS "Miguel Hernandez" special employment centre for organic farming

24.000 ALDEAS INFANTILES SOS DE ESPAÑA. MADRID
Fostering the development of children through educational intervention and strengthening 
family and social networks

24.000 APROMPSI JAEN
Equipment and reform of Los Caits de Andújar y Mancha Real to improve suitability and 
accessibility

24.000 ASOCIACIÓN JAÉN ACOGE "Escuela de Oportunidades" programme: Employment

24.000
ASOCIACIÓN NAVARRA DE APOYO A PERSONAS TDAH 
RIBERA

Intervention, training, coordination and advisory programme to raise the academic success 
rate among school leavers with ADHD

24.000 AYUDA EN ACCIÓN Songot Lab: A technology opportunity for young people of Son Gotleu

24.000 AYUDA EN ACCIÓN
Nexos programme: Social and educational initiatives network for children and young people 
at risk of social vulnerability in the Latina and Tetuán districts (Madrid) 

24.000 CARITAS DIOCESANA DE SANT FELIU DE LLOBREGAT Comprehensive shelter and support for at-riskpeople 

24.000 SPANISH RED CROSS Urgent care for basic needs

24.000 SPANISH RED CROSS
Improving the shelter and comprehensive protection offered to immigrant women and their 
children

24.000 FUNDACIÓ PRO VIDA DE CATALUNYA
Shelter and support for young mothers and mothers-to-be aged between 15 and 24 that are 
living in poverty or socially excluded

24.000 CENTRE D'ACOLLIDA ASSÍS Comprehensive homeless care project
24.000 CENTRO SOCIAL DE SOLIDARIDAD DE MALAGA Halfway house

24.000 ASDOWNTO. TOLEDO
Fostering professional opportunities and improving employability for people with intellectual 
disabilities (Incluye project) 

24.000 APROSCOM Renovation and equipment of a laundry and ironing workshop
24.000 ASOC. FAMILIAS MONOPARENTALES DE CANARIAS Emplea III project

24.000 FUNDACIÓ PRIVADA TAC OSONA
Ampliamos y Sumamos programme: for labour market inclusion in "Xarxa D'enclavaments 
del Tac Osona"

24.000 ASOC. LUCHA CONTRA EXCLUSION: MARGOTU Social and labour market inclusion centre for women and families at risk or socially-excluded

24.000 ASOCIACIÓN CASA PACO GIRÓN Personalised support for 15 social at-risk young people aged between 18 and 35
24.000 FUNDACIÓ ECOM De la Exclusión a la Acción programme
24.000 HERMANAS OBLATAS DEL SANTÍSIMO REDENTOR Women and prostitution: Training and and labour market inclusion 2017

24.000 TRABAJANDO EN POSITIVO
Responsible companies committed to the inclusion into the workplace of people with HIV 
and other socially-excluded groups

24.000 FUNDACIÓN ANA BELLA MUJERES MALTRATADAS The empowerment of women
24.000 CÀRITAS DIOCESA TARRAGONA Labour market inclusion of women in situations of high risk in districts of Tarragona 
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24.000 FUNDACIÓN PRODIS
Labour market inclusion and improved employability plan for young people with intellectual 
disabilities

24.000 CÁRITAS DIOCESANA DE HUESCA Pathways to employment in Huesca

24.000
VALORA CENTRO DE FORMACIÓN Y ATENCIÓN 
SOCIOEDUCATIVA

Personalised paths for labour market inclusion through the "En y con la Empresa" training 
programme

24.000 FUND. PROYECTO D. BOSCO Occupational school
24.000 FUND. PROYECTO D. BOSCO Promotion of health programmes
24.000 FUNDACIÓN ITER Jóvenes Por el Empleo programme
24.000 SIERVAS DE SAN JOSÉ, S.L. Employability; A letter to citizens

24.000
ASOCIACIÓN POR LA FORMACIÓN PROFESIONAL, 
INTEGRAL Y SOCIAL DE LA PERSONA - INSERTA 
ANDALUCIA-

Social and labour market inclusion and guidance programme for young people at risk

24.000 ASPANRI
Project for the social and labour market inclusion of people with intellectual disabilities and 
Down's syndrome

24.000 A.F.A.E.PS
Integramente project. New lines to improve the employability of people suffering from 
mental illness

24.000 FUN. CANARIA PARA EL SORDO. TEGUESTE Monitoring: Training-Tres

24.000 FUNDACIÓN PICARRAL
Serpi social and labour market inclusion centre for young people with minor intellectual 
disabilities

24.000 FED. ESPAÑOLA ASOCIACIÓNES ESPINA BÍFIDA ICT and job-finding guidance service for people with disabilities
24.000 FUND. PROYECTO D. BOSCO Social, personal and community development in Znts
24.000 ANAR Detection of family violence through a hotline for at-risk children and teens

24.000 CIUDAD REAL CITY COUNCIL
Neighbourhood rehabilitation, social involvement and strengthening the community in the 
Granja district of Ciudad Real

24.000 FUNDACIÓN ATENCIÓN INTEGRAL DEL MENOR Espacio Ariadna project: Addressing conflicts between parents and their children
24.000 FUND. PROYECTO D. BOSCO Mujeres Transformadoras project

24.000 ASOCIACIÓN JÓVENES EN MOVIMIENTO
Ni Uno Menos project: Promotion of academic success and multiculturalism among young 
people

24.000 FUNDACIÓN PRIVADA INDERA Sexual health programme: Healthy body and healthy relationships
24.000 FUND. SECRET GRAL  GITANO - MADRID Promocióna project - Ciudad Real

24.000 FUND. SECRET GRAL  GITANO - MADRID
Creating environments for obtaining the habits, skills and knowledge to facilitate the 
education of minors with learning difficulties, at risk of exclusion

24.000 FUND. SECRET GRAL  GITANO - MADRID
Social and labour market inclusion pathways for Romani people in El Prat De Llobregat, 
Montcada i Reixac and Sabadell

24.000 FUND. SECRET GRAL  GITANO - MADRID
Social and educational project working with Romani children: Mejorando las Trayectorias 
Escolares

24.000 FUNDACIÓ GRESOL-PROYECTO HOME
Social and labour market inclusion for people with addiction problems at risk of social 
exclusion

24.000 FUNDACIÓ PRIVADA MARÍA AUXILIADORA Juntos Tejimos Oportunidades project
24.000 FUNDACIÓN ADSIS Pathways to employment for young people with no qualifications
24.000 FUNDACIÓN APIP-ACAM Jóvenes en Ruta programme: towards training and employment
24.000 FUNDACIÓN APIP-ACAM Jóvenes en Ruta programme: towards training and employment
24.000 FUNDACIÓN ATENA PSICOBALLET NAVARRA Use of art to promote self-sufficiency among people with intellectual disabilities
24.000 FUNDACIÓN BALIA Balia against child poverty
24.000 FUNDACIÓN BALIA Balia against child poverty in Guadalajara

24.000 FUNDACIÓN CAUCE
"Un Cauce al Empleo" programme: Promoting self-sufficiency for social and labour market 
inclusion

24.000 FUNDACIÓN CAUCE
"Un Cauce al Empleo" programme: Promoting self-sufficiency for social and labour market 
inclusion

24.000 ASOCIACIÓN DE DAÑO CEREBRAL ADQUIRIDO Improving the quality of life of people with acquired brain damage
24.000 ADACCA CADIZ Abriendo Espacios programme: A new space for children with acquired brain damage
24.000 FUNDACIÓ D PARES DE PSICOTICS I AUTISTES Vayamos de la Mano Hacia Un Buen Envejecer programme
24.000 ASOCIACIÓN ONCOLÓGICA EXTREMEÑA Comprehensive support for cancer patients
24.000 FUND. CAT. TUTELAR DISMINUITS PSÍQUICS Contributing to the development of people in care in their day-to-day activities
24.000 FUND. MALALTS MENTALS DE CATALUNYA Comprehensive care for patients suffering from mental illness
24.000 ADELA Personal care and self-sufficiency for ALS patients and their families

24.000 AFA ARAHAL
Psychological and social care for people with Alzheimer's and dementia, and their carers 
and/or families

24.000 ASOCIACIÓN RETINA NAVARRA Self-sufficiency skills for the visually impaired
24.000 AFA IBI Cai - Comprehensive assistance centre for people with dementia
24.000 AFANDEM Centrados en Familias programme
24.000 FUND. PADRE VINJOY DE LA SAGRADA FAMILIA Centre for rehabilitation through art

24.000 ASOCIACIÓN PLAY AND TRAIN Orientation centre for leisure activities in a natural environment aimed at disabled people 

24.000
ASOCIACIÓN DE FAMILIARES DE PERSONAS CON 
TRASTORNO

Project to stimulate and improve social and emotional development

24.000 PROYECTO JOVEN - PROYECTO HOMBRE LEÓN Improving family relations and parenting skills

24.000 UPACESUR EDUCA
Development of personal, psychological and social self-sufficiency of children with cerebral 
palsy through medical-functional rehabilitation

24.000 ASS PARKINSON SEGOVIA
Desbloqueados programme: Comprehensive care programme for people with Parkinson's 
disease

24.000 FUNDACIÓ ESCLAT MARINA Active ageing for people with multiple disabilities

24.000 FUNDACIÓN EL BUEN SAMARITANO
New rehabilitation resources for people suffering from severe chronic mental illness: Crps 
"Usera" and Crl "Arganzuela"

24.000 ASOCIACIÓN AFANIAS Espacio Abierto programme. Active ageing for people with intellectual disabilities
24.000 JOCVIU ASSOCIACIÓ ESPORTIVA Strategies, support and new intervention models for personal development
24.000 ASOCIACIÓN TAL COMO ERES Aquatic hydrotherapy activity for development

24.000 FEDERACIÓN MINUSVÁLIDOS FÍSICOS GRANADA
2nd project to optimise transport adapted forpeople with disabilities and reduced mobility, 
for comprehensive assistance

24.000 ASOC. CUIDAD. FAMILI.AMIGOS PERSONAS DEP Expanding the cognitive stimulation service rolled out in Orotava
24.000  ASSOCIACIÓ OBRIR-SE AL MÓN Leisure and recreation programme for people with autism
24.000 A.F.A.S. Improving accessibility in the Afas residential environment

24.000 FUNDACIÓN CUDECA
Improving the quality of life and self-sufficiency of patients with cancer and other advanced 
diseases at the Cudeca Day Centre

24.000 ASOCIACIÓN DE FAMILIAS CON NECESIDADES Inclusive recreational activities for people with differing intellectual capacities

24.000 ASOCIACIÓN NUESTRA SEÑORA DE CHAMORRO
Parte de Mi Camino programme: Detection and care for people with intellectual disabilities 
in the ageing process and their families
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24.000 CENTRO SOCIOSANITARIO NTRA SRA EL CARMEN
Out-patient care for rehabilitation of self-sufficiency and social inclusion for people with 
brain damage and neurological disorders

24.000 F. MANANTIAL PARA ENFERMOS MENTALES Early care programme

24.000 GRUP CALIU-INICIATIVES PEL LLEURE
Project to implement an innovative methodology to promote inclusive recreational activities 
for people with intellectual disabilities

24.000 FUNDACIÓ CENTRE HIGIENE MENTAL LES CORTS Programme to foster self-sufficiency among people suffering from mental illness

24.000 FUNDACIÓ MIQUEL VALLS
Promoting the self-sufficiency and comprehensive care of people suffering from ALS and 
their families

24.000 ASOC.MISELA-PERSONAS DISCAP.NOIA-MUROS Promotion of self-sufficiency

24.000 AFA LA RIBERA
Programme to promote self-sufficiency and psychological and social care forpeople with 
cognitive impairment or Alzheimer's and their families in the Ribero del Duero region

24.000 ASOCIACIÓN GUAYENTE Promoting self-sufficiency and comprehensive care from the Remós centre
24.000 FUTUCAN Support for mentoring by the Fundación Tutelar Canaria Adepsi

24.000
ASOCIACIÓN PARA LA INVESTIGACIÓN EN LA 
DISCAPACIDAD MOTRIZ

"Speak Go Aidimo!" Communication within reach of functional diversity

24.000 FUNDACIÓ ENRIQUETA VILLAVECCHIA
Programme to support and improve the quality of life for children and young people with 
cancer and other long-term illnesses

24.000 ATACES SAN CEBRIÁN Sxp "Saliendo Por Palencia" project

24.000 ASPAINCA CÁCERES
"Un Pasito Hacia Adelante Es Mucho Recorrido" programme. Refurbishment of the new 
comprehensive care centre for people with intellectual disabilities in Cáceres

24.000 FUNDACIÓ STEP BY STEP, FUNDACIÓ Vivir Mejor, Paso a Paso programme
24.000 ASOCIACIÓN LUAR Comprehensive assistance for severely-excluded young people
24.000 FUNDACIÓN SOÑAR DESPIERTO Social and educational assistance for children and teens at risk of exclusion

24.000 FUNDACIÓ BAYT AL-THAQAFA
Temporary housing for social inclusion and independence of immigrants and newly-arrived 
refugees

24.000 CANAAN Una Necesidad 3.0 programme
24.000 ASOCIACIÓN COLECTIVO LA HUERTECICA Meeting centres and shelters (social emergency centres)

24.000
INJUCAM. FEDERACIÓN DE ASOC. PARA LA 
PROMOCIÓN DE LA INFANCIA Y LA JUVENTUD

Derechos al Pleno programme. Securing the rights of children and teens

24.000
COMPAÑÍA HIJAS DE LA CARIDA DE SAN VICENTE DE 
PAÚL

Descubre Dentro de Ti programme

24.000 FUNDACIÓ PRIVADA CERMA ACOGE Tu Casa programme: Comprehensive shelter for socially-excludedpeople
24.000 C.E. G.R.E.S.C.A. RIPOLLET El Camino Empieza en Casa project

24.000 ANDALUCIA-CASA "FUENTE DE VIDA" DE CORDOBA
Empowerment and comprehensive skill sets for mothers-to-be and single months to 
promote their social inclusion

24.000 AGRAJER
Promotion of social inclusion and comprehensive development of people with compulsive 
gambling addictions

24.000 BONA VOLUNTAT EN ACCIÓ Social and labour market inclusion in Poble-Sec 2017
24.000 ASOCIACIÓN CIUDAD JOVEN Social and educational assistance for socially-excluded minors and their families
24.000 FUNDACIÓN PADRE GARRALDA Padre Arrupe project. Homeless shelter for the sick
24.000 FUND. FAMILIAS MONOPARENTALES ISADORA Sheltered accommodation for at-risk single-mother families

24.000 INPAVI. INTEGRACIÓN PARA LA VIDA
Entrada programme: Comprehensive support for and promotion of the social inclusion of at-
risk families affected by poverty and/or exclusion

24.000 ASOCIACIÓN ARRATS Comprehensive social and legal assistance programme for socially-excludedpeople

24.000 ASOCIACIÓN ZUBIKO
Comprehensive "Zubia/Bridge" programme for the social inclusion of prisoners in Basauri 
(Bizkaia) and Araba/Álava

24.000 ASSOCIACIÓ SUPERACCIÓ Triathlon programmes to promote inclusion

24.000 ASOCIACIÓN MOSAIC
Providing a drug-free work environment, addressing all biological, psychological and social 
factors leading to consumption

24.000 ASSOCIACIÓ ACCIÓ HOSPITALARIA Un Plato Para Hoy, Un Servicio Para El Mañana programme
24.000 MORNESE SEVILLA Improving the academic performance of children in the San Mateo district
24.000 FUNDACIÓN INSTITUTO DE REINSERCIÓN SOCIAL Bridge project for young people and teens in situations of vulnerability
24.000 FUNDACIÓN JUANSOÑADOR Vivendaourense project

24.000 FUNDACIÓN MARCELINO CHAMPAGNAT
Comprehensive social and educational assistance for families and their most vulnerable 
members at risk of social exclusion

24.000 ASSOC. G.G. VOLUNTARIA CIENCIA I CULTURA
Fostering volunteering and the active involvement of older people in technological, social 
and cultural activities. Supporting social initiatives in Espaicaixas, FBLC centres and 
Cibercaixas

24.000 RAIS MADRID Providing a sustainable solution to homelessness through the Hábitat project
24.000 RAIS MADRID Providing a sustainable solution to homelessness through the Hábitat project
24.000 RAIS MADRID Providing a sustainable solution to homelessness through the Hábitat project

23.990
(ASEXVE) ASOCIACIÓN ESPAÑOLA DE EXTROFIA 
VESICAL, CLOACAL, EPISPADIAS Y PATOLOGÍAS AFINES

Emotional training for people with bladder or cloacal exstrophy, epispadias and other rare 
uro-genital pathologies, and their families

23.990 ASOCIACIÓN MOJO DE CAÑA
Promotion of self-sufficiency, improvement of personal skills, better and more dynamic 
community relations

23.990 YMCA MADRID Comprehensive intervention programme for at-risk or socially-excluded families 

23.980 SPANISH RED CROSS
Improving the basic skills of families in a situation of social vulnerability through continued 
support for their social advancement

23.980 ASOCIACIÓN TIEMPO LIBRE MAGNI DE MADRID Promoting social and intercultural cohesion in the Fortuna district (Leganés) 

23.980 ASOCIACIÓN JUVENIL YOAR
Social inclusion project for Romani children and young people in Milagrosa-Arrosadia and 
Azpilagaña de Pamplona (Navarra)

23.980 YMCA MADRID
Comprehensive assistance for families with young children that are at risk of social exclusion 
or socially excluded

23.970 VILLACAÑAS CITY COUNCIL Programme to foster resilience among teens, parents and teacher
23.970 FUNDACIÓN CRUZ BLANCA Inclusive and intercultural education: Prevention and action in the Delicias district

23.970 FUNDACIÓN FABRE
Fight against child poverty and women at risk of social exclusion with young children in 
Navarre

23.950 FUNDACIÓN AUTISMO SUR Ocio Inclusivo II programme for people with autism

23.930
ASOCIACIÓN ANDECHA, PARTICIPACIÓN Y TRABAJO 
COMUNITARIO

Resuena Tetuán "Moviendo Voces, Sintiendo Ritmos" programme

23.920 A.F.E.S.M.O. Sepap. Promotion of independent living and shared housing

23.910 FUNDACIÓN PARA LA CONVIVENCIA ASPACIA Promoting healthy relationships among young people in situations of social vulnerability

23.900 ALDEAS INFANTILES SOS DE ESPAÑA. MADRID Fostering talent "In Open Work Spaces"
23.900 MESUMARÍA Aprendizaje para la Vida programme
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23.900 ETORKINTZA Entrepreneurship and integration of young people
23.900 ASOCIACIÓN DE MADRES SOLTERAS, AMASOL Single mothers: Employability, inclusion and risk

23.900 ASOCIACIÓN DE FAMILIARES Y/O ALLEGADOS D
Occupational workshop, training and support for the employment of people with mental 
illness

23.900 FUNDACIÓN JUANSOÑADOR Empleándote programme 

23.900 FUNDACIÓN MINUSVALIDOS EN LA NATURALEZA
Por Una Vida Plena programme: Inclusive leisure activities and personal development for 
children, young people and adults with disabilities

23.900 FUNDACIÓ FORMACIO I TREBALL Alimentamos Sonrisas, Un Paso Adelante programme

23.880 FUNDACIÓ VICKI BERNADET
Psychological, social and legal assistance for socially-excluded victims of sexual abuse during 
childhood

23.880
FUNDACIÓN GRANADINA DE SOLIDARIDAD VIRGEN 
DE LAS ANGUSTIAS 

Comprehensive programme for reducing damage in addictions "Conviviendo con las Drogas 
- Construyendo Vida"

23.860 FUNDACIÓN WASSU Empowerment for the prevention and treatment of female genital mutilation in Catalonia

23.850 ASOCIACIÓN ANDALUZA DE EPILEPSIA Promoting self-sufficiency of people with epilepsy and disabilities
23.850 ASAPME Ayudo programme: Social and health care and home care for mental health patients
23.850 ASOCIACIÓN DE FAMILIARES Y ENFERMOS DE S Mental health preventative detection and empowerment

23.840 B-SWIM, SCCL Promoting sports among people with physical, mental, intellectual or sensory disabilities.

23.830 FUND. PROYECTO D. BOSCO Training for inclusion
23.820 FUNDACIÓN HOGAR SANTA LUCIA Shelter for homeless women

23.820
ASOC. PARA LA PROMOCIÓN DEL EMPLEO Y LA 
COHESIÓN SOCIAL "CREATIVA"

Fight against poverty and social exclusion  

23.800 SPANISH RED CROSS Personalised paths “Activating employment skills for people with social difficulties”

23.800 ASOC. CULTURAL "OS ZAGALES D'ARAGON"
Incluyeme programme to improve the employability of young people at risk of social 
exclusion

23.800 CEE FINCA EL CABILLÓN S.L.U. Improvement of the support unit at Finca El Cabillón
23.800 FUNDACIÓ RANDSTAD Helping young people with functional diversity and fostering employment

23.790 ASOCIACIÓN SOCIOEDUCATIVA BARRO
Jara social and educational centre: Social and educational assistance to immigrant children 
and youth and their families

23.760 SIDA STUDI
Emotional and sexual education for young people and professionals in schools and in a 
recreational setting

23.760 MANGAS VERDES Youth activity school - city gardens

23.750 NEXE F.SERVEI AT.PRECOZ
Attention to specific healthcare needs of children affected by multiple disabilities to improve 
their quality of life

23.720 FUNDACIÓ PRIVADA MAS ALBORNÀ FRÁGIL
Nos Hacemos Grandes en Mas Albornà project. A new care service for the ageing 
population

23.710 FUNDACIÓ PRIVADA AROA Preventing risks associated with ICT use
23.700 ASOCIACIÓN PROYECTO ABRAHAM Pro-Laboral programme. Job prospection, intermediation and orientation programme

23.700 ASDE-FEDE. DE ASOCIADOS DE SCOUTS ESPAÑA
Activities and training of volunteers in healthy habits and the prevention of addiction during 
their free time

23.670 SPANISH RED CROSS
Developing psychological and social aid for affected individuals in order to facilitate their 
integration

23.640 FEDER. SIO Psychological and social care for patients with rare diseases
23.620 ASOCIACIÓN COLUMBARES Temporary housing for at-risk families

23.620
ASOCIACIÓN ISLA TORTUGA PARA EL IMPULSO DE LA 
ECONOMÍA SOCIAL Y SOLIDARIA 

Tetuán Convive, Tejiendo Interculturalidad programme

23.600 FUNDACIÓN AMIGOS DE GALICIA Galicia Enigualdade programme 
23.600 FUNDACIÓN CEPAIM Training for employment and inclusion

23.600 FUNDACIÓN GRUPO HADA
U-Integrales project: Integrated social and labour market inclusion paths for at-riskpeople or 
socially-excluded

23.570 HOREB - HOGARES DE REINSERCIÓN Y BIENESTAR - Collective housing for emergencies, at-risk or socially-excludedpeople 

23.510
ADACEA-JAÉN. ASOC. DAÑO CEREBRAL ADQUIRIDO 
DE JAÉN

Project to provide specialised assistance for the social inclusion of children and adults with 
acquired brain injury in the Jaén province

23.500 ASOCIACIÓN AMICOS Workplace inclusion of people with a degree of physical disability of over 33%
23.500 IZANGAI Active social and labour market inclusion for socially-excluded people
23.500 ASOCIACIÓN VOLUNTARIOS ACCIÓN SOCIAL Social and labour market intervention for socially-vulnerable people
23.500 FUNDACIÓN SEVILLA ACOGE Charity employment catalysts

23.440 ASOCIACIÓN DE PADRES DE PERSONAS CON TRA
Agenda de Ocio la Caixa: Fostering inclusive and accessible recreational activities for people 
with autism

23.440 FUNDACIÓN PALIACLINIC
Expansion and implementation of the programme for end-of-life patients and social needs in 
the Litoral Mar area

23.400 FUND. PRIVADA APADIS-LES FRANQUESES Training for the labour market inclusion of people with disabilities

23.400 ASZA. AGRUP. SORDOS ZGZA. Y ARAGÓN
Labour market assistance and personalised inclusion pathways for people with hearing 
impairments in Aragón

23.400 ASDIES
Promoting psychological and social development and self-sufficiency among people with 
disabilities

23.400 ASOC. FAMILIARES ENF. ALZHEIMER NOVELDA
Working the past and present seven hours a day through a family respite unit open in the 
mornings and afternoons

23.400 AJUDA ALS TOXICOMANS Emergency shelter for women at risk of social exclusion
23.400 ASSOCIACIÓ SAO-PRAT Youth assistance service - Social and educational day centre

23.340 MOVIMIENTO POR LA PAZ DESARME Y LIBERTAD Support and shelter for immigrants at risk in the Madrid region - young people on probation

23.300 FUNDACIÓ ALTIUS FRANCISCO DE VITORIA Social and labour market inclusion for at-risk and socially-excluded people

23.300
ENTIDAD PRESTADORA DE SERVICIOS A LA JUVENTUD 
POLARIS

Inspira project. Social and labour market inclusion

23.300 INTERMEDI@CCIÓN Ciudad de Valientes programme: Educational and neighbourhood assistance
23.260 FUND. AUCAVI, AUTISMO CALIDAD DE VIDA Recreational services and family respite unit for people with autism
23.220 ADISLAN Pro_Arts: Healthy art project

23.180 ASOCIACIÓN MOSTOLEÑA DE E.MULTIPLE Self-sufficiency and psychological and social development of people with multiple sclerosis

23.100 ASOCIACIÓN AMBIT Social and labour market inclusion 2017
22.980 CENTRE DE PROMOCIÓ SOCIAL FRANCESC PALAU Promoting equal opportunities
22.900 FEDERACIÓ CATALANA DE L'ESPLAI Edufilms. Youth cinema for transformation and social inclusion
22.870 FUNDACIÓN INSTITUTO SPIRAL Programme to promote physical and mental health in patients with dual pathology
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22.800 GUARANÍ
En Compañía: Project to facilitate the social and labour market inclusion of immigrants in 
the Madrid region

22.800 FUNDACIÓN POR LA ACCIÓN SOCIAL  MAR DE NIEBLA "La Ofi" support programme

22.800 ASOCIACIÓN HOGARES COMPARTIDOS Shared homes for low-income elderly people
22.800 ASPANSOR ZARAGOZA Programme to promote self-sufficiency among the hearing impaired

22.780 ASSOCIACIÓ DONES NO ESTÀNDARDS Service to promote self-sufficiency and independent living among women with disabilities

22.750 AS. DE PARKINSON DE LA BAHÍA DE CÁDIZ On Off- Movilidad e Inmovilidad II programme

22.750 ASOCIACIÓN PARA LA PROTECCIÓN DE LOS ANC
Improving the quality of life of elderly and/or dependent people with mental health 
problems to improve their well-being

22.700 INSERCOOP SCCL Improved training for the unemployed and people at risk of social exclusion
22.630 SAN JOSÉ GRANADA Domus II programme: Fostering independent living

22.600 FUNDACIÓ SERVEIS SOCIALS SANT PERE CLAVER
Fostering independent living, self-sufficiency and care for the disabled, elderly or people with 
diminished capacity and health

22.560 ASOCIACIÓN ALTAMAR. EDUCACIÓN Y FAMILIA Fostering education for at-risk children and families

22.560 FUNDACIÓN TRAB.OR
Building a new support model of young people based on comprehensive assistance to 
continue training after the mandatory period

22.530 CASAL DELS INFANTS PER L'ACCIÓ SOCIAL ALS BARRIS Transitioning to self-sufficiency for women

22.510 FUNDACIÓN DE CULTURA ISLÁMICA
Promoting dialogue and optimal intercultural exchange with a focus on gender, respect for 
human rights and cultural diversity

22.510 APOSTÓLICAS DEL CORAZÓN DE JESÚS OBRAS S Day care centre. Comprehensive homeless care project
22.500 AS. MIN. PSÍQ. EL PALMAR O LUGAR DON JUA Inclusive recreational activities for people with intellectual disabilities
22.500 NUTRITION WITHOUT BORDERS NGO BCN Comparte la Comida programme

22.430 ADACEN
Assistance for dependent people suffering from acquired brain damage and support for their 
families

22.400 FUNDACIÓN ARAGONESA ESCLEROSIS MÚLTIPLE Building self-sufficiency and independent living skills: Personalised care

22.340 AS ALCOH. REHA. HORTA NORD
Psychological and social intervention programme for women of social exclusion due to use 
of psychoactive substances

22.300 ARTMO BENE, S.L.
Alma Zen programme: Storage, distribution and sale of traditional and organic products by 
people with severe mental illness

22.300 SALUD MENTAL INSERTA SL
Inserta2 programme: Social and labour market inclusion through a dedicated company as a 
first step towards traditional employment

22.280 RAIS MADRID Conviu-Re: Programme promoting growth and skills for homeless young people

22.270 HOSPITAL DE MOLLET
Hydrotherapy: Leisure and rehabilitation activities for people with intellectual disabilities. 
"Residencia la Vinyota"

22.215 ASSOCIACIO GENT GRAN DE TORTOSA, ESPLAI Espaciocaixa Tortosa endowment

22.200 ALBASUR
Empleo Con Apoyo programme: Path toward the social and labour market inclusion of 
people with disabilities

22.200 ASOC. COMARCAL AFECTADOS CÁNCER VILLENA
Humanising care for cancer patients and their families on a physical, psychological, social and 
spiritual level

22.200 ASAFES-ASOC.ALAVESA DE FAMIL. Y ENF.MENT Mental illness in minors: the silent illness

22.170 ASOCIACIÓN PARA LA PREVENCIÓN "A TIEMPO"
A Tiempo social and educational project. Assistance for socially-vulnerable minors and their 
families

22.140
ASOCIACIÓN DE PADRES DEL CENTRO DE ATENCIÓN 
TEMPRANA Y APOYO EN EDAD ESCOLAR APAT-LORCA

"Contigo Avanzo" programme. Psychological and educational support for school age 
children with disabilities

22.080 RASCASA
Rascaixa 2017- "La Llave:  Initiatives to promote the social inclusion of children, young 
people and their families in neighbourhoods of high social risk

22.070 APROSUBA 9
Promoting inclusive leisure and recreational activities giving people with functional diversity 
the material and human resources required to carry out their activities

21.900 AS. PROCOMAR. VALLADOLID ACOGE Divérsate Valladolid Acoge programme

21.850 ASECAL
Promoting and carrying out initiatives to support children, teens and young people / mainly 
immigrants

21.850 ASSOCIACIO DE GENT GRAN GRANOLLERS Espaciocaixa Granollers endowment
21.820 F. NORAY PROYECTO HOMBRE ALICANTE Prevention programme to support teens and their families: "Faro"

21.820 CENTRO HOSPITALARIO PADRE MENNI
Renueva-Te (psychological and social assessment and rehabilitation for ex-convicts with 
serious mental illness)

21.770 ATRHA Actua, Todos para Todos programme
21.750 SURT.FUNDACIÓ DE DONES, FUNDACIÓ PRIVADA Connections with Pere Grau
21.700 DONES PER LA LLIBERTAT I DEMOCRÀCIA Social and labour market inclusion pathways for at-risk women
21.670 SPANISH RED CROSS Educational programmes: ¡Transforma Tu Mundo, Mejora Tu Entorno!
21.650 ASSOCIACIÓ DE GENT GRAN LLOC DE TROBADA Espaciocaixa Santa Cristina D'Aro endowment

21.600 CASAL DELS INFANTS PER L'ACCIÓ SOCIAL ALS BARRIS Improving the personal and social development of young people aged between 16 and 21

21.600 ASOCIACIÓN ARGADINI Cultural assistants. Training for employment

21.600 ASOCIACIÓN PARKINSON ARAGÓN
Comprehensive social and therapeutic care for people with Parkinson's and other 
neurodegenerative diseases

21.440
ASSOCIACIÓ PER L'AGRICULTURA TERAPÈUTICA 
L'AURÓ

Therapeutic family respite service 

21.400 FUNDACIÓN ADECCO Promueve las Palmas project, 2017
21.360 AS. AYUDA A EXCLUIDOS SOCIALES GOIZTIRI Bidaide-Harrera: Helping highly vulnerable people

21.300
SANTA CRISTINA SOCIEDAD COOPERATIVA 
ANDALUZA

Preventing different types of violence

21.260 AMIRES MADRID
Comprehensive care to improve the self-sufficiency of visually impaired people and their 
families

21.120 ESPLAI DE SANT SADURNÍ D'ANOIA Espaciocaixa Sant Sadurni endowment
21.090 ASSOCIACIÓ CULTURAL L'HURBART Wall art: Improving public spaces through the community
21.000 AMAYA ÁRIZ ARGAYA Therapeutic support schools for autistic children during the summer vacation period
21.000 PARKINSON FEDERACIÓN ESPAÑOLA Care programme for people with Parkinson's disease

21.000 AVIMAR
Fostering volunteering and the active involvement of older people in technological, social 
and cultural activities

21.000
ASOCIACIÓN PARA EL ESTUDIO E INTERVENCIÓN DE 
LA VIOLENCIA FILIOPARENTAL “ARIADNA"

Youth mentoring project

20.900 ASOCIACIÓN SOLIDARIDAD SIN FRONTERAS "SSF"
Promoting social inclusion and preventing any type of discrimination in the access to job 
opportunities
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20.900 LLEIDA CITY COUNCIL Love project
20.870 UNIÓ POBLES SOLIDARIS Social inclusion and development
20.800 ACOVA. ASOC. ACOVA AYUDA ENF. MENTAL Conoceme y Cuenta Conmigo programme
20.650 ASSOCIACIO DE LA GENT GRAN DE LA SEU Espaciocaixa Seu D'Urgell endowment

20.620 ASOCIACION RETINA ASTURIAS
"Mirando Adelante": Service to promote self-sufficiency and provide psychological and 
social support for the visually impaired

20.590 FUNDACIÓN GIAFYS-CÁNCER Humanising cancer

20.500 CONFEDERACIÓN AUTISMO ESPAÑA
Dual training programme and improved employability for young people with autism 
spectrum disorders

20.500 ACOPE Taller Verde Vivero

20.400 F. TUTELAR FECLEM
Legal and social protection and support for the self-sufficiency of people with mental illness 
in Castile and Leon

20.320 SOLIDARIOS PARA EL DESARROLLO Spaces for active community participation of people with psychiatric disorders
20.300 FUNDACIÓN ATARETACO Generating opportunities
20.300 ASSOCIACIÓ DE GENT GRAN SANT LLUIS Espaciocaixa Sant Lluis endowment
20.200 CARTAES TARREGA EMPRESA D'INSERCIO SL For a socially responsible region
20.100 FEDERACIÓ DE DISCAPACITATS FISICS DE LES Employment support services

20.040 FUNDACIÓN AVIVA Physical activity and sport to promote health and the inclusion of people with disabilities

20.010 ASOC. AYUDA CONTRA DROGADICCIÓN SILDAVIA Support and assistance for convicts, ex-convicts and their family members
20.000 FUNDACIÓ PRIVADA ROSA ORIOL Food platform project
20.000 FUND. PROMO. DEL DESARR. CULT Y SOCIAL Prodean social centre
20.000 FAPE Journalism conferences
20.000 SPANISH OLYMPIC COMMITTEE Collaboration on the senior sports management programme
20.000 REAL SOCIEDAD ECONÓMICA MATRITENSE The Entity's own activities

20.000 ASOCIACIÓN PATRONATO DE TORRECIUDAD
Collaboration with the Entity's activities in the "Encuentro Anual de Los Pueblos de 
Américia y del Este" programme

20.000 ASOCIACIÓN ESPAÑOLA DE FUNDACIÓNES Collaboration to publish the foundations yearbook
20.000 ASSOCIACIÓ JARDÍ DELS TARONGERS Jardín de Los Naranjos programme. Cultural and social activities
20.000 FUNDACIÓN ATENA PSICOBALLET NAVARRA Art without limits
20.000 FUNDACIÓN GIZAKIA HERRITAR Txoco Txiki París 365 learning community
20.000 FUNDACIÓN DYA NAVARRA Nos Movemos Contigo programme

20.000
ASOCIACIÓN DE PERSONAS SORDAS DE TOLOSALDEA-
GOIERRI "GAINDITZEN"

Support for the self-sufficiency of deaf elderly people 

20.000 ASOC. GAYARRE AMIGOS OPERA DE NAVARRA 2017 concert season: Opera for everyone 

20.000 BELENISTAS PAMPLONA
Construction and placement of Christmas nativity scenes for exhibition in various public 
centres

20.000 CORAL DE NAVARRA Encantado Denboraldia season
20.000 FEDERACIÓN DE COROS DE NAVARRA Agreement for the recovery of the musical heritage of Navarran artists - 2017
20.000 CLUB DEP. UNIVERSIDAD DE NAVARRA XXIV Sports Day

20.000 PATRONATO DE LA BANDA DE MUSICA DE PAMPLONA La Pamplonesa social project 2017 

19.952 ESPLAI DE SALOU Espaciocaixa Salou endowment
19.500 F. NORAY PROYECTO HOMBRE ALICANTE Dual approach to the treatment of people suffering from addictions
19.415 JUNTA ASOCIADOS CENTRO ESPLAI TARRAGONA Espaciocaixa Sant Magi Tarragona endowment

19.330
ASOCIACIÓN DE FAMILIARES DE ENFERMOS DE 
ALZHEIMER "NTRA. SRA. DE GUADALUPE"

Psychological and social assistance for people with dementia, and their family carers

19.330 SECCIÓN JUVENIL FUNDACIÓN ALBIHAR
Home care programme for the elderly to help improve self-sufficiency and their 
psychological and social inclusion in Granada

19.300 ASSOCIACIO DE GENT GRAN DE VIRREI AMAT Espaciocaixa Virrei Amat endowment
19.300 ASSOCIACIO DE GENT GRAN, LA BISBAL Espaciocaixa La Bisbal de L'Emporda endowment

19.200 EL MOLÍ D'EN PUIGVERT Labour market orientation and training programme for people with mental health disorders

19.200 FUNDACIÓN ADATEX "Ícaro". Prevention project aimed at teens
19.200 ASOCIACIÓN JUBILADOS MERCADAL Espaciocaixa Mercadal endowment

19.150 ASOCIACIÓN ILICITANA DE APOYO AL INMIGRANTE Supporting children

19.110 ASPAYM MÁLAGA Social and comprehensive care centre 

19.050
ASOCIACIÓN CONTRA LA DROGA APRENDE A VIVIR-
CONIL

"La Malva" support housing for treatment

19.000 FUND. PROYECTO D. BOSCO 2nd national edition of second chance schools (E20)
19.000 ASOCIACIÓN  SOLIDARI@ SPORT Promoting the active involvement of at-risk groups for their labour market inclusion 

18.950 AFA LACIANA VILLABLINO
Adaptation of mechanical facilities in the day centre for people with Alzheimer's and 
dementia

18.900 ASOCIACIÓN DE EDUCADORES LAS ALAMEDILLAS A Demanda project: Business prospecting
18.880 ESPLAI VILANOVA I LA GELTRU Espaciocaixa Vilanova I La Geltru endowment

18.840 OBLATAS DEL SANTISIMO REDENTOR
Temporary shelter and accommodation of for mothers-to-be and/or mothers with children 
who are vulnerable and/or at risk of social exclusion

18.820 SPANISH RED CROSS Social support for the elderly

18.800
ASOCIACIÓN POR LA VIDA INDEPENDIENTE DE 
PERSONAS CON DIVERSIDAD FUNCIONAL (AVI)

AVI-Málaga school for independent living 2017

18.670 FUND. AGUA DE COCO Namana: A space of peace, solidarity and interculturalism in schools
18.600 SPANISH RED CROSS Jubilarizate programme. Setting the stage for charitable ageing
18.600 ASSOCIACIÓ ALZHEIMER VALÈNCIA Tengo Algo Que Contarte I programme
18.570 FUNDACIÓ MARIANAO Nexos, a Tu Lado programme
18.550 ASSOCIACIO GENT GRAN ES FORTI Espaciocaixa Es Forti endowment

18.510 ASOCIACIÓN CONTRA LA DROGA
Comprehensive treatment programme for young people addicted to cannabis at risk of social 
exclusion

18.500 COCEMFE BA. FED. AS. MIN. FÍS. BADAJOZ "Yo-Tu-Juntos Por el Empleo" programme
18.450 ASSOCIACIO DE GENT GRAN S.VIÇENT CASTELL  Espaciocaixa Sant Viçens de Castellet endowment

18.400
ASOCIACION DE COMERCIANTES Y EMP. DE 
SALOBREÑA

Lidera4: Coaching for unemployed people

18.400 ASS. DE PERSONES D'EDAD DE DANTE Espaciocaixa Dante endowment

18.390 FUNDACIÓN OBJETIVO 1
Mueve tu Cuerpo y Activa la Mente programme: Encouraging self-sufficiency for dependent 
people II

18.140
ASOCIACIÓN LUGUESA DE INFORMACIÓN E AXUDA Ó 
DROGOD

Participa para Transformar programme. Changing prisons through social and cultural 
animation
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18.100
ASOCIACIÓN COMISION CATOLICA ESPAÑOLA DE 
MIGRACIÓN

Improving employability, professional qualifications and achieving labour market integration

18.100 ASSOCIACIO DE GENT GRAN. Espaciocaixa Súria endowment

18.060
ASOCIACIÓN PARA LA PROTECCIÓN DEL MENOR, LA 
FAMILIA, PROMOCIÓN DE PUNTOS DE ENCUENTRO Y 
MEDIACIÓN... EGINTZA

Developing psychological and social aid for affected individuals in order to facilitate their 
integration

18.040
ASOCIACIÓN DE LESIONADOS MEDULARES Y 
GRANDES DISCAPACIDADES

Psychological and social support and orientation for people with physical disabilities

18.000 ASOCIACIÓN PARKINSON ALICANTE Improving the self-sufficiency and quality of life of people with Parkinson's disease

18.000 ABENZOAR S.C.A.
Official professional qualification to provide long-term job opportunities in one of the 
sectors generating the most employment: the care sector

18.000 ASOCIACIÓN NAIM Activando Antequera programme 

18.000 CLUB INFANTIL Y JUVENIL ARCA DE NOÉ Social and educational assistance for migrant families in the Punta district of Valencia

18.000 FUNDACIÓ PRO VELLESA AUTÓNOMA Comprehensive assistance for legally-incapacitated elderly people

18.000 FRANCISCO VALDIVIA ALVAREZ
Contigo Desde el Primer Momento programme. Support and assistance for people with 
children or young people with cerebral paralysis

18.000 ASOC.FAMIL. Y ALLEG.ENF.MENTALES CÓRDOBA
Psychological and social development programme for young people with the mental illness 
Pygmalionism

18.000 ASSOCIACIO SALUT I FAMILIA La Infancia Es Esencial project
18.000 ASOCIACIÓN ETHOS A palliative and motivational programme for addicts at serious risk of social exclusion
18.000 ASSOCIACIO GENT GRAN MANRESA Espaciocaixa Manresa endowment
18.000 INVEST FOR CHILDREN Somos Uno programme

17.900 ACCIÓN LABORAL
Provide and hone the specific skills and knowledge required to enter the labour market for 
people at risk of social exclusion

17.900 FUNDACIÓN GRUPO HADA
IMEVA (Impulso Empleo Valles) An open space for comprehensive orientation, assistance 
and support programmes for young people and adults over 30 with functional diversity 
and/or in a situation of social emergency

17.810 ASOCIACIÓN PERROS Y LETRAS - R.E.A.D. SPAIN Perros y Letras programme: Reading to boost equality
17.735 ASSOCIACIO GENT GRAN VILASECA Espaciocaixa Vilaseca endowment
17.720 FUND. SECRET GRAL  GITANO - MADRID "Un Aula para Tod@S" programme
17.700 SPANISH RED CROSS Comprehensive pathways towards insertion for people with social difficulties 
17.500 L'HEURA DEL VALLÈS, FUNDACIÓ PRIVADA Labour market inclusion pathways through work and support
17.400 FUNDACIÓN ECCA Mujer Avanza project, Extremadura

17.320 AFA GUIPUZKOA
Zaintzen (Cuidando): An on-site training programme for volunteers and carers of people 
affected by Alzheimer's and other types of dementia, with online support

17.200 ASSOCIACIO GENT GRAN.ESPLAI CERDANYOLA Espaciocaixa Cerdanyola endowment
17.160 CENTRE D'ESTUDIS AFRICANS Young people - cultural references for equality and the prevention of violence
17.150 L,ESPLAI DE L,AVINGUDA Espaciocaixa Sabadell endowment
17.120 ASOCIACIÓN DE FAMILIARES DE ENFERMOS DE Home care service for Alzheimer's patients (ADA)
17.000 FUNDACIÓN ELKARTE Comprehensive programme for labour market integration; "Operario Industrial"
17.000 ASOCIACIÓN TIEMPO LIBRE Y ALTERNATIVO DEL SUR Family support centre: Promoting fairness in education and food
17.000 ASSOCIACIO DE GENT GRAN DE SANTS Espaciocaixa Sants endowment
16.960 ACOPROS Prevention of dementia in deaf elderly people
16.900 ASOCIACIÓN MESTURA Increasing employability for socially-vulnerable men and women 
16.800 FEAFES ASIC FAMILIARES Tomates Felices programme: Labour market inclusion and mental health

16.800
ASOCIACIÓN OFERTA CULTURAL DE UNIVERSITARIOS 
MAYOR

"Con Ofecum, Mejor Juntos" programme

16.580 ASOCIACIÓN DE ALCOHÓLICOS REHABILITADOS Psychological and social care for alcoholics and their families

16.400
ASOC. LA GABIOTA DE PERSONAS CON DIVERSIDAD 
FUNCIONAL

Supérate programme: Coaching for the labour market inclusion of people with differing 
capabilities

16.400 FUNDACIÓN ADSIS
Promoting the social and labour market inclusion of vulnerable young women and/or those 
at risk of social exclusion

16.300 FUNDACIÓN PROLIBERTAS
Programme for the social and labour market integration female prisoners and ex-prisoners: 
Casa "Miguel Ferrer"

16.200 FUNDACIÓN COVIRAN Specialist butcher's programme: A pathway to employment
16.200 FUNDACIÓN GARCIA GIL Rehabilitation support in the community
16.200 ESPLAI GAUDI Espaciocaixa Gaudi endowment

16.180
ASOCIACIÓN DE PADRES DE PERSONAS CON AUTISMO 
DE ZAMORA

Comunica Tea al Mundo programme: Communication and assistance programme for people 
with autism spectrum disorders

16.120 ASSOCIACIO DE GENT GRAN SENTMENAT Espaciocaixa Sentmenat endowment
16.080 ASSOCIACIO DE GENT GRAN MERIDIANA Espaciocaixa Meridiana endowment 
16.000 AFA VALDEMORO Alzheimer Global programme. Specialist treatment and psychological and social care

16.000 ASOC. VOLUNTARIOS INFORMÀTICA GALICIA
Fostering volunteering and the active involvement of older people in volunteer technological 
and cultural activities

16.000 SOCIEDAD INT. VALORES ARTE MEXICANO, A.C Promotion of artistic training for young Mexican talent

15.900 SPANISH RED CROSS
Activation, motivation and advice on employment for the long-term unemployed in 
situations of extreme vulnerability - Comarca del Almanzora

15.900
ASOCIACIÓN DE PADRES, FAMILIARES Y AMIGOS DEL 
DROGODEPENDIENTE LA ESPERANZA

Psychological and social assistance

15.800 SPANISH RED CROSS First job opportunities for young people

15.770 ASOCIACIÓN DE PADRES DE NIÑOS CON CÁNCER
2017 edition of the plan to improve the hospital volunteer programme by the Asociación de 
Padres de Niños y Adolescentes con Cáncer de Almería y Provincia (ARGAR)

15.600 AVANTE 3
Intro@Poyo programme: Inclusion in the ordinary workplace as support for people with 
intellectual or learning disabilities

15.565 L.ESPLAI D.ULLDECONA Espaciocaixa Ulldecona endowment

15.380
COMITE CIUDADANO ANTISIDA DE LA COMUNIDAD 
VALENCIANA

Hospital psychological care for people with HIV

15.380
ASOCIACIÓN DE PENSIONISTAS Y JUBILADOS PRADO 
BELLVITGE

Espaciocaixa Bellvitge endowment

15.300 ASSOCIACIÓ SANT TOMÀS-PARMO (TAC OSONA) El Aprendiz. Peón Manipulativo programme

15.240 PROYECTO HOMBRE JEREZ
Care for minors and young people with behavioural problems and suffering from IT and 
communication technology abuse, and their families

15.220
COORDINADORA ESTATAL DE PLATAFORMAS 
SOCIALES SALESIANAS

Toma las Riendas programme: Boosting the role of peer addiction prevention agents in 
programmes for at-risk youth

15.180 VEGA BAJA ACOGE Social inclusion project for immigrants in situations of social vulnerability
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15.030 FUNDACIÓN ITAKA - ESCOLAPIOS
Improving the overall development of minors and young people in a situation of or at risk of 
social exclusion

15.000
CONSORCI PER A LA CONSTRUCCIÓ, EQUIPAMENT I 
EXPLOTACIÓ DEL LABORATORI DE LLUM SINCROTRÓ

"Alba Open Day" 2017

15.000 CERMI Annual reports on human rights and disability

15.000
ASOCIACIÓN CULTURAL PARA EL FOMENTO DE LA 
LECTURA Y EL CUENTO

Los Silos International story festival 2017

15.000 TRESC GIRONA Moving towards self-sufficiency
15.000 AFEV - DELEGACIÓ BARCELONA Entàndem programme: Social mentoring for young people and children
15.000 SOCIEDAD LA COSMOLOGICA Maintaining and sharing their heritage

15.000
FEDERACIÓN ESPAÑOLA DE DEPORTES PARA 
MINUSVÁLIDOS

Wheelchair basketball

14.830
S.A.T SERVICIO ATENCIÓN TEMPRANA PARA JÓVENES 
EN 1º EPISODIOS PSICOTICOS

Promoting self-sufficiency and care for ageing, disability and dependency, 2017

14.780 ASOC PRO-DISCAPACITAD CUERPO NAC POLICIA Personal skills for professional insertion

14.760
FUNDACIÓ PRIVADA PER A LA PROMOCIÓ DE 
L'ESPORTISTA

Adaptive inclusive swim school

14.640
ASSOCIACIÓ CONEXUS. ATENCIÓ, FORMACIÓ I 
INVESTIGAC

University programme against gender violence

14.450 AS. ESPAÑOLA CONTRA EL CÁNCER Psychological and social support for families: Caring for caregivers
14.400 FUNDACIÓN QUIERO TRABAJO Supporting women prepare for a work interview
14.400 PROSEC Encontremos Nuestra Oportunidad programme
14.370 AS. CAUDETANA AMIGOS Y FAMILIARES ENF. M Developing an independent life: Comprehensive support for mental health issues
14.370 FUNDACIÓ PRIVADA GOEL Improving the quality of life of people with disabilities and their families
14.260 AFA MURO Activa-T programme. Stimulation for people with slight cognitive impairment
14.250 ASOC. DISCAPACITADOS FÍSICOS DE VILLENA Comprehensive support for people with functional diversity and their family members
14.160 FEGADACE Mutual support network for the elderly and people with acquired brain injury
14.160 ASOC. FAMILIARES DROGODEPEN. RESURRECCIÓN Armario, Aseo y Desayuno programme
14.100 CIDEAL Vallecas Emprende social project
13.900 ASOCIACIÓN PROYECTO HOMBRE 4th Proyecto Hombre Observatory Report
13.800 CARITAS DIOCESANA DE SANT FELIU DE LLOBREGAT Support for the labour market inclusion of people in a situation of social vulnerability

13.700 AFA - ASOC. FAM. ENF. ALZH. ALMUÑECAR
Non pharmacological treatment programme for patients with Alzheimer's and other types of 
dementia: Cognitive stimulation and multisensorial therapies

13.696 MALDITO RODRIGUEZ "Levante Llegas Tarde" theatre shows. Canary Islands
13.600 SPANISH RED CROSS Activation, motivation and employment advice for women with social difficulties

13.500 EMBALUM ASSOCIACIÓ
Ensuring full compliance with the rights of teenagers in a situation of vulnerability or social 
exclusion in the town of Mislata

13.420 P.A.V. PLAT. ANDALUZA DE VOLUNTARIADO Volunteering to fight against child poverty and social exclusion
13.280 OBRA SOCIAL PADRE MANJÓN Support programme and family assistance 
13.250 ASOC. HEMOFILIA DE LA COM. VALENCIANA Hemo-Hospi programme: Comprehensive psychological care for haemophilia sufferers
13.000 GOVERNMENT OF CATALONIA Spiritual film festival 
12.943 ECONOMÍA COLAB. SOLIDARIA MARGINADOS Economy for charitable collaboration - Charitable employees 2017

12.940 FUNDACIÓN EDEX SEDE CENTRAL BILBAO
Unplugged - Preventing the consumption of alcohol and other drugs by teens through 
education in life skills

12.940 ASSOC. DE JUBILATS I PENS. DEL PERELLÓ Espaciocaixa El Perello endowment

12.860 ASSOCIACIÓ PEL DESENVOLUPAMENT CULTURAL,
Plantemos la Semilla project. Shelter and training for young migrants in the area of organic 
farming

12.810 FUNDACIÓ VERGE BLANCA Assistance programme for the social development of children, teens and young people
12.660 LA CARACOLA INICIATIVAS SOCIALES Involvement and equality school

12.620
ASOCIACIÓN FAMILIARES, ALLEGADOS Y PERSONAS 
CON TRASTORNO MENTAL GRAVE

Promotion of self-sufficiency: Support programme for people with mental health disorders 
and their families

12.610 CJLASAVES. CENTRO JUVENIL LAS AVES Promoting social and educational integration to prevent academic failure
12.600 ASOCIACIÓN HEGOAK Volunteer programme to prevent drug use-related problems

12.600 ASOC. CIUDADANA CONTRA SIDA DE CASTELLÓN
La Llar programme: Shelter for care and social inclusion of socially-excluded people with 
HIV/AIDS

12.500 SDAD. ESPAÑOLA BIOQUIMICA Y BIOLOGIA M.
Organisation of the first congress for French, Portuguese and Spanish biochemical and 
molecular biology companies (FEBS3+)

12.500 FED ASOC CONSUMIDORES  U. MEDIOS ICMEDIA Audiovisual and film guide. Annual audiovisual guide and annual Icmedia forum
12.360 F.SINDROME DOWN GIRONA-COMERQUES ASTRID Improving self-esteem through independent living
12.300 LIGA ESPAÑOLA EDUCACIÓN Y CULTURA POPULA  In-Fórmate Empleo. Social and labour market inclusion for young people in Zamora
12.230 ASIS Care for basic needs
12.100 ASSOCIACIÓ G.G. CIBER@ULA POBLENOU Espaciocaixa Poblenou endowment

12.010
FUNDACIÓN "MADRE DE LA ESPERANZA DE 
TALAVERA DE LA REINA"

Programme for the prevention of premature ageing

12.000 CARITAS DIOCESANA DE SANT FELIU DE LLOBREGAT Social and educational support for families with children aged 0 to 3
12.000 APADO FUNDACIÓ PRIVADA Improving the situation of 30 women in a situation of vulnerability
12.000 ASOCIACIÓN SALUD Y AYUDA MUTUA Improving the employability of people suffering from mental illness
12.000 LSE ENTERPRISE LTD Development of the Catalan Observatory programme

12.000
FUNDACIÓ PRIVADA CENTRE D'ESTUDIS 
INTERNACIONALS

Collaboration in the Entity's activities

12.000 CARMEL GASOL MORA Vertical accessibility and shelter for the elderly
12.000 FUND. PROFESIONALES SOLIDARIOS Caring for our elderly
12.000 AFA TERRES DE L'EBRE ¡Todos Somos Afate! programme
12.000 ASOCIACIÓN CAMINAR Social and educational prevention service for children. "El Ruedo" project.

12.000 ASOC. VOLUNTARIOS INFORM. COM.VALENCIANA
Fostering volunteering and the active involvement of older people in volunteer technological 
and cultural activities

12.000 CAJA BURGOS WELFARE PROJECTS Cooperation with the National Centre for Research on Human Evolution (CENIEH) 2017
11.940 RESIDENCIA ASISTIDA SAN CAMILO Psychological and social support for dependent elderly people and their families
11.850 ACFAMES. ASS. CAT. FAM...ESQUIZOFRÈNIA Understanding mental health
11.790 ASOCIACIÓN DE LUPUS DE ALMERÍA Learning to live with an autoimmune disease and lupus: Psychological and social care

11.650 ASAMBLEA DE COOPERACIÓN POR LA PAZ
Personas Adelante programme: Promotion of social economy models in Hospitalet de 
Llobregat 

11.630 INSOLAMIS. SALAMANCA Insolamis family support programme
11.600 L'ESQUITX 'La Casita del Barrio' family space

11.550 FUNDACIÓN TUTELAR KYRIOS
Sociabilitas programme: Self-sufficiency, support and opportunities for people with 
borderline intelligence
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11.520 EDUCARE SOCIAL
Elx Hace Mediacion: Prevention and support in relation to different types of violence, 
absenteeism and early school-leaving through conflict management: school and community 
mediation as a tool of cohesion

11.480
ASOCIACIÓN DE NIÑOS DISCAPACITADOS DE ALMERIA 
ANDA

Leisure and recreational activity programme for integration

11.480 ALZHEIMER CATALUNYA FUNDACIÓ PRIVADA Alzheimer Catalunya project
11.160 ASSOCIACIÓ DE DONES CA L'AURÈLIA Comprehensive support for cases of gender violence
11.010 FUND. TUTELAR CAST/LEON DEF. MENTALES Training and inclusive information

11.000 AMAVITE
Fostering volunteering and the active involvement of older people in technological, social 
and cultural activities

11.000 AVIMGRAN Association of IT volunteers for the elderly in Gran Canaria 
11.000 APASCIDE Acquisition of an adapted vehicle

10.980 ASOCIACIÓN DE AFECTADOS DE CÁNCER DE OVARIO
Comprehensive care for women with ovarian and gynaeocological cancer to promote self-
sufficiency and psychological and social development

10.920 ARBADA
The family as a driver of change. Psychological and social support for people with eating 
disorders and their families

10.800
ASOCIACIÓN DE OCIO PARA NIÑOS CON 
DISCAPACIDAD INTELECTUAL

Inclusive accessibility service to promote self-sufficiency of people with functional diversity; 
psychological support for the family environment and support for equality-based citizen 
networks

10.770 AS. FAMILIAS PERS. DISCAP. PSIQUIC ELCHE
Exponential functional accessibility. Promoting self-sufficiency and psychological and social 
support for families in the area of functional diversity

10.700 SEEC SECCIÓ BALEAR "XXII Course of Classic Culture and Thought" in Palma

10.620
ASOCIACIÓN DE PACIENTES CON FIBROMIALGIA, 
FATIGA CRÓNICA Y OTRAS ENFERMEDADES 
REUMÁTICAS

Fibromyalgia, a reality.

10.560
ASOCIACIÓN DE PADRES Y AMIGOS DE CARDIOPATÍAS 
CONGENITAS

Psychological and social rehabilitation

10.540 ASOC. PERSONAS DISCAPACIDAD LA ESPERANZA
Comprehensive and continued personalised support service and social and health care for 
people with intellectual disabilities

10.510
FEDERACIÓ DE MALALTIEES NEUROLÒGIQUES POC 
FREQÜENTS

Understanding rare diseases

10.500 ACCIÓNS 3E Film and the environmental festival (Ficma)
10.500 ASSOC. VOLUNT. I AMICS-ST. JAUNE CALELLA Wood shaving workshop "support centre for social integration"

10.300 SPANISH RED CROSS
Adelante programme: Contributing to equal opportunities for unemployed people facing 
problems of labour market integration

10.200 FUNDACIÓ AGM DE LA COMUNITAT VALENCIANA Preventing social isolation among elderly people who do not want to be alone

10.000 SPANISH RED CROSS
Ofis la Noguera programme: Contributing to equal opportunities (giving priority to people 
aged over 30) 

10.000 ESCOLA DE NOVES TECNOLOGIES INTERACTIVES "Summer School on Serious Games For Health and Sport"
10.000 ESCOLA DE NOVES TECNOLOGIES INTERACTIVES "Summer School on Serious Games For Health and Sport"

10.000 ASSOCIACIÓ PER A JOVES TEB
Inclusion or reincorporation of young people in the traditional education system and/or 
workplace

10.000 ODONTOLOGIA SOLIDÀRIA Oral and dental care for vulnerable people

10.000 ASOCIACIÓN MUJER EMANCIPADA
La Vita programme. Social and labour market inclusion for women who been subjected to 
trafficking.

10.000
ASDA. ASOCIACIÓN SÍNDROME DE DOWN DE 
ASTURIAS

Training programme and labour market integration

10.000
FEDERACIÓN DE ASOC. PERSONAS SORDAS ISLAS 
CANARIAS

Development agent for the deaf community 

10.000 LIGA ESP.DE LA EDUCACIÓN Y LA CULTURA Youth health guidance centre, Almería

10.000 DOWN GALICIA. SANTIAGO DE COMPOSTELA
Una Escuela para Todos y Todas programme: Educational inclusion of students with Down's 
syndrome and/or intellectual disabilities

10.000 ASOCIACIÓN ESPAÑOLA DE ECONOMÍA Collaboration in the Entity's activities
10.000 FUNDACIÓN PRIVADA TANJA Collaboration in the Entity's activities
10.000 FUNDACIÓN TRANSFORMA ESPAÑA Collaboration in the Entity's activities
10.000 CONSELL DE L'AUDIOVISUAL DE CATALUNYA XIV Cac awards for schools, 2017
10.000 FUNDACIÓN JOAN BOSCÁ Collaboration in the 4th edition of the multidisciplinary seminar on plurilingualism
10.000 AS.DEFENSA ANOREXIA I BULIMIA A GRANADA Psychological and social support for people with eating disorders and their families
10.000 ASDEGAL Cambiando el Sofá Por Un Par de Zapatos programme
10.000 ASOCIACIÓN ASPERGER JAÉN Developing an independent life
10.000 ASOCIACIÓN ALZHEIMER BARBASTRO Respite centre - Care therapy for people with Alzheimer's and their families

10.000 ASPRODES GRANADA
Multisensorial language stimulation in deaf children and those suffering from other 
pathologies: Developing self-sufficiency from childhood and with the family

10.000 CLUB MINUSVÀLIDS HORITZO
Sports groups adapted to make a tool for the social inclusion of people with functional 
diversity

10.000 CLUB DEPORTIVO ELEMENTAL AMIGOS VALDERAS Inclusion markers

10.000
ASOCIACIÓN DE FAMILIARES Y PERSONAS CON 
ENFERMEDAD

Pelota - A children's project

10.000 AFA ASTRORGA Promotion of self-sufficiency
10.000 LIMISI Prosodis - Social and healthcare assistance and functional diversity programme

10.000 FAEM
Arpa project to boost self-esteem, psychological and social rehabilitation and self-sufficiency 
of people with severe mental illness and their families

10.000
ASOCIACIÓN DE AMIGOS DE ALZHEIMER DE 
ROQUETAS DE MAR

Improving the quality of life and self-sufficiency of users, their families and/or unofficial 
carers

10.000 AVISMÓN CATALUNYA Workshops promoting self-sufficiency and preventing dependency among the elderly

10.000
FEDERACIÓN GALLEGA DE ENFERMEDADES RARAS E 
CRÓNICAS

Occupational therapy: Functional rehabilitation and psychological and social development to 
promote self-sufficiency and adaption to functional diversity

10.000 ASOC. FAMILIARES DE ENFERMOS ALZHEIMER
Trabajando Desde Los Recuerdos programme: Cognitive and psycho-motor stimulation for 
people suffering from Alzheimer's

10.000
ANNES ( ASOCIACIÓN DE NIÑOS Y NIÑAS CON 
NECESIDADES ESPECIALES)

Psychological and social assistance based on the benefits of hydrotherapy

10.000 ADHARA, ASOCIACIÓN VIH/SIDA Emotional support for people living with HIV and their loved ones

10.000 ASOCIACIÓN SÍNDROME DE DOWN DE LUGO
Temporary shelter for people with Down's Syndrome and/or intellectual disabilities in 
shared accommodation

10.000 PARROQUIA SANTA MARÍA DEL POZO Y SANTA M. First prevention day centre project
10.000 ADEAT Shelter and meeting centre
10.000 MENUTS DE VALENCIA La Casa de las Andorinas
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10.000 MONITORES DE APOYO SOCIAL A LA INFANCIA Cachivache social centre

10.000 ASOCIACIÓN DE MUJERES "LA RONDILLA"
Creciendo en Igualdad project. Programme for the promotion and comprehensive 
development of minors and families at risk or in a situation of social vulnerability

10.000 TIEMPO LIBRE DE VALLECAS La Familia Un Espacio: primary socialisation programme
10.000 ASOCIACIÓN JUVENIL ALDABA Unofficial education programme for minors and families at risk of exclusion, Oberti

10.000 ASOCIACIÓN PRIMERA PREVENCIÓN
Timón programme: Psychological and social support for the social inclusion of families at 
serious risk

10.000 ATIEMPO
Project for the involvement and inclusion of young people and adults in a situation of social 
exclusion

10.000 APRALAD Psychological and social reinsertion of drug addicts (walk-in basis)
10.000 FUNDACIÓN INSTITUTO DE EMPRESA Research project on senior workers in Spanish companies

10.000 ASOCIACIÓN IZARBIDE
Fostering volunteering and the active involvement of older people in technological, social 
and cultural activities and support for the Gente 3.0 projects

10.000 ASOCIACIÓN DE VOLUNTARIOS DE INFORMÁTICA
Fostering volunteering and the active involvement of older people in volunteer technological 
and cultural activities

10.000 ASOC. DE VOLUNTARIOS INFOR. CAST. MANCHA
Fostering volunteering and the active involvement of older people in volunteer technological 
and cultural activities

10.000 FUNDACIÓ PASQUAL MARAGALL Pon el Corazón para Cuidar el Cerebro project
10.000 FUNDACIÓ ESCLEROSI MULTIPLE  "Mójate" 2017 project
10.000 ASS CATALANA FIBROSI QUÍSTICA Mil Pensamientos project 
10.000 LABOR ACTIV@TE. DIAGRAMA Reencuéntrate con la E.S.O. project
10.000 GARACHICO CITY COUNCIL Puerto de Garachico- Canary Islands - 2017

10.000
FUNDACIÓN CANARIA DE LAS ARTES ESCÉNICAS Y DE 
LA MÚSICA DE GRAN CANARIA

Centenary of Leonard Bernstein

10.000 PUERTO CRUZ CITY COUNCIL XV International Street Art Festival of Puerto de la Cruz - 2017

10.000
FONPRIV FONDATION MIGRATION POLICY INSTITUTE 
EUROPE

"Integration Futures International Meeting"

9.940 AFEM GETAFE
Family and self-help school: Psychological and social support project for families of people 
with mental illness

9.350 AJUNTAMENT D'ULLDECONA Providing a support structure for people in order to strengthen their resources
9.300 SEEC SECCIÓ BALEAR "XIII Course of Classic Culture and Thought" Ibiza 2017
9.200 GRUPO SCOUT AMANECER Educational leisure activities in Coma
9.100 FUNDACIÓN CATTELL PSICÓLOGOS "Soycomotu" workshops on training, social integration, creativity and mental health
9.080 SPANISH RED CROSS Promoting healthy habits and lifestyles
9.000 ASOC. ASPERGER DE CÁDIZ. DELEGACIÓN "Inclutea" project for the social labour market inclusion of people with autism
8.530 ASSOCIACIO TIRITA CLOWN Hospital clowns
8.400 ASOC. APOYO PERSONAS VIH/SIDA CARACOL Prevention and support for HIV/AIDS sufferers
8.300 ASOCIACIÓN PARKINSON ALCORCÓN Speech therapy safe swallowing in Parkinson's sufferers

8.170 AS. LUCHA ENFERMEDADES RENALES GRANADA
Comprehensive therapeutic programme for patients with CKD during hemodialysis (HD) in 
Granada

8.000 UNIVERSIDAD REY JUAN CARLOS 50th anniversary of "100 years of solitude"
7.000 OHANA-SOMRIURES PEL MÓN Purchase of orthodontic material

6.000
FUNDACIÓ UNIVERSITAT EMPRESA DE LES ILLES 
BALEARS

 “Explorando las Fronteras Entre Los Saberes X: de la Biología a las Ciencias Sociales, 
Nuevos Retos en el Campo de Los Sistemas Complejos"

5.940 AFIBRODON
Haz Visible Lo Invisible project. Comprehensive therapeutic treatment for patients with 
fibromyalgia and chronic fatigue syndrome

5.500 MALA ORBITA, S.L.  "Desayunos de Ciencia en el Restaurante 7 Portes" debates
5.200 ASSOCIACIO DE GENT GRAN DE VILADECANS Espaciocaixa Viladecans endowment
5.000 AMIT Promote the career of scientific researcher and give visibility to female researchers
5.000 UNIVERSIDAD DE CORDOBA 6th Congress of Social Communication and Science 
5.000 FUNDACIÓ PRIVADA FRANCESC VIÑAS International song contest
5.000 MAYORES DE HOY FUNDACIÓN Social-scientific congress on well-being and the quality of life
5.000 FUND HAZLOPOSIBLE Talento Que Impacta project

4.190
ASOC. FAMILIARES DE ENFERMOS DE ALZHEIMER Y 
OTRAS DEMENCIAS. ENTRETODOS.

Self-care in Alzheimer's 

4.000 ESPIRAL, EDUCACIÓN Y TECNOLOGÍA Development of different training activities

3.000
ASOCIACIÓN DESCUBRE LA ELECTRÓNICA 
ORIENTADA A OBJETOS

Cultural and social activities

3.000 ASSOCIACIÓ SCIENTISTS DATING FORUM "The 2nd. Homo Scientificus Europaeus Meeting"

3.000
COL·LEGI DE PUBLICITARIS I RELACIONS PÚBLIQUES 
DE CATALUNYA

Contest for young creative talent aimed at Catalonian university students involving 
advertising and public relations

3.000 FUNDACIÓ UNIVERSITAT OBERTA DE CATALUNYA "La Era Digital. Transformaciones, Mitos y Malestares" conferences
3.000 UNIVERSITAT AUTÓNOMA DE BARCELONA "Referencias para Repensar la Educación" conferences
3.000 FEDERACIÓ CATALANA DE VOLUNTARIAT SOCIAL Lluís Martí awards for social value 
2.500 RAVALNET Consolidating the Raval media library
2.100 FESORCAM Providing access for elderly deaf people to information and communication technologies
2.000 UNIVERSITAT DE BARCELONA Dissemination of research into emotional education
1.400 FONDAZIONE INTERCULTURA ONLUS Scientific research in the social interest

1.300 ASSOCIACIÓ COORDINADORA DE L'ANCIANITAT
"XXXX Juegos Florales del Otoño" literary event and publication of the social magazine 
"Antes y Ahora"
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